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FACTUAL STATEMENT

The Defendant pled guilty without the advice and assistance of a well prepared
counsel. Defendant’s counsel did an inadequate investigation preplea and he
inadequately counseled Nunn during the preplea process. Defense coqnsel and Nunn
had a very poor relationship and Nunn therefore tried to get the Court to appoint
another defense counsel during the pretrial proceedings. (A.A. 15-20), (A.A. 38-49),
(A.A. 50-52) The Court however initially denied Nunn’s Motions for Alternate
Counsel and did not grant Nunn another counsel until after he had already pled guilty

and then it was too late. (A.A. 55), (A.A. 185)

Even though there had been a complete breakdown of communication between
the Defendant and counsel, the Court did not grant his Motion for Alternate Counsel
until after he plead guilty. The newly appointed counsel filed a Writ of Habeas

Corpus alleging Defendant’s plea was invalid, but the Writ was denied. (A.A. 76)

It is respectfully submitted the Court erred in denying the Petition and Motion
to Withdraw Guilty Plea. Defendant had entered a hasty, unknowing and virtually
uncounselled plea of guilty. Soon after the Defendant pled guilty, he tried to

withdraw his plea by filing a Motion to Withdraw that plea of guilty. On November



5, 2019, the Court denied the Motion, finding that his plea was not invalid. (A.A.
218-222) The Court in its Findings of Facts stated there was no manifest injustice and

the Court also disagreed with the Defendant’s assertion of ‘factually innocence.’

(A.A. 221-222)

CItis respectfully submitted however the record establishes Defendant’s
affidavit provided sufficient evidence or grounds for the guilty plea to be withdrawn.
Defendant submits therefore his plea was involuntary and was not knowingly or

intelligently made.

Soon after Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw his guilty plea was denied, the

State moved to revoke the Defendant’s probation. (A.A. 226-232)

At the revocation hearing on November 14, 2018, the Defendant was not
adeqﬁately prepared because of the lengthy conflict he had with his counsels. He
therefore stipulated to revocation, feeling he had no choice. (A.A. 228) The Court
revéked Defendant’s probation without considering any mitigating evidence. Even
though an abundance of mitigation existed, the Court never considered the factors
which mitigated his conduct. It should be noted that in the Findings of Fact,

Conclusions of Law and Order, the Court when revoking the Defendant noted the



Defendant had no further arrests. The Court actually modified Defendant’s probation

to 36 to 120 months. (A.A. 230)

Defendant submits, nevertheless, that the Court wrongly abused its discretion
when it accepted the Defendant’s stipulation and revoked his probation. It is
respectfully submitted the Court should have considered the totality of the mitigating
circumstances which existed including the Defendant’s recent Motion to withdraw
his plea which alleged his ‘factual innocence.” The Court should have recognized the
effect of the sustained conflict with his counsels as well as the other extensive
mitigating circqmstances in the record such as his mental problems. The Court
therefore should have rejected the proposed Stipulated Revocation of Probation.
Under all the facts and circumstances the revocation was not just apd it is therefore
respectfully submitted the Court abused its discretion when it revoked the Defendant.
After revoking the Defendant’s probation, Defendant was sentenced to 36 to 120

months. (A.A. 230)
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or unavailable at trial. Id. at 327-328. The court must make its determination concerning the

petitioner's innocence “in light of all th;g:gvidence, including that alleged to have been illegally

——"

admitted (but with due regard to any unreliability of it) and evidence tenably claimed to have
been wrongly excluded or to have become available only after the trial.” Id. at 328.
The meaning of actual innocence does not merely require a showing that a reasonable

doubt exists in the light of the new evidence, but rather that no reasonable juror would have found

the defendant guilty. It is not the district court's independent judgment as to whether reasonable
doubt exists; the standard requires the district court to make a probabilistic determination about

what reasonable, properly instructed jurors would do. Thus, a petitioner does not meet the
_,_,_..___.——-—-"‘"""-——'-—-‘

L i R 5 B, 1o gt

threshold requirement unless he persuades the district court that, in light of the new evidence, no
juror, acting reasonably, would have voted to find him guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. Id. at
329. The word “reasonable” in that formulation is not without meaning. Id. It must be presumed
that a reasonable juror would consider fairly all of the evidence presented. Id. It must also be
presumed that such a juror would conscientiously obey the instructions of the trial court requiring
proof beyond a reasonable doubt. Id.

Newly presented evidence may indeed call into question the credibility of the witnesses
presented at trial. Id. at 30. In such a case, the court may have to make some credibility
assessments. Id. Also, and more fundamentally, the focus of the inquiry is on the likely behavior
of'the trier of fact. Id.

Courts have held that an evidentiary hearing regarding actual innocence is required where
the new evidence, “if credited,” would show that it is more likely than not that no reasonable jury

would find the petitioner guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. See Berry v. State, 131 Nev, Adv. Op.

96, 363 P.3d 1148, 1155 (2015); and Coleman v. Hardy, 628 F.3d 314, 319-20 (7th Cir.2010)




character of the error, and [3] the gravity of the crime charged. Mulder v. State, 116
Nev. 1, 17, 992 P.2d 845, 854-55 (2000), citing Leonard v. State, 114 Nev. 1196,
1216, 969 P.2d 288, 301 (1998). See also, Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 692 P.2d

1228 (1985).

Considering all these factors Defendant therefore urges the Court to reverse his

conviction and the Order revoking probation based upon cumulative error.

CONCLUSION

The Defendant, Sammie Nunn, respectfully submits for all the reasons stated
that the Order denying his Motion to Withdraw His Guilty Plea should be reversed.
The Order revoking the Defendant’s probation must also be reversed and this case

should be remanded for such other relief as proper.

DATED this 26th day of June, 2020.
Respectfully submitted,

/sl Terrence M. Jackson
Terrence M. Jackson, Esquire
Law Office of Terrence M. Jackson
Nevada Bar No. 00854
624 South Ninth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
T: 702.386.0001 / F: 702.386.0085
terry jackson.e ail.com
Counsel for Appellant, Sammie Nunn
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON STEVEN D. GRIERSON

Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #001565 JUN 06 2018
g}i(}%ﬂ THOEI)VISON

ief Deputy. District Attorne
Nevada Bar #011002 d BY, L/
200 Lewis Avenue DARA YORKE,

Las Vegas, NV 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500
Attomey for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-Vs- . CASENO: C-18-336184-1
SAMMIE NUNN, .
2751864 DEPTNO: XVIII
Defendant.
GUILTY PLEA AGREEMENT

I hereby agree to plead guilty to: BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
(Category B Felony - NRS 200.481 - NOC 50223), as more fully alleged in the charging
document attached hereto as Exhibit "1",

My decision to plead guilty is based upon the plea agreement in this case which is a

: STIRAATE 10 WMDERLYWE
g SEMTENCE OF -5 foarS 1M WDOC 4

The State has no opposition to probation. The State will not oppose Defendant’s

follows:

release on house arrest after entry of guilty plea in District Count.

1 agree to the forfeiture of any and all weapons or any interest in any weapons seized
and/or impounded in connection with th‘e‘ instant case and/or any other case negotiated in
whole or in part in conjunction with this plea agreement.

I understand and agree that, if I fail to interview with the Department of Parole and

Probation, fail to appear at any subsequent hearings in this case, or an independent magistrate,

28 “ by affidavit review, confirms probable cause against me for new criminal charges including

C-15-338184 -1
GPA

Grilty Ptaa Agreomen!
4840886

2

l ‘N I|i||mu!"l|lll|§ . W201812C1 8711 1938\ 8F1 1438-GPA-(NUNN__SAMMIE)-001.DOCX
1
| 024
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STATE BAR OF NEVADA

3100 W. Chatleston Blvd.
July 25, 2018 Suite 100
' Las Vegas, NV 89102
phone 702.382.2200
woll ree 800.254,2797

Sammie Nunn, #2751864 7023852878
Clark County Detention Center 9456 Double RBivd, Sce. B
330 S. Casino Center Boulevard R;‘n‘f;‘j‘;’f;;‘[;g"”
Las Vegas, NV 89101 o 775.329.0522

Re: Grievance / Anthony Goldstein, Esqg. www.nvbar.org

Reference No. OBC19-0860
Dear Mr. Nunn:

The Office of Bar Counsel has considered your latest grievance to the State Bar
of Nevada regarding attorney Anthony Goldstein in connection with your ongeing
criminal case.

Court records show that State of Nevada vs. Sammie Nunn, Case No. C336184,
remains pending in Eighth Judicial District Court. Your grievance involves issues which,
at this time, should be addressed in the appropriate judicial setting.

The Office of Bar Counsel and the disciplinary boards of the State Bar are not
substitutes for the court system. Therefore, this grievance has been dismissed. No
further action shall be taken in this matter.

If a court makes written findings which clearly establish attorney misconduct,
please re-submit that information for our reconsideration.

incerely,

Phillip J. Pattee
Assistant Bar Counsel

PJP/bkm
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Tuesday, August 6, 2019

[Hearing began at 9:02 a.m.]

THE COURT CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie
Nunn, C336184.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Anthony Goldstein for the Defendant;
he is present in custody, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Can | have counsel approach?

[Bench Conference]

THE COURT: What are we doing with this? Is he
competent?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Hard to tell because he goes in and out
of competency in my opinion. It depends on the condition,
depends on his mood. | can't -l don't know if the letter is
malingering effort to look more, to go back into competency or not.
| really don't know.

I thought about re-evaluating him for competency, but |
don't know - it's a permanent — he’'s not - | don't think he's ever
going to get normal, unfortunately.

THE COURT: Are you all going to file any opposition to
any of this?

MR. LEXIS: No.

THE COURT: Megan doesn't care?

MR. LEXIS: Megan doesn't care.

THE COURT: Initially, on basis, he got ~ is there any -

Page 2 /6 8
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anything to any of this that these — included in the letter. Are there
witnesses? Are there people that -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Judge, I've talked to people - | did a lot
on this case. |talked to people --

THE COURT: Okay, this is all recorded, let’'s make a -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- I'm trying to -1 spoke with several
witnesses, they were at the mini mart to where in that area he gave
me the names for.

THE COURT: Some names and numbers?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yes. Somewhere in that letter, it said
something about - | submit this is not believable. Yeah, | talked to a
person, I'm not going to say his name, but | talked to a person, and
there’s no way that person is credible. | interviewed that person
myself over the phone. They said they were there and it was very
clear that that person wasn't credible, wouldn't be a valuable
witness in any way, shape, or form. Seemed to be a friend of
Sammie’s who may or may have not actually been there, but the
testimony would have been worthless at the trial; probably worked
against Sammie in trial.

| talked to the people who worked at the mini mart store.
Sammie says; oh, they're going to stand up for me. They're going
to stand with the guy, so it doesn't matter what they're going to do.
They weren't witnesses to this, and | went to the store personally to
talk to the manager in some other - it's a mini mart on Twain and

Swenson. | went there and talked to these people. They're not,

reee? /89
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they weren’t there. They didn't see it. They didn't have the
videotape anymore. By the time | got on the case, they didn't have
any --

THE COURT: Does he have the video? Have you checked
his phone? Didn't he say something about he downloaded a video
on his phone and it's in his property?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: He's never mentioned that to me.

THE COURT: Maybe then -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- | wasn't his first lawyer on the case.
Jen Waldo had him first, but | -~ he’s never mentioned it to me.

THE COURT: -- the only information is they don't really
think there's a basis to dismiss you, it's not going to have the same
with every attorney, but I'm going to ask him, you know, about -
and if there’s a video on his phone, can you access that in his
property and look at it?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It might not be in his property. Metro
might have confiscated it, but either way it's out there. If there's a
phone --

THE COURT: Can we follow-up with it?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- out there, you can sign an order -

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- but | doubt that exists. Seems like
that’s something he would’'ve mentioned to me.

THE COURT: But that's — you know, that’s why it's an

easy -
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MR. GOLDSTEIN: Correct.

THE COURT: -- easy follow-up; and then we'll go ahead
and reset that other one? Yeah?

MR. LEXIS: Sounds good, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you for all your assistance Mr. Lexis.
| appreciate it.

MR. LEXIS: Hope | get a response to this.

THE COURT: | know. Okay.

[Bench Conference Concluded]

THE COURT: Okay, this is Mr. Nunn’s motion to dismiss
counsel and appoint counsel. | think we've kind of addressed this
previously.

THE DEFENDANT: We - when we addressed it, Your
Honor, we never counting back - to fully air out the inquiry.

So, there were some things that Mr. Goldstein was
supposed to do, and you gave him about a month to do the things,
and he didn't fulfill any of the things that he needed to do.

THE COURT: What was he supposed to do?

THE DEFENDANT: He's was supposed to interview
witnesses.

THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Goldstein, have you interviewed
the witnesses?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Several, Your Honor; two that worked
at the mini mart outside of which this took place, and one witness

whose name is escaping me right now. He put me in contact with,
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who is allegedly an eyewitness, and | spoke - personally spoke with
that person. | didn't find that person — my opinion was that person
would not have been a beneficial witness for the Defense in the
trial, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay, so he did that.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And | told Sammie that already, that |
had spoken to that person too.

THE DEFENDANT: He did not, Your Honor, and he doesn't
have any record from a prior investigator who has done that.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | went there myself personally, Your
Honor.

THE DEFENDANT: | don't know if he's supposed to go
personally and talk to witnesses without anything that's on the
record. These things that he hasn't done, pushing me — push me
into a corner to take the deal instead of not being prepared for trial
because practically — personally I'm innocent, and | didn't need - |
didn't want to take that deal, but he kind of forced me into a corner
by telling me he's not going to use eyewitnesses; by telling me he's
not going to use the victim that wanted to come forward and
express exactly what happened.

| actually have new evidence of a statement that a victim
made because they seen me when | was out. | didn't want to be a
part of anything, so | whipped out a phone and started recording
right then; and these things need to be addressed. | think we need

to air this out and have an evidentiary hearing.

Page 6 /?Z
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There’s more things he didn't do. For the record, he did
talk to Kirra Tyme [phonetics] you said?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I'm sorry.

THE DEFENDANT: You said you talked to Kirra Tyme
[phonetics]?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | don't recall the name, that was the
second named victim.

THE DEFENDANT: Second name victim, they’re victims
right? He didn’t tell me the details of the conversation, of him
talking to Kirra Tyme [phonetics]. He said he talk to them,
something, something.

But | asked him; well, what was the conversation about,
and he said we're not going to get into this right now. These are
things that | needed to know before trial in order to be prepared to
see exactly what my outcome would be, for the simple fact, that |
know I'm -1 know I'm innocent because | didn't do anything. The
first incident when | protected myself, | gave him a -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And I'd advise the Defendant not to tatk
about the facts of the case right now, in case, for future purposes
this could come back to haunt him.

THE COURT: Here’s where we are Mr. Nunn, the only
thing that's in front of me is the motion to dismiss counsel -

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: -- all of this other stuff -

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

Page 7 I ?5
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THE COURT: -- may be the subject of something else, but
it’s not on for today. Today all | can do is address your counsel,
and I'm not finding any basis to appoint alternative counsel. You
are free to represent yourself -

THE DEFENDANT: | can't-if | can represent myself I'd
rather do that than deal with the consequences that has already
come behind having him as my counsel.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, we should keep in mind
that that was - mine was the second deal that he took. His previous
attorney, he pled and was pending sentencing when Judge Togliatti
appointed me, | filed a motion to withdraw his plea, which Judge
Togliatti granted, and then this is the second time — mine was
affected with the second guilty plea agreement he went through.
Mine was a much better offer than the first one because it was —on
paper it was for probation, Your Honor, so - to say that | forced
him, | mean he had already taken an arguably worst deal months
prior to that before | even was involved with the case so, this
doesn't really comport with the facts, Your Honor.

THE DEFENDANT: And that — that issue was because |
was - | was coerced. The DA thought that | had 11 felonies, so she
said either you take this deal or I'm going to file a habitual criminal
on you, and so | said, 1 don't have another felonies, | actuaily have
zero felonies, and I've never been a felon in my entire life, so the
reason --

MR. GOLDSTEIN: That was basis for the motion to

Page 8 /?4
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withdraw plea, but that was again in the past.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, yeah, and so we went forward
because they didn't want to pull my real record up until the PSI
came back, and the PSI came back before sentencing and it proved
that | have zero felonies.

THE COURT: Okay so what's the issue with it? | mean yes
it's zero felonies, you've entered your plea. You were given
probation, and now you're on for revocation of probation so, that's
all in the past.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, and | want to withdraw the plea,
he's telling me no.

THE COURT: Okay, well you don't have a motion
pending to do that, so if -

THE DEFENDANT: I'm asking my attorney to put in the
motion because you guys aren’t going to put in a motion unless my
attorney puts in; this is going to be a copy that goes to my atiorney
because I've tried this before, so -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, | visited him a couple
times, many times. Most -

THE DEFENDANT: And I've asked you to withdraw the
plea.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- right, and | don't believe — | pled him,
so | know that there’s no legal grounds. I'm very confident that he
was aware of all —

THE DEFENDANT: Newly discovered evidence is legal
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grounds.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I'm very confident he was aware of
everything he was signing, and he was very -

THE DEFENDANT: There's a brand new statement from
the victim. There’s new grounds.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- I'm just trying to talk.

THE COURT: Can you let Mr. Goldstein please?

THE DEFENDANT: Sure.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | specifically addressed his points about
withdrawing his plea. | can only file motions that | believe there's a
legal basis for. 1 pled him. I visited him many times before he pled.
| talked to him after he pled. There's the whole issue of his getting
into that transitional housing that | worked on for a long long time,
with a lot of different people. | know, Your Honor, that - I'm
confident that it was a clean plea. | don't find any legal basis. I'm
not going to file a motion when | don't think there’s any merit, so
that's — he and | fully discussed this. | visited him multiple times.

THE DEFENDANT: So what happens with conflict of
interest when it comes to that issues? And on top of that, | wasn’t -
| wasn't disclosed on my appeal rights. There was one —

THE COURT: Okay this is way —this is way outside of
where we are -

THE DEFENDANT: Okay that's fine -

THE COURT: - we're strictly here to reset the revocation.

THE DEFENDANT: -- I'm saying that I'm having ineffective
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assistance of counsel, and the things that | want to move forward
on with my case, my attorney is not moving on with it, and he’s
telling me no. I'm not doing this, I'm not doing that. | have no time
to do that, | have no time to do -

THE COURT: That's not what he’s saying. He said he
doesn't see a legal basis, and he's - he's

THE DEFENDANT: -- okay we can try. We can at least try,
and there is a legal basis.

THE COURT: No that’s not - that’s not how this works.
That’s not how - let’s just throw stuff up and stick it out there -

THE DEFENDANT: | didn‘t say throw stuff up -

THE COURT: -- and stick up there whether we believe in it
or not.

THE DEFENDANT: -- but, but how about this, how about
an evidentiary hearing to see if the new evidence is —

THE COURT: No. There's no basis.

THE DEFENDANT: -- there's no basis? New evidence isn‘t
a basis?

THE COURT: What's the new evidence?

THE DEFENDANT: The new evidence is a video of the
victim confessing.

THE COURT: Where's that?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Judge, I've never heart of it until very
recently.

THE DEFENDANT: It's on my property on my phone. It's
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e Codalkachew Mekennen
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SAMMIE NUNN dt@({rcf\f‘( ’(,OUﬂ%“C .

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, Case No.: C-18-336184-1
Dept. No.: XVIII
Plaintiff,
s.
Y POST-CONVICTION PETITION FOR
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
SAMMIE NUNN, Date of hearing: November 5, 2019
Time of hearing: 9:00am
Defendant.

Petitioner, SAMMIE NUNN (hereinafter referred to as *Nunn”), by and through his
counsel of record, MARISA BORDER, ESQ., hereby files this Post-Conviction Petition for Wri{
of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS Chapter 34. This Petition, including the following Points and
Authorities, is made upon the pleadings and papers already on file, and any evidentiary hearin%

and oral argument of counsel deemed necessary by the Court.

oe4

Case Number: C-18-336184-1
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Petitioner, SAMMIE NUNN, alleges that he is being held in custody in violation of the
Fifth, Sixth, and Fourteenth Amendments of the Constitution of the United States of America, and
Articles I and IV of the Nevada Constitution.

DATED this 9" day of October, 2019.

By:  /s/ Marisa Border
MARISA BORDER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 8381
400 South 4™ Street, Suite 650
Las Vegas, NV §9101
Attorney for Petitioner
SAMMIE NUNN

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L. STATEMENT OF FACTS

In the instant case Nunn was charged after a grand jury proceeding with Battery with Us¢
of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm occurring on May 27, 2018 and Battery
with Use of a Deadly Weapon occurring on June 3, 2018. The following facts are pertaining
specifically to the events on May 27, 2018 and the case as laid out by witness testimony at the
grand jury.

Prince Alidu testified that he was at the Your Stop shop on May 27, 2018. GJ Vol 1, page
16, line 14-15. At that time, he stated that he was approached by Sammie Nunn who was asking
for 50 cents. GJ Vol 1, page 16, line 16-17. Alidu told Nunn that he did not have the 50 cents td
give him. GJ Vol 1, page 16, line 17. After that, Nunn started calling him names and eventually
Nunn walked away. GJ Vol 1, page 17, lines 4-7. Alidu testified that a few minutes later Nunn
returned with a tool in his hand. GJ Vol 1, page 17, lines 7-10. The tool was identified as a nind
to twelve inch pair of pliers. GJ Vol 1, page 17, lines 15-16 and page 18, lines 1-2. In response
to the States question, Alidu testified that Nunn then hit him in the face with the pliers. GJ Vol 1

page 18, lines 4-9.

065
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I PROCEDURAL HISTORY

After numerous court appearances regarding Nunn’s competency and a Motion to Dismisg
Counsel, which was granted, a Guilty Plea Agreement was entered into on June 6, 2019
Sentencing was held on June 11, 2019 where in Nunn was granted an opportunity on probation
Subsequently, a probation violation report was filed. On August 20, 2019 the Court allowed Mr
Goldstein to withdraw and appointed undersigned counsel to explore possible issues to substantiatd
a Motion to Withdraw the Guilty Plea Agreement.
Ill. GROUNDS FOR RELIEF
CLAIM ONE: NEW EVIDENCE, IN ADDITION TO THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED

AT THE GRAND JURY, PERSUASIVELY DEMONSTRATES NUNN
WAS ACTING IN SELF DEFENSE AND THEREFORE INNOCENT|
OF THE CHARGES STEMMING FROM MAY 27. 2018. AS SUCH
NUNN IS IMPRISONED IN VIOLATED ON HIS RIGHT TO DUE
PROCESS UNDER THE FIFTH AND FOURTEENTH
AMENDMENTS.

In Schlup, v. Delo, the United States Supreme Court found that the standard a habeas
petitioner must meet to establish a claim of actual innocence to overcome the procedural bars
requires a petitioner to show that “a constitutional violation has probably resulted in the
conviction of one who is actually innocent.” Schlup v. Delo, 513 U.S. 298, 327, 115 S. Ct. 851,
867, 130 L. Ed. 2d 808 (1995). To establish the requisite probability, the petitioner must show
that it is more likely than not that no reasonable juror would have convicted him in the light of
the new evidence. Id. The petitioner thus is required to make a stronger showing than that needed
to establish prejudice.

In assessing the adequacy of a petitioner's showing, the district court is not bound by the

rules of admissibility that would govern at trial. Instead, the emphasis on “actual innocence”

allows the court to also consider the probative force of relevant evidence that was either excluded

Obb
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or unavailable at trial. 1d. at 327-328. The court must make its determination concerning the
petitioner's innocence “in light of all the evidence, including that alleged to have been illegally
admitted (but with due regard to any unreliability of it) and evidence tenably claimed to have
been wrongly excluded or to have become available only after the trial.” Id. at 328.

The meaning of actual innocence does not merely require a showing that a reasonable
doubt exists in the light of the new evidence, but rather that no reasonable juror would have found
the defendant guilty. It is not the district court's independent judgment as to whether reasonable
doubt exists; the standard requires the district court to make a probabilistic determination about
what reasonable, properly instructed jurors would do. Thus, a petitioner does not meet the
threshold requirement unless he persuades the district court that, in light of the new evidence, no
juror, acting reasonably, would have voted to find him guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. Id. at
329. The word “reasonable” in that formulation is not without meaning. Id. It must be presumed
that a reasonable juror would consider fairly all of the evidence presented. Id. It must also be
presumed that such a juror would conscientiously obey the instructions of the trial court requiring
proof beyond a reasonable doubt. Id.

Newly presented evidence may indeed call into question the credibility of the witnesses
presented at trial. 1d. at 30. In such a case, the court may have to make some credibility
assessments. Id. Also, and more fundamentally, the focus of the inquiry is on the likely behavior
of the trier of fact. Id.

Courts have held that an evidentiary hearing regarding actual innocence is required where
the new evidence, “if credited,” would show that it is more likely than not that no reasonable jury
would find the petitioner guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. See Berry v. State, 131 Nev. Adv. Op.

96, 363 P.3d 1148, 1155 (2015); and Coleman v. Hardy, 628 F.3d 314, 319-20 (7th Cir.2010)
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(holding that within the context of 28 U.S.C. § 2254(¢)(2)(B) an evidentiary hearing “should be
granted if it could enable a habeas applicant to prove his petition's factual allegations, which, if
true, would entitle him to federal habeas relief”); Jaramillo v. Stewart, 340 F.3d 877, 883 (9th
Cir.2003) (remanding for an evidentiary hearing to resolve whether the evidence proffered to
show actual innocence was credible because that “‘evidence if credible, and considered in light of
all the evidence, demonstrate[d] that it [was) more likely than not that no reasonable juror would

have convicted [the petitioner] of the charged offenses™); Amrine v. Bowersox, 128 F.3d 1222,

1229 (8th Cir.1997) (providing petitioner made a sufficient showing to require an evidentiary
hearing on his actual innocence allegation because, “if credited, his evidence could establish

actual innocence™).

ew Evidence Discovere K/ W\J(V\t’ﬁ)?f? d(.l\\mm@ 9 ODL'
e denee D ! ﬁ&%«\m Ak Lyquoc § m%&m@

When released on probation Nunn learned of a new witness to the events transpiring on

o€ B0

May 27, 2018. This new witness, Endalkachew Mekonnen, was found and interviewed by
undersigned counsel’s investigator Mark Preusch. Mr. Mekonnen informed investigator Preusch
that he was present at the Your Stop Liquor and watched the interaction between Mr. Alidu and

Nunn. Mr. Mekonnen stated that Mr. Alidu was the primary aggressor and he aggressively
e

walked towards Nunn. Nunn continuously backed up to avoid a confrontation. It was only once

\U\j(\r\ \m") \-Ché
backed into a corner that Nunn reacted by swmgmia wrench at Mr. Alidu.

e Godecament Name was ynkasl ~

This witness was unknown to defendant Nunn and his attorney at the time the Guilty Plea

Agreement was entered into. As such, based upon this new evidence, Nunn is requesting an
evidentiary hearing and possible withdraw of his guilty plea.
Based on the foregoing, Nunn submits that he is actuaily innocent of Battery with Deadly

Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm. When reviewing all the evidence, it is more likely
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than not that no reasonable juror would have convicted Nun of the charged offense on May 27,
2019. Accordingly, justice demands that this Court grant Nunn a new trial. In the alternative,
Nunn respectfully requests an evidentiary hearing to resolve any factual disputes.
CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, Nunn’s conviction is unconstitutional under the federal and state
constitutions for the reason stated herein. Good cause exists for consideration of these claims. Mr
Nunn’s judgment of conviction must therefore be vacated.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that a post-conviction habeas petitioner “is entitled
—— T —

to a post-conviction evidentiary hearing when he asserts claims supported by specific factua

allegations not belied by the regord that, if true, would entitle him to relief.” McConnell, 125 Nev

243, 212 P.3d at 314.] In the instant matter, Nunn has asserted a claim, which, based on thd
foregoing, is clearly supported by specific factual allegations that would entitle him to relief. If
not immediately granted, alternatively, this Court should grant Nunn an evidentiary hearing tg

resolve his claims of actual innocence.

DATED this 9" day of October, 2019.

/s/ Marisa Border

MARISA BORDER, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 8381

400 South 4% Street, Suite 650
Las Vegas, NV 89101
Attorney for Petitioner
SAMMIE NUNN

DECLARATION

Under the penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that she is the appointed counsel for

the petitioner named in the foregoing Petition and knows the contents thereof: that the pleading is
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LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY, NV, TUES., JUNE 19, 2018
10:45 A. M.
-00o0 -

PROCEZEDTINGS

THE COURT: Prince Alidu versus Sammie
Nunn. And Prince Alidu will be over here and Sammie
Nunn will be over here.

Gentlemen, please remain standing so that
you can be sworn in by the clerk.

(Whereupon, all parties having been first
duly sworn to testify to the truth, the whole truth
and nothing but the truth testified as follows:)

THE CLERK: Please state your name for the

record.

MR. ALIDU: Prince Alidu.

MR. NUNN: Sammie Nunn.

THE CLERK: You may be seated.

THE COURT: So, Prince Alidu, why are we
here?

You had some stitches or something was
placed. You had an incident invoclving some

stitches?
MR. ALIDU: Yes, ma'am, and I got gome
pictures here and a police report so you can look at

it.
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N~ o~
I'm like I don't even care about you.

THE COURT: Well, vyou know what, I think
because they were visiting you --

MR. NUNN: No, we were at the store.

THE COURT: Oh, I see. »

MR. NUNN: Yeah. It had nothing to do
with me. We at the store now. At my house talking
crap about me. They don't even come to:my'house'no
more. We had a fall out.

‘ THE COURT: You all fell out?

’\l MR. NUNN: Me and my friends, we fell
ouE;\ﬁES_EEit night, we wang;—;:;;’;;:;hiike that.
So he got -- probably had a big old misunderstandiﬁg

while we over there talking crap.

That's on you, brother.

THE COURT: So he wanted to éome'fof you
for that? |

MR, NUNN: Oh, man, yeah.

THE COURT: So ybu wasn't.having that?

MR. NUNN: No, it waS—=—if was-a_grab,
motion, punch, hit. |

PR

THE COURT: Okay. I got you.

MR. NUNN: Yeah. And there was more.
people there. I was by myself. He had his people -

there so --
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MR. ALIDU:
please?

THE COURT:

MR. ALIDU:
long.

THE COURT:

MR. ALIDU:

never disrespect nobody.

Your Honor, may I speak,
Uh-huh.

I been in this country so

You been what?
In America for so long. I

He's good of lying. That

is why everything is in a court of law.

THE COURT:

MR. ALIDU:
THE COURT:
MR. ALIDU:
THE COURT:
feel disrespected.

end up having a fight?

MR. ALIDU:
boy.

THE COURT:

MR. ALIDU:

THE COURT:
off --

MR. ALIDU:

somebody else,

report right there.

he jump in it.

He went home.

Where you from?

I'm from Ghana.

Ghana. What part?
Accra.
Accra. So you here and you

You confront him and then you all

Never, never confront this
Never, never?

Never.

Never. He just walked up

He was just like me or
That is in the police

He came back.
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THE COURT: Hold up, because you don't get
to talk too much.

MR. NUNN: Okay.

MR. ALIDU: He went home and came back
before I realize that's what it is in my face.

THE COURT: I understand. S50 you and one
of his friends got into it and he jumped in?

MR. ALIDU: I don't even deal with his

friends. I don't know who is his friends. I don't
know what he's talking about. I go out, I see
people.

THE COURT: Why did he out of the clear
blue decide to hit you upside the head one day?

MR. ALIDU: The way it started, there is a
lady that I was talking to. Then he jump in. He
said, what did you say to that lady? I said, I never
said nothing.

I don't even know that lady's name. I
don't know his name in the police report. So then he
came in and said, what did you say to the lady? I
didn't say nothing to the lady. Then that was it.
Then he got upset before I see him disappear. The
next 15 minutes he came back.

THE COURT: And just out of the clear

blue --
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MR. ALIDU: Out of the clear blue.

THE COURT: -- hit you upside the head?

MR. ALIDU: I don't know if Your Honor got
this.

THE COURT: I don't have that.

MR. ALIDU: Look at my witness. That is
my witness right there that night.

THE COURT: I got 1it.

You got your message, you got your
Facebook stuff?

MR. NUNN: Yeah, yeah. You want to see

it? This is the friend he wasg with that night.

THE COURT: I don't need an editorial
version. Let me see what is on there.

You want to see what he's showing me? Do
you want to gee that before I see it?

MR. ALIDU: Okay.

THE COURT: Are you all still neighbors?
. MR. NUNN: He's my neighbor. I been

trying to get another apartment. He knows where I

| stay at.)

/
THE COURT: Why does everybody want to

tell me the whole --
(Overlapping speakers.)

THE COURT: All that talking, I missed

10

39



10

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21

22
23
24

25

your thing. You got to reset it up now. I just
asked you one question. Are you all still
neighbors?

MR. NUNN: Yeah, we still neighbors.

THE COURT: That's it.

MR. NUNN: I just didn't get to say'
nothing about the second police incident.

THE COURT: Okay, well, imn a;minute, but
‘what did I tell you from the beginning? You have
poténtially some cases comiﬁg ﬁp‘against you and
whatever you.say can be»used against you. So I am

trying to be very careful about not having you make i

any statements that could be used againsgt you, i§0u sg

k what I mean. ‘a\géN%%E%thpdd @P
) now a MR&?aNUNN; You got ?:k\‘);‘}\\\\x \\KAW

v N

A

o

THE COURT: Okay. I guess I dqn't get
it. "When I see you I am going to knock you out,
bitch, on money, gamg? W\m{ m\s ﬁ.\ﬂ«‘S\kfdlS em‘e\

MR. NUNN: Yeah, so that's His friend --

THE COURT: That ain't got nothing to do
with nothing. o

MR. NUNN: That is the friend'he was with
that he was coming up to me with.

THE COURT: Okay. So this implies that

there is -- this doesn't address the issue that he's

11
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pissed off because your mom or somebody exposed his
— L ——

sexual preference.

ﬁé. NUNN: No, she was already gone four
hours after that. So I was already going back to the
store on my own.

THE COURT: You're saying the reason that
he jumped you or tried to jump you was because he's
mad about some stuff that yvour mom had said about
him, and I am saying -- then I look and I see that
there is some kind of Facebook reference but the
Facebook does not verify or support what your mom is
saying. Do you see what I'm saying?

MR. NUNN: I see what you're saying.
Okay. We Never deves A6 m%recarés.

THE COURT: So, Mr. Alidu, I have to be
honest with you, I have a harq_gigg_eiiiszifgﬂthat

thie was just unprovoked.
e

MR. ALIDU: It is, ma'am.

THE COURT: I know you are going to tell
me that and you're really good at it, but I don't
believe that because I've lived long enough to know
folks just normally -- unless there is something --
but usually there is something that provokes folks to
hit other people. And I am trying to understand what

it was and I don't know that you like what's being

12
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said about you.

And you travel in a pack and so -- you
know what I'm saying. So whenever you see him, it
seems to me as though he's the one that's going to be

on the losing end. If I was him, I'd be carrying too

S ——rr—

/Because-I never know when you going to come with your
folks.
MR. ALIDU: I'm just by myself.

THE COURT: No, you're --

MR. ALIDU: I got a few friends.

THE COURT: -- with at least two, three

other folks when you walk to the liquor store, when

yvou go to the other places.

g

MR. ALIDU: Not true.

THE COURT: You guys live Twain and
Swenson. It ought to be true if it is not because
you don't want to walk out there at night.

MR. ALIDU: I don't go out looking for
trouble. I walk by myself.

THE COURT: It's a trouble area, but
you're usually going to be with your folks; right?

MR. ALIDU: I don't have no folks. Just
me. When I go outside I don't hide for anybody.

4 THE COURT: Even this report that you have

e

g n me doesn't support that, does not support it.

13
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(holding that within the context of 28 U.S.C. § 2254(e)(2)(B) an ev1dcnt1ary hearing “should be
granted if it could enable a habeas applicant to prove his petition's factual allegations, which, if

true, would entitle him to federal habeas relief”); Jaramillo v. Stewart, 340 F.3d 877, 883 (%th

Cir.2003) (remanding for an evidentiary hearing to resolve whether the evidence proffered to
show actual innocence was credible because that “evidence if credible, and considered in light of
all the evidence, demonstrate[d] that it [was] more likely than not that no reasonable juror would

have convicted [the petitioner] of the charged offenses”); Amrine v. Bowersox, 128 F.3d 1222,

1229 (8th Cir.1997) (providing petitioner made a sufficient showing to require an evidentiary
hearing on his actual innocence allegation because, “if credited, his evidence could establish
actual innocence™).
New Evidence Discovered

When released on probation Nunn learned of a new witness to the events transpiring on

May 27, 2018. This new witness, Endalkachew Mekonnen, was found and interviewed by

undersigned counsel’s investigator Mark Preusch. Mr. Mekonnen informed investigator Preusch
that he was present at the Your Stop Liquor and watched the interaction between Mr. Alidu and

Nunn. Mr. Mekonnen stated that Mr. Alidu was the primary aggressor and he aggrcssively

———

walked towards Nunn. Nunn continuously backed up to avoid a confrontation. It was only once

s ——— — g anpat -
A R iy 1 . iy W B e S

—-——

backed into a corner that Nunn reacted by swinging a wrench at Mr. Alidu.

T
This witness was unknown to defendant Nunn and his attorney at the time the Guilty Plea

Agreement was entered into. As such, based upon this new evidence, Nunn is requesting an
evidentiary hearing and possible withdraw of his guilty plea.
! Based on the foregoing, Nunn submits that he is actually innocent of Battery with Deadly

Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm. When reviewing all the evidence, it is more likely

QN\O& A\ SV 65(&?@ b&h ncidents
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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

}
)
Plaintiff, )
)
VS, } GJ No.
} DC No.
SAMMIE NUNN, )
)
Defendant., }
}
Taken at Las Vegas, Nevada
Tuesday, November 6, 2018
11:05 a.m.

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

VOLUME 1

Reported by: Danette L. Antonacci,

C.C.R. No.

Electronically Filed
11/16/2018 8:16 AM
Steven D. Grierson
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C336184
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Case Number: C-18-336184-1
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GRAND JURORS PRESENT ON NOVEMBER 6, 2018

RUSSELL WALKER, Foreperson 6§;\
CAROLYN JORDAN, Deputy Foreperson ; g
RACHEL TABRON, Secretary

& @\ ¢
MICHELE CRINE, Assistant Secretary \ (\

JOHN ASSELIN \}>

;@“
KATHY COX //
THERESA GAISSER \>) Q\

DAWN HERSHEY Qgg> Q;§$:\
MICHAEL HOLLINGSWORTH QQ$$J§$>
STACI HOLLINGSWORTH
@5\\&@

CHRISTOPHER KERCEL
SHARON KLINCK

g&“
JAMES MCGREGOR
ERIN SCHAPER
ROBERT TURNER
MARYLEE WHALEN

AMY YONESAWA

Also present at the request of the Grand Jury:

Megan Thomson, Chief Deputy District Attorney
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MR. ALIDU: You see the second incident,
too, though; right?

THE COURT: Hold up, held up.

MR. ALIDU: Look at the second incident.

MR. NUNN: My girlfriend was with me the
next time.

THE COURT: I don't have a second
incident. Is that something you want me fo look at?

MR. ALIDU: Yeah, I think you got the:
paperwork. |

THE COURT: I have the issue about the
flyers and the fight at the liquor store. I'm not
sure ~-- I am not sure I'm seeing anything else.

This is the paperwork that you gave me --
battery with use of a deadly weapon, and it just has
the victim's information guide. It circles the
Convention Center Area Command, but it doesn't tell
me anything‘about what'happened.

MR. ALIDU: That is the second incident.

THE COURT: This is a cover sheet thét's

provided to you when you file a police report but it

doesn't give me the specifics of --

MR. ALIDU: The police looking'into'it.
THE COURT: They very well may be, but

there is nothing written down here that would help me

14
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understand when you say the second incident.

So what is the second incident?

MR. ALIDU: He pulled a gun on me.

THE COURT: He pulled a gun on you?

MR. ALIDU: Yes.

THE COURT: For no reason?

MR. ALIDU: A different night again for no
reason.

THE COURT: Didn't have anything to do
with the beef at that liquor store?

MR. ALIDU: Nothing to do with the liquor
store.

THE COURT: So what happened? He just
walked up to you out of the clear blue?

MR. ALIDU: He just walk up to me and pull
a gun.

THE COURT: What time was 1it?

MR. ALIDU: That's about to nighttime or
in the morning.

! THE COURT: Did he pull it, or did he show

it to you?

MR. ALIDU: He pull it.

THE COURT: And then why didn't he shoot
you? Usually because, you know, they say don't pull

one 1f you ain't ready to shoot. So why didn't he

15
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shoot you?

MR. ALIDU: I don't know.

THE COURT: He pulled it and walked away?

MR. ALIDU: Police was called.

THE COURT: He pulled a2 gun on you and you
pulled out youf phone and called the police?

MR. ALIDU: I did.

THE COURT: Wow. That is rare. And you
didn't even got shot or anything?

MR. ALIDU: I'm surprised he didn't shoot
me .

THE COURT: He didn't try to stop you from
calling the police or anything?

MR. ALIDU: No. I walk away.

THE COURT: You walked away from the gun?

MR. ALIDU: I walk away, and I got

witness.

THE COURT: So you weren't really scared?

MR . ALIDU: No --

THE COURT: Because you had your boys

[ e .

there. e

MR. ALIDU: Like you said, shoot me then.
This boy right here -- ma'am, I am just being honest

——— e i

with you, I would never let him touch me again.

—— e

ey R R

That's why I'm doing this, to protect myself and

R e kit w b drer¥
T“D N

\\60*(“03 200 .
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protect him.

THE COURT: You going to protect him now
too.

MR. ALIDU: Because anytime I'm going out
somewhere now, I'm watching where I am going;..I'm
trying to move atvthe-same time too because i never
bother him, I never‘touch him. I'm d01ng thlS the

N)WWE m@‘h&m order m

right way. That's why police protec

against him to make sure that nobody going to come
after me.

THE COURT: But it also helps you be in a

that if you do do something to h1n16;;::E§?73
End up éettlng in tré;gigj)Qg_\cfﬁﬁk\Ufb

MR . NUNN: Yeah.

THE COURT: Hold up. Did you --

MR . NUNN: No, no, no, I didn't do

anything.

THE COURT: Well, he pulled é'gun on you.
You walked away and called the police. I have never
heard about people who get -- you know, if somebody

’pulls:a gun, normally YOu do what they say do, not
what you want to do, but you weréﬁ't,even.wofriéd
about it. | .

MR. ALIDU: Unless you want to scare me

for that now.
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THE COURT: He sgscared you. You think you

thought you were ared ou walked away and cglled

the police.

™ MR. ALIDU: I did.

&fﬁﬁgﬁggyTHE COURT: You weren't really scared.
e SR

g%ﬁg MR. ALIDU: I got to do what I do.

NS o5  THE COURT: Yeah, you do got to do what

you got to do, but you don't have to do what you got
to do based on what people say, you know what I'm
saying.

You guys are grown men. fou should know
how to handle yourselves. You guys live in the same
community. You probably going to be there for a
minute so everybody going to have to stand on their
own two, and neither one of you are exempt from the
police coming after you.

And you are in a situation where, even

though you*ve been here for a long time, there is a

likelihood that you could not be if you continue --
if you put yourself in a situation.
X \Xe\odksr P an invogEr
So I get why you are d01ng this, but I'm
not going to let you do this like this. Okay.
S0 we going to call it a day today;
right? You all are going to let whatever beef is

going on, let it go, and I am not granting a

18
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temporary protective oxrder, and if there are cases
filed against this gentleman or against you, you all
will be able to litigate them in criminal court.

In the meantime I would suggest that you
sboth go your separate ways and don't get into this
thing with the groups, that having friends contact
friends and all that, because it's going to come back
to you now that you have got a history of being in
—

Y,

court.

N Do you understand what I'm saying?
MR. NUNN: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Thank you very much,

\
-000- P &fﬁ\‘
Ve Ak Ve X D, W\g&&

ATTEST: FULL, TRUE, ACCURATE AND CERTIFIED
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS.

gentlemen. Have a good day.

L

¢ N
| ">\\z\,@ e (( _JKﬁf '

Shawn E. Ott, CCR No. 577
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that.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- there's more of it — yeah that's
probably about right.

MS. THOMSON: That's - that's basically — and then there
was some interaction between some girl; but the short version

being, the Defendant has always said it's self-defense. The victim

has always said it was completely a random attack, but when | have

the problem of two very inconsistent versions of events with the
Your Stop Liquor firearm incident, it created a position where if I'm

standing in front a jury, I'm having to say completely believe him

on this one but, you know, that one you make your decusuon,(an

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And | can tell the Cg“lbf %at I spoke amth

about a week ago. He’s the main victim on one of thf‘

counts -

MS. THOMSON: Oh, he would talk to you?
MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- he called me about a week
MS. THOMSON: Congratulations. 4“(\0{/
MR. GOLDSTEIN: He says the victim was - | don t ew_,‘%l

show up for Grand Jury. [unintelligible] inquiry.

winesd o
MS. THOMSON: He was t\l;z c\)':z. who wa
5 N\
S SW W AL Wg‘\m)

MR. GOLDSTEIN:

el

He says Prlnce was drunk and started

popping flash to Sammie\that would've been his testimony had

&ﬁr& (W?' Prnce Muds Slackd looth

/155

Page 12
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this case gone to trial. This is the named victim on - | don't
remember which case, but -)
MS. THOMSON: It's the firearm one.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- the firearm one. So, it's -
H THE COURT: What's his mental health issue? He appears

einkad, oA s §

to have one. _) /”ﬂ “\gééQ{K 5\1\"@9 \o 0 O
MR. GOLDSTE!N:‘

) His — I'm in good contact
with his mother who lives in Oakland. If he gets probation, he's

going to go live with his mother in Oaklgnd. | spoke with her as

Lecently as last week. He [unintelligible] mental health. | don't

know ~ was from an acute injury, TDI.

THE COURT: All ringt. Can you give me something that |
can order as a special condition? Can you look into something -

can you do mental health court or something that makes me feel
- ——

‘more protected.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: He's really trying to go to Oakland - |
mean as soon as possible to go live with his mom. | mean
interstate compact, so when - right away.

THE COURT: Well does she have a program there that |
can agree that he can go to?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | don't know when the last time he went
there was, but his mom has lived forever | know. His mom has
lived there forever, and | can only assume there’s some kind of - he
has doctors out there because he used to live there; but | can ask if

there’s any kind of program.

Page 13 / S—é
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200.200. Killing in self-defense.

If a person kills another in self-defense, it must appear that:

1. The danger was so urgent and pressing that, in order to save the
to prevent the person from receiving great bodily harm, the killing of
necessary, an_d

2. The person killed was the assailant, or that the slayer had
endeavored to decline any further struggle before the mortal blow was.gi

C&P 1911, § 137, RL 1912, § 6402; CL 1929, § 10084.

NOTES TO DECISI
Burden of proof to show self-defense. Since self-de ates elements of murder, a defendant
so accused in this state cannot be required to carry th 2n of proving self-defense by a

preponderance of the evidence. Kelso v. State, 95
denied, 442 U.S. 921, 99 S. Ct. 2846, 61 L 2

A killing in necessary self-defense Jf
95 Nev. 37, 588 P.2d 1035, 1979 Né
2d 289 (1979).

No “imperfect self-defense
would reduce a murder charge to o
in the necessity for seif-defense does

42 U.S. 921, 99 S. Ct. 2846, 61 L. Ed.

there is no “imperfect self-defense” theory that
aughter; thus, an honest, but unreasonable belief
e mali€e and does not result in a reduction of the degree
70, 1982 Nev. LEXIS 454 (1982).

e defendant voluntarily entered into mutual combat, neither the defense of
rule was relevant, and such instructions given improperly benefitted
v. 403, 610 P.2d 735, 1980 Nev. LEXIS 604 {1980}.

ant is the original assailant. The rule of law declaring that a person

» tipon the assumption that he is not at fauit in commencing the

bringifigEon the encounter, before he can justify the killing it must appear that

to decline any further struggle before the mortal blow was given. State v.
1931 Nev. LEXIS 50 (1931).

assailed need not ref
encounter; if he is.a

he had in good 4
Robison, 54

ate v. Grimmett, 33 Nev. 531, 112 P. 273, 1810 Nev. LEXIS 37 (1910}, stands for
da does not require a person to retreat when he reasonably believes that he is
eadly force. Culverson v. State, 106 Nev. 484, 797 P.2d 238, 1990 Nev. LEXIS

' not the original aggressor, has no duty to retreat before using deadly force, if a

1

© 2011 Matthew Bender & Company, Inc., a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. Use of this product is subject to the
restrictions and terms and conditions of the Matthew Bender Master Agreement.
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reasonable person in the position of the nonaggressor would believe that his assailant is about to kill him
or cause him serious bodily harm. Culverson v. State, 106 Nev. 484, 797 P.2d 238, 1990 Nev. LEXIS 103
{1990).

Battered woman syndrome jury instructions. The lack of consistency among
self-defense instructions together with the failure to give an instruction regarding the relation
a person's state of mind and the battered woman syndrome constituted error,
defendant was not convicted of first degree murder, the error of failure to properly j
harmiess. Boykins v. State, 2000 Nev. LEXIS 17, 116 Nev. 171, 995 P.2d 474 (20

this section, district court erred in refusing defendant's specific instruction on.
the defendant to the theory of actual danger. The instructions may have
that the defendant's actions were not justified even if they found thx
brandished by the victim but was mistaken in that belief. Runion v.
1041, 13 P.3d 52 (2000).

RESEARCH REFEREN

Admissibility of evidence as to other's character o i ¥ ulence on question on
self-defense by one charged with assault or homicide. 1 A.

Relationship with assailant's wife as provocati
A.L.R.3d 933.

Unintentional killing or injury to third pers
Withdrawal, after provocation of "

Accused's right, in homicide.case,

ed as to both unintentional shooting and
self-defense. 15 A.L.R.4th 983.

2

© 2011 Matthew Bender & Company, Inc., a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. Use of this product is subject to the
restrictions and tesms and conditions of the Matthew Bender Master Agreement.
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Terrence M. Jackson, Esquire
Attorney at Law
&
624 South Ninth Street Las Vegas, NV 893101

T: (702) 386-0001 / F: (702) 386-0085
March 17, 2021

Confidential Law Office Mail

Sammie Nunn, ID# 1226304

Three Lakes Conservation Center [TLCC]
Post Office Box 208

Indian Springs, NV 89070-0208

Open Only in inmate’s Presence

Re:  Request for release of legal file
Dear Mr. Sammie Nunn:

Your mother called me on March 16, 2021, telling me you wanted your appeal file including
all the appellate record. Please send me a request for the record in writing. Your mother also told me
that you wanted me to do some further legal work for you. I can not do that. Having taken your case
to the Nevada Supreme Court and having received their written opinion, that concludes my
appointed work for you.

I will now be happy to release the entire file to you. I will ask you to sign the return the
release of file form when you receive this letter and then mail it back to me. You must understand
that once I have sent you the file I will not be able to do anything further in your case.

Although I cannot represent you further, I advise you that if you wish to do further appeals
in your case, that you should contact the Federal Public Defender office in Las Vegas, Nevada, and
possibly they can assist you in filing a Writ in Federal Court. Their address is 411 E. Bonneville,
Suite 250, LV, NV, 89101, phone # 702.388.6577.

e . Sincerely,

/’

Terrence M, Jackson,

Enc.: File Release Form; (’k d\.ﬂ &kg

self addressed stamped envelope
cc: file
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Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
RTRAN Cﬁu—l‘ﬂ““

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
)
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
) CASE NO. C-18-336184-1
Plaintiff, ;
V8. )} DEPT. NO. XViI
)
SAMMIE NUNN,
Defendant.
}
BEFORE THE HONORABLE MARY KAY HOLTHUS, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2019
RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS:
MOTIONTO DISMISS COUNSEL
APPEARANCES;
For the Plaintiff: ALICIA A. ALBRITTON
Chief Deputy District Attorney
For the Defendant: ANTHONY M. GOLDSTEIN, ESQ.

RECORDED BY: YVETTE SISON, COURT RECORDER
1

Case Number: C-18-336184-1 ;4 2 (o
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2019, 9:08 A.M.

THE CLERK: Page 8, State of Nevada versus Sammie Nunn,
C336184. 7

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, Anthony Goldstein for the defendant.
He's here in custody.

THE COURT: Hello, what's going on?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, this is the defendant's second motion
of this nature. He was found incompetent, came back competent, filed this shortly
thereafter. | can address the matter set forth in the motion if you'd like.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | mean, I've visited him, | don’t know how many
times, many times. I've personally visited the alleged crime scene and spoke with
the manager, tried to get a copy of the video tape, tried to interview employees. I've
talked about plea bargains with him many, many times, including with Ms. Thomson,
who’s not here. She’s out — not coming today, but it's her case.

I'm not really sure about some of the other claims he’s making. | don't
understand a good portion of the motion, Your Honor, but I've done what | can. I'm
the second attorney on the case. He had Ms. Waldo prior to me. I'm sure the file
indicates what happened with his previous attorney, but everything’s moving
forward, Your Honor, from my end anyway.

THE COURT: Mr. Nunn, here’s the reality; you have an excellent
aftorney assigned to you. | don’t see anything in your motion. I'm not — I'm not sure
— I'm not even sure really what you're complaining about, frankly.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay, what I'm complaining about is there’s
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evidence that, basically, | didn’t do the crime. He said that it doesn’t exist. My mom
came down and got the transcripts from the Court. | gave him the transcripts, then
he told me he hasn't iooked at them. Then after he told me he had looked at them,
he said that he don’t know about them, and then he pulled it up on his phone. |
mean, we're having a failure to communicate.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah, that's true.

THE DEFENDANT: We haven't —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | actually emailed it to Ms. Thomson last week
because she asked me for it, so | had it. There was a miscommunication. | agree
about that, but there is a transcript, yeah.

THE DEFENDANT: We haven't — we haven't brought that transcript
into evidence. On top of that, we haven't gone over the Grand Jury —

THE COURT: The transcript is already in the record. So it's not trial
time —

THE DEFENDANT: It's not -

THE COURT: - there’s no evidence in right now.

THE DEFENDANT: it's not — it's not in the record as far as this case.
It's a TPC hearing that was done outside of this case. So he —

THE COURT: Well, it's not time to bring in evidence here. It's — the
trial isn't until June.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, that's fine. He also — we haven't gone over
any other evidence or talked about any of the other transcripts or the Grand Jury
indictment transcripts. | don’t think that we should be able to just wait 'til trial and
then start going over everything.

THE COURT: Okay, well -
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THE DEFENDANT: [ think | have - | need a fair chance at trial. On top
of that, he haven't — he hasn't given — or called back my mom. She calls him all the
time.

THE COURT: He is not required to call back your mom.

THE DEFENDANT: That's fine, but | —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And I've spoke with his mom.

THE DEFENDANT: —but | - but | granted her to be able to get
information from him.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your mom in Qakland, right?

THE DEFENDANT: He doesn’t — he doesn’t answer the phone for me
at all, so | stopped trying fo call. We haven't — we haven't — we also haven't had any
contact visits. | mean, there’s a lot, there's a lot. We're not getting anywhere.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: If you want me to respond to it. | spoke with his
mom.

THE COURT: Please, | do.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: She’s in Oakland, California, right, Sammie?

THE DEFENDANT: And also —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Prior to recommending him for — or request to he be
evaluated for competency, | spoke with his mom. She doesn’t have any information
about the case. She wasn'tinvolved in any way, but | spoke with her about him a
while back. There hasn't been any reason to talk to his mom recently, so | haven't.

THE DEFENDANT: Also, we called the store that he claimed that he
went to go talk to the employees and all that stuff; nobody’s seen him, heard of him,
or anything. The owner at the store doesn’t know what he's talking about. The

witness, Brook, he actually works there. | had a witness on my side of somebody
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that works there, and Brook hasn't talked to him, been interviewed by anybody, he's
waiting. He's like, if somebody was going to interview me, I'm sitting here, | work
here every night, you know what I'm saying, I'm sitting here, it's a 24-hour store,
you could come anytime and interview me. He hasn't been to the store. | mean — |
mean, | know you might buying a little of his crap that he’s trying to give you, but he
hasn't done anything.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, November 13™, 2018, | went to 820
East Twain, which is the Your Stop store. | spoke with a manager by the name of
A.J. and asked if there's any video.

THE DEFENDANT: A.J., what's —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | gave —

THE DEFENDANT: - his real name?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: He gave me the name of A.J. | didn’t —

THE DEFENDANT: That doesn’t make any sense.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | didn’t check his birth certificate, but —

THE DEFENDANT: You haven't been down there. That's not —

THE COURT: Excuse me.

THE DEFENDANT: - his real name.

THE COURT: Somebody's speaking, you don’t speak over them,
okay?

THE DEFENDANT: He just spoke over me.

THE COURT: He did not. | asked him to answer the question.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And | gave my card to Fidel, the manager, on
November 13", in case anything popped up. So | went to the store, not that that

was in doubt, but —

/30

69




W 0 N & g A WO -

N NN N N N N = b emhk b ek ek e b e
G AW N = O © 0N R N = O

THE DEFENDANT: You're —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Whether he believes me — or whether the defendant
believes me or not is a different issue, Your Honor, but I'm doing my job. And,
again, I'm —

THE DEFENDANT: We called down —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: — just not sure what his — all of his complaints are all
about. I've done all this work personally.

THE COURT: And | appreciate it. | don’t see any grounds here to
dismiss counsel.

Here are your options, Mr. Nunn: You may — are free to retain your
own counsel, hopefully by the trial date — the trial date is June 17— or if you
choose, you can proceed on your own, but you'd be required to undergo a Faretta
canvass, and | will tell you, you don’t want to represent yourself. It's not a good
idea. You have a right to.

THE DEFENDANT: If you're giving me the option to represent myself
or have this guy represent me —

THE COURT: Or retain another attorney.

THE DEFENDANT: - ! will represent myself.

THE COURT: Okay, we will — you need to think about it and do a little
research.

THE DEFENDANT: | don’t wanna think. I've been thinking for —

THE COURT: Well, | don't have —

THE DEFENDANT: I've been here over a year.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Sammie, don’t interrupt the Judge.

THE COURT: What part of stop don’t you get, okay?
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THE DEFENDANT: I've been a whole year. You don't think I've
thought about this?
THE COURT: I'm just going to give you a — | want you to ask around

and consider whether you're certain you want to have a Faretta canvass and

represent yourself, okay. | don’t have time to do it today and | don't want to do it
without you having done some research and thought about it. Representing yourself
is huge, so we'’re going to put it —

THE DEFENDANT: Getting time in the penitentiary for something you
haven't done is huge.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to pass this for — what’s our next
available that's good?

THE DEFENDANT: This guy sucks, man. That's on the record.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Knock it off.

THE COURT: You know what, perhaps if you would show a little more
respect.

THE DEFENDANT: Respect.

THE CLERK: May 23",

THE COURT: Okay, May 23".

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, I'll go visit him prior to that and go over
Nevada Supreme Court Rule 253 with him, which goes over self-representation,
okay.

THE COURT: | appreciate that. Thank you.
"
"
m
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THE DEFENDANT: | don't know why you didn’t just grant my motion. |
don’t get along with him.
PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 9:15 A.M.

ek ok kR ok ok ok kK

ATTEST: |do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the audio-
video recording of this proceeding in the above-entitled case.

Ao Cncpan

LARA CORCORAN
Court Recorder/Transcriber
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, MAY 23, 2019, 10:31 A M.
THE CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie Nunn, C336184.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Good morning, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Good morning.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Anthony Goldstein for the defendant. He's here in

custody. Your Honor, just briefly, we're on for a Faretta canvass. The State gave

me a new and improved offer yesterday afternoon, which | consider very fair. |
conveyed it to the defendant today. He rejected that offer, specifically, battery with
use of a deadly weapon. The State would not oppose probation. It would also
agree to an OR with house arrest after entry of plea.

| guess the issue is he doesn't have a house right now, so he might not
be able to get released anyway, so he rejected that offer and he wants to go forward
with the Faretta canvass this morning. Last week | visited him after our hearing,

went over Nevada Supreme Court Rule 253 with him and went over Faretta and all

matters relating to self-representation, so he should be ready to go forward with the
canvass today, Your Honor.

THE COURT: That's what you want to do?

THE DEFENDANT: That's what I'm being forced to do here.

THE COURT: You're not being forced to do anything. You have an
excellent attorney that the State is providing you free of charge. If - | can’t make
you, although | can tell you that — | guess there’s one of — Mr. Hudsoh will tell you
he went to trial on his own the first time and was convicted of everything, and the -
he went with counsel the next time and they were able to get it down to one charge,

but you can do what you want to do. So what do you want to do?

(L0eCCOn Nuog wany ko %}&% *5&'{‘%&
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THE DEFENDANT: | would like to get alternate counsel?

THE COURT: You're free to hire counsel.

THE DEFENDANT: I'm indigent.

THE COURT: There — you have a - like | said, you have a good
counsel there. There’s nothing in your motion that warrants alternate counsel. So
do you want to — you want to consider the offer? Yake, f\(\ﬁﬁ;‘ [mﬁ i% lﬁ\

THE DEFENDANT: Do | —do | have a right to have my evidence? Q;;g (@iﬁ‘
mean, because there was video tapes in the beginning, there was witnesses. atN” o

THE COURT: I'm certain that Mr. Goldstein will get all of the discovery
if it gets — is it — ‘% { >ﬁ

THE DEFENDANT: | don’t even have the discovery. I've had him for
eight months. | don’t have discovery in either case. All | have is the Grand Jury
indictment transcript. SQ\T hWe T i\\ WAS o\ SN) 8 \)\E}t-s

THE COURT: Okay, well, your trial is still almost a month away. I'm
assuming you — do you have everything you need, Mr. Goldstein?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I've sentit to him. | mean, it's possible when he
went up to — when he was found incompetent, it's possible that some of the items
got misplaced somewhere in transport, but he has everything for sure. 1 mean, I've
given it to him. Whether it’s been misplaced by him or in transport, | don't know, but
he has everything, or at least at one point he's -

THE COURT: Can you -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: — had everything.

THE COURT: Can you re-give it to him?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Sure.

THE COURT: Allright, let's put this on next week, status check the

[5G
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discovery, and then we’'ll do your Earetta then, okay. And you can think about it as

well, in the meantime, make sure.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. Oh, for the record, | know — | came out here
to Nevada as an electrician. I'm a journeyman. | came out here just to work at
Tesla. | worked at Tesla for a year, did a great job at doing commission and selling
parts and then making sure that things went right. And when | — when they
transferred me back to Las Vegas | rented an apartment for a year, which the lease
was just up while I've been incarcerated. | paid the money upfront. So | don’t have a
place to live, so | can’t — | don't know about taking house arrest. | don’t have
anybody out here. I'm just out here for work.

THE COURT: All right. Well, why don’t you talk with Mr. Goldstein and
have Mr. Goldstein talk with the State and see if — what they could work out, if
anything, okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: Mr. Goldstein, stay on another week and just see if —
see if there's anything you can do with the kinks of that deal maybe.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It's Megan -

MS. THOMSON: It was already a modified down from the prior offer.
I'm not going anymore off of that.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It's Megan's case. |- ‘Jj\o (§<

THE COURT: Well, or maybe you can find him a house. K \)\G Q ‘X

THE DEFENDANT: Well, | gotta go back to work. \N«l’

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Find him a house. Okay. 4—-———’ w

THE COURT: I'll allow — Ms. — I'm going to give him a little —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Spanish Trail or where — anywhere specific?
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THE COURT: I'm just going to give him — I'm going to just give him a

little time just to — will you guys approach?
(Conference at the Bench)

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Sorry about that.

THE COURT: That's ali right. | just — | mean if that's the sticking point
if he wants the deal, but it's an —

MS. THOMSON: | - here’s —

THE COURT: - impossibility, then it seems silly not to do it, right?

MS. THOMSON: My offer from pretty much go has been like right to

argue. Mr. Goldstein gave me some stuff. I'm willing to let him out with house

arrest, but he’s attacked this man twice. He sent people to tell him that he'll be killed X &

it he comes to court. I'm not releasing him without house arrest. | don't - )\
- i TN, DAt
THE COURT: Oh, no, 1 get it. £ \\@%&

MS. THOMSON: That's unfortunate for him, but that's, frankly, not my LQ\

P i
problem. Q@L QQ\
Nee Wt
THE COURT: But - Ny

A

temporary housings because of his general attitude, but | can try and get him into -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: He’s not a great candidate for like one of those

like 1 don’t think he’s going to stay a like a mission-type place, like a, you know,
rescue-mission-type place. He's —

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: |can try. And he doesn't have a drug problem

4
either that I'm aware of, so this isn’t a drug case, it's a — 6\(’, 8)2 00‘
W& Q

MS. THOMSON: It's just an attitude problem. A——Q‘;\\g,

MR. GOLDSTEIN: - mental-health-issue case. | mean, some of it's his
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fault, some of it's mental health issues.

MS. THOMSON: Right.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: But it's not a drug case, so | can’t — he won't be
accepted into any kind of like, you know, Salvation-Army-type Klace because he
doesn’t have a drug problem. So he's - 4"’50 1ﬂ feens oC & d{\a WA

MS. THOMSON: I'm not trying to be a dick, ! just ~

THE COURT: No, | totally get it. I'm — | was just — if that was what was

holding it up, I was trying to think of how we can structure house arrest W|thout a

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It's —and it’s also no opp probatlon S0 he i try and
leave the State as soon as possible, once - if he gets probation because the deal is
no opp now. Megan was very flexible when it come — when it came to that, but it's
the house arrest thing, which | asked yesterday and she said no about the regular,
so fair enough. It was — she came down fairly. | say it was fair.

MS. THOMSON: Thanks, | think so too.

THE COURT: Well, | guess technically I'm not supposed to get
involved in this. I'm like, all right — 4—E)(CK{3“»{ ot M\’w“«*{ A Yo

MR. GOLDSTEIN: That's okay. \Z e

THE COURT: - already have, so. But | mean, | — we could maybe

facilitate a faster sentencing date for him if — you know, if you do — if you did the deal
*-(

- he took the deal but couldn’t get out, but maybe fwe could — m%m%l-{,s W@{ A
‘%h‘& and 0¥
MR. GOLDSTEIN: No. b} \\ﬂvJsMS W\Y/\d (re i

MS. THOMSON: Do we have a PSI|?

MS. THOMSON: Okay. |didn’t remember how early he —
MR. GOLDSTEIN: No.

, T nok opders

ke

Phow

U
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MS. THOMSON: - moved to a trial. Are you sure? Let me go get my
file. You stay here.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Because he got — if you read the file, | only got on
this because he had some very serious issues with Ms. Waldo. Did you read that?

THE COURT: No.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Judge Togliatti was aware of it.

MS. THOMSON: Oh, maybe we don't. Maybe we have one in the —
what case —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: He told psychologists that he had ideations of kallmg
his attorney, which was at the time, Ms. Waldo. Qﬂ)‘f

THE COURT: Oh my God. V\’W\O \a \r\f; \oeZR ‘Sfr\‘( Jm”

MR. GOLDSTEIN: So she withdrew, obwously ‘&\‘:200\ a0
¢ ,
MS. THOMSON: One time. ook 400 & b Q‘g el

MR. GOLDSTEIN: - and | got appointed, and he's just very up and
down. | mean, but that's not confidential, that's — that was all on the record and
that's why | was appointed to begin with. It wasn't a serious threat, but it’s still - you
know, it —

MS. THOMSON: Bam.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Oh, we do have a PSI. So for other reasons, | got
appointed and then withdrew his guilty plea, which —

MS. THOMSON: Now we have to see if it's his.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: - Judge Togliatti granted, so that's why we kind of

went back to square one. But Megan is smarter than m , She noticed there was a

PSt made after his first plea. The D‘(ﬁeggw\f (nse. W‘rﬁ\ ‘rﬂkl%e

MS. THOMSON: So the only thing is we’'d have to kind of waive
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defects because it's the PSI from the information, not including both for when it was

indicted.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah, but that's easy.

MS. THOMSON: But that -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: There’s a PSI from six months ago.

MS. THOMSON: Yeah.

THE COURT: Well, let’s put it on for next week. Let me know what's
going on. At least 'm going to have to give victims the opportunity to speak and
stuff.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah.

THE COURT: So we wouldn't —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: He's around too.

THE COURT: - be able to something sooner, like that day, unless we
call and the victim says she doesn’t — they don’t want to come, because we're not

going to do the plea, obviously, now.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: We couldn’t — weill, | have the GPA, but we couldn't
do it now. Well, I'll talk to him.

THE COURT: | don’'t see — well —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: This is all new, so.

MS. THOMSON: Yeah, | didnt think about the fact that this existed —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay.

MS. THOMSON: — until -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah, we can come back in a week or whatever,
that'’s fine.

THE COURT: You want to do that?

14/
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MR. GOLDSTEIN: You got a lot going on to hear anyway today.

THE COURT: |do.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: When Rabb comes up you'll have more going on.

THE COURT: | don't know what's going on over there, but —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It's a rough group today.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thark you.

(Conference at the Bench concluded)

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Based on our conversation at the bench, Your
Honor, I'll talk to Mr. Nunn for a few moments. You can trail this if you need.

THE COURT: Okay. Anb W (g

(Matter recalled at 11:16 a.m.)

THE CLERK: State of Nevada versus SammigNunn,/ggej,gﬁsf\

THE COURT: Have you talked to him? \”Q\\_

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yes, and | gave him a copy of the PSI that he

requested. If we could come back in a week? | want to go over to visit him again.
I'll go over the GPA. | don't know where he’s at in accepting the deal, but | just - if
we come back in a week, hopefully we can get him potentially pled and sentenced
next week.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I'll speak with Ms. Thomson as well.

THE COURT: Allright. If you guys are going to want to go forward with
sentencing next week, get me what | need and - 4"‘“‘\(' { o G\\'\i& 1\\

r

St Yo o
MR. GOLDSTEIN: We'll keep your staff looped in.

et pad

THE COURT: — make sure you come in with the victim understanding |

)\

wnk
NN

b\i e\k’\)’u
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that that could be happening.
MS. THOMSON: Yes.
THE COURT: Please. Okay.
THE CLERK: May 30™, 9 a.m.
THE COURT: It's for possible negotiations and possible sentencing.
PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 11:17 AM.

* ok ok ok ok ok ko k R

ATTEST: |do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the audio-
video recording of this proceeding in the above-entitled case.

Hva Dncyon

LARA CORCORAN
Court Recorder/Transcriber
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like, we can go forward with sentencing the Defendant today.

Las Vegas, Nevada, Thursday, June 6, 2019

[Hearing began at 9:63 a.m.]

THE COURT CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie
Nunn, C336184.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, Anthony Goldstein for the
Defendant; he's present in custody. | just submitted a GPA that the
Defendant has already signed.

THE COURT: What are the negotiations?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, today, the Defendant will
plead guilty to battery with use of a deadly weapon; that's a
Category B Felony. The State will not oppose probation. The GPA

also states that the State will not oppose the Defendant's release omf_

g ; \
house arrest after entry of plea\howeve?, we have a PSI from a -KQ\

related case that we're asking the Court to use today, so if you'd
e e e -

In addition, Your Honor, we're stipulating to an underlying
sentence of 2 to 5, which we interlineated; and both Ms. Thomson
and | initialed that change in Court today.

MS. THOMSON: That's correct.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: So, on lines 21 and 22, when it first OR
after - OR with house arrest after entry of plea, that's moot,
assuming the Court is going to sentence the Defendant today.

THE COURT: You know, here’s my issue with that: | - |

don't - especially on violent PSI -
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MR. GOLDSTEIN: Can we approach?
THE COURT: Yes.
[Bench Conference]
THE COURT: Oh, oh, oh is the PSI the same offense?
MS. THOMSON: Yes, it is.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: It's the same case.
THE COURT: Okay.
MS. THOMSON: Yes, he waived up, and then | indicted

and added another case to this but - -
THE COURT: It's all good then. od— QD \5< \,\)}\%\5(

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And he entered a plea and

subsequently Judge Togliatti -
MS. THOMSON: Yeah.
THE COURT: Okay. That's fine. | just wanted - if he ends

up in prison, | want to make sure they have the underlying.

MS. THOMSON: It's a different(case numbebbecause | E)C
U\

w
indicted in between — KW

THE COURT: All good. &r&-&é

MS. THOMSON: -- but it's not a different case.
THE COURT: All good. We're good. Thank you.
[Bench Conference Concluded]
THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Nunn, is that your understanding
of the negotiations?
THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.
THE COURT: What's your full name?
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THE DEFENDANT: Sammie Nunn [unintelligible] -

THE COURT: How old are you?

THE DEFENDANT: I'm 29.

THE COURT: How far did you go in school?

THE DEFENDANT: Vocational.

THE COURT: Do you read, write, and understand the
English language?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Are you currently under the influence of any
drug, medication, or alcoholic beverage right now?

THE DEFENDANT: No ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you understand the proceedings that are
happening here today?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.
/ THE COURT: Have you received a copy of the
information charging you with battery with use of a deadly
| weapon?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you understand the charges contained in
the information?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Have you discussed this case with your
attorney?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: As to the charge set forth in the information
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how do you plead, guilty or not guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty.

THE COURT: Are you making this plea freely and
voluntarily?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Has anyone forced or threatened you or
anyone close to you to get you to enter this plea?

THE DEFENDANT: No ma‘am.

THE COURT: Has anyone made you promises other than
what is contained in the guilty plea agreement to get you to enter
this plea?

THE DEFENDANT: No ma'am.

THE COURT: | have before me a written plea agreement.
Have you signed this plea agreement?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma‘'am.

THE COURT: Is that your signature on page 5?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Before you signed it, did you read it and
discuss it with your attorney?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

B THE COURT: Do you understand everything contained in
this agreement?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you understand the constitutional rights
you're giving up by entering this plea of guilty?
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you understand the appellate rights tha)
you are giving up by entering this plea of guilty?
— THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you understand if you are not a United

-

States Citizen, that entering a plea of guilty may have immigration
consequences including deportation?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you understand the range of punishment
is from 2 to 10 years in the Nevada Department of Corrections and
you may also be fined up to $10,0007

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you understand that whether or not you
receive probation is strictly up to me?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: And that sentencing is up to me including
whether the counts will run consecutive or concurrent?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: And no one can promise you probation,
leniency, or any special treatment?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Are you pleading guilty in truth and in fact
because you did - between May 27, 2018 and June 3, 2018 here in
Clark County, Nevada, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously use

force or violence upon Prince Alidu with use of a deadly weapon,
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that being a firearm and/or 12-inch pair of pliers, by hitting Prince
Alidu in the head with a firearm or striking him with the pliers?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Is that sufficient for the State?

MS. THOMSON: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, before you accept the plea,
you asked the question about is he under the influence of any
,_c_irugs. He is definitely taking prescribed medications from the

Detention Center Medical Staff. He's very tucid today. | have no -1

T

visited him twice since the last hearing, Your Honor. He
understands the terms of the deal, and | just want to clarify for the
record that he is taking preWm the Detention
L Center Staff.

-

————

THE COURT: Do they help you understand things better?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any questions you
would like to ask me or your attorney before 1 accept your plea? Do
you have any question for anybody?

THE DEFENDANT: No ma'am.

THE COURT: Okay. The Court finds the Defendant's plea
of guilty is freely and voluntarily made and that the Defendant
understands the nature of his offense and the consequences of his
plea and, therefore, accepts his plea of guilty.

This matter is referred to the Department of Parole and

Probation -
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MS. THOMSON: It doesn't need to be.

THE COURT: -- noit's not, it's undone. Qkay. That's
accepted. Thank you. This is a right to argue?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: No op fsic/probation.

MS. THOMSON: It is the no op [sic/probation. It had
been a right to argue, | believe, on the original negotiation that he
was permitted to withdraw his plea, and that is the PSI from the fact
pattern. The only difference now is the no op /sic/probation from
the State’s perspective.

THE COURT: Ali right. Counsel approach.

v Cﬂ{ —}& [Bench Conference] s ’_‘_\1\@06@\5\*

THE COURT: I'm going to make a record of the no op /sic/

LR

probation before | move to go along with it. I'm not inclined to go

along with no op /[sic/ probation.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: in the GPA, he accepted it.”
MS. THOMSON: So, what happened is | obtained -
THE COURT: No, they’'re not opposing it but that doesn't

mean I'm giving it -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: M?v
| wanted

THE COURT: --so to give you the heads up

before we do the sentencing, that when I've got P&P
recommending a 3 to 10 and when | look at it, it appears to be - my
recollection is that it was an unprovoked pretty vicious attack.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I think we can -

MS. THOMSON: That's obviously our perspective. But

Kt éj&;@@&\% S SJQQ@%O@ o\\wgit\x@c\n
’\A‘\Q &c&d& %GC\/ HC \QC\A.
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Q%@Qf 1 [| your perspective is different — well his perspective, | don't know
\1§ {2 || about yours. His perspective is certainly different. We can address
- & iQD 3 |{ them or given if the Court wants —
H‘ }S‘ N— “%- MR. GOLDSTEIN: You want it right now or on the record?
NSO THE counn@@
\j\\@ é 6 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay -

C\‘L \(} 7 THE COURT: But you could - | mean we can do it anyway;
8 || I'm just telling you right now that I'm going to need something else
¢ || before you going to convince me that probation is appropriate.

10 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay, | can have that. The main reason
11 || is there was a restraining order hearing between this defendant and
12 || the named victim, Prince Alidu. Judge Bennett-Heron presided

13 || overit. The victim, Prince Alidu — | mean | emailed you the -

14

w 6
\E&g 17
\E' 18
§ Y 19
3 20

hall

MS. THOMSON: Yeah.
| MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- his statements were very

inconsistent. (Ju/dgm;?and | can show it to you if you want,
= —

didn't belie%ﬁﬁng‘ﬁﬁce was saying. So | think that was part

of the reason the State decided to lower its offer, because Prince
___-___-—

came into court, gave conflicting factual accounts of the encounters .
T

E_l_gg_ﬂl____enalse the Judge was saying things like - | don't know

MS. THOMSON: -- | -
~$ MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- how can | believe he did this? Why is
- how is the Court going to believe sir that did this and this?
MS. THOMSON: -- my -

&
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MR. GOLDSTEIN: This was on the record during a -

-- my modification of the offer, | want to

be very clear, had nothing to do with Judge Bennett’s perspective
because that frankly was irrelevant to me.

The - when | indicted the case, there had been a second
case that was outstanding, so our case here is the one with the
wrench — what - this packet that you have. There was another case
that's out in the system, but where he -- the victim indicated that he
had been at a convenient store, the same Your Stop Liquor, with a
friend of his, who throughout was uncooperative; would not talk to
us, would not do anything, like literally hung up on our investigator,
kind of like not talk to us.

The victim told police that he was there with a friend, that
the friend knew the Defendant, but that he didn't know the
defendant; however, | think that was a secondary incident — my
recollection is the date was later -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: [unintelligible] -

" MS. THOMSON: -- then he realized who it was, that the

[19
20

21
22

23

24

25

Defendant without reason came up, pulled a gun, made some
statement to his friend that was threatening and then pistol
whipped him, and that he was bieeding, knocked unconscious, then
he was able to get up and called the police.

In the TPO hearing, he said that he never lost
consciousness. When the Defendant pulled the gun, that he

immediately called police. He doesn't make any reference to being
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pistol whipped at all. Obviously, that gave me concern because

2 (| when you have such very inconsistent statements as to one
3 1{ incident, then that creates a problem when we're setting a trial on --
4 THE COURT: Well isn’t that this incident?
5 MS. THOMSON: | think that’s the right incident isn't it?
6 THE COURT: The pistol whipping is this one.
7 MR. GOLDSTEIN: They’re like three days apart in the
8 || same location. | didn't represent him for that initial --
] THE COURT: No but, | mean this offense is - this is the -
10 MS. THOMSON: Oh, you're right it is.
" THE COURT: -- he pulled a gun, threatened him, pistol
12 || whipped him -
13 MS. THOMSON: You're right.
14 THE COURT: -- on top of the head; $22,000 in
15 || medications.
16 / MS. THOMSON: So, the other incident was the victim,

S,

from his perspective, the allegations is he’s walking down the
street, minding his own business, defendant comes up to him and
hits him with a wrench. When the police arrived, the Defendant is
still in the area, and he does in fact have a wrench. Defendant tells

police upon the scene and has been consistent throughout in his

rendition that he was with — he was by himself. The victim was
‘_—N_—E_

with friends. They came up and jumped him because at some
-‘—'.-'——-—

point, the Defendant's mother said — basically told the community

the victim is gay; correct me if anything is wrong generally about
gay Y 9 gag Y
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THE COURT: Well I'm just -1 don't - I'm not going to just
release him to the streets. | need something in place.

MS. THOMSON: Can mom -

THE COURT: Honestly, | didn't look at this for anything
but prison.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay.
THE COURT: | gotta be — you know, | didn't realize it was

a — it was a no op [sic/probation. My notes indicate it was a right to
argue. P&P is recommending 3 to 10. | really wasn't -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah well -

THE COURT: -Afashioning anythin@

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- everything - the game changed

s \\——__—_’-—/_—'_-.-3
recently, so | guess that's why.

.-\—

THE COURT: Well, and that’s all fine, I'll go along with it,
if you give me something other than releasing him to the streets
and hoping he goes —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Can you give me a minute -

THE COURT: -- | need something -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- give me a minute to see what he has -
what we can set up in Oakland, and I'll - what he — if he has a
doctor in Qakland or hospital or whatever he's been going to;
because | don't know what his status is. | didn't-

THE COURT: -- | was thinking giving - well that's why |
was going to give you a week to prepare for this.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- can | talk to him right now?

Page 14 / 6’7
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THE COURT: You can.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- | can get ahold of the mom probably

just to — a list — I'm not getting ready to —Em not going to argual

just want to see if we can get it resolved this morning somehow
with him because he really wants to go, and his mom wants him to
come soon and | -

MS. THOMSON: Can mom -

THE COURT: | know but -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- didn't promise anything, but | made it

clear that | thought he was going to get out on the street today.
T '

THE COURT: -- he can't go because he's going to have to
go to P&P. He’s going to have to do interstate compact.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: A few days here, and then | told him he
was going to be here a week — and he had people in Court. They're
not here today, but they were here last week; his friends or family
he was going to stay with for the few days until he gets transferred.

THE COURT: Well then you bring somebody in here that |
can house arrest him to — | mean | don't know - | gotta - I'm not
going to put him in the streets.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay.

THE COURT: And | don't care what he says this morning.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Fair enough. I'll talk to him.

THE COURT: | don't mean to be -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: You're doing your job, it's fine. F'll just

- let me - just give me a second before we continue it. Let me just
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talk to him and see what | can come up with.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. THOMSON: Thank you.

[Bench Conference Concluded]

THE COURT: You want to trail this a little bit?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | appreciate that.

THE COURT: Okay.

[Case trailed at 10:07 a.m.]
[Case recalled at 10:26 a.m.]

THE COURT CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie
Nunn, C336184.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you for recalling the case. Can
we approach?

THE COURT: Yes.

[Bench Conference]

MR. GOLDSTEIN: i talked to the mom. She’s in Oakland.
The Defendant left Oakland to move here last Summer, right before
- in May or June of last year. He has treatment with Dr. Stanburg
[phonetics] at Kaiser Permanente Hospital in Oakland, not far from
the house. He has a set doctor -

THE COURT: But you haven't told me how you're getting
him there -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | asked mom -

THE COURT: -- and where he is here.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- he gets there. | asked mom - she can
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wire him money to get him from here to there after he's approved,
assuming he's approved for interstate compact.

In the meantime, there are - there have been people in his
previous hearings. They're not here today, local friends of his -

THE COURT: Bring the people here that will stand up and
| can release him to them kind of thing, and house arrest --

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay.

THE COURT: -- whatever.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Totally fair. Can we do Tuesday?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah Tuesday.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. THOMSON: | don't want to be difficult. Is this some —
that sentencing something where the Court feels like it would be
best if 'm him here or are we all comfortable —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Say that again?

MS. THOMSON: -- is it something where it's best if I'm
him here or are we all comfortable with just the calendar deputy?

THE COURT: | prefer you be here but -

MS. THOMSON: Okay.

THE COURT: --if you can't be -

MS. THOMSON: Okay.

THE COURT: -- | mean as long as | - | mean | have the
reasons on the record so that -

MS. THOMSON: Yeah.

Page 17 /6 O

97




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

18

20

21

THE COURT: --if it goes badly it's -
MS. THOMSON: It's my fault.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: But you accepted his plea where that's

THE COURT: -- I've accepted his plea -
MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- we moved on to sentencing — the
“Wermovecon®. —the

thing --

THE COURT: -- I've accepted his plea, yes. We're just -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay.

THE COURT: -- continuing the sentencing.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: That's fine. | just want to make sure.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: You were going to ask that, so | helped
you.

MS. THOMSON: Yes and - based upon that -

THE COURT: And it wasn't a stipulated negotiation. It
was just a no op /sic/so -~

MS. THOMSON: -- and -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- well it wasn't a conditioned - it was
stipulated but unconditioned.

THE COURT: -- well -

MS. THOMSON: -- here's the one thing I'm going to kind

—
of throw out there, is based upon that guilty plea, he should be

OR’d with house arrest today. l
MR. GOLDSTEIN: He's not going to get approved for

Vel
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house arrest anyway -

MS. THOMSON: Oh okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: So, you're right but -

MS. THOMSON: Okay.

THE COURT: -- and again that’s your deal -

MS. THOMSON: | know.

THE COURT: -- between the two of you.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- understood Judge, understood. Okay

THE COURT: Tuesday?
MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- if we can put it on Tuesday. Tuesday

is on for calendar call, I'm not sure if we vacated it when you first

called it.

date.

THE COURT: Yes, we're going to — we'll vacate the trial

MS. THOMSON: Thank you.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: And calendar call, and we'll just make it

a status check, and 1'll get people her.

THE COURT: Get me something.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: | will. Understood.
MS. THOMSON: Okay.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
MS. THOMSON: Thank you.
[Bench Conference Concluded]

THE COURT: All right. We're going to continue this until
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Tuesday for sentencing, and trial date vacated.
THE COURT CLERK: June 11™", 9 a.m.
THE COURT: Thank you.

[Hearing concluded at 10:28 a.m.]

* R KK K ¥

ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

Xt ] fup,

\c([}!ue G. Sison
ourt Recorder/Transcriber
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DECLARATION OF ANTHONY M. GOLDSTEIN, ESQ.,

IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO WITHDRAW PLEA

STATE OF NEVADA )

COUNTY OF CLARK )

T, ANTHONY M. GOLDSTEIN, ESQ., Attorney at Law, after being
duly sworn as an officer of the Court, depose and state as

follows:

1. I have been a duly licensed attorney in the state of Nevada
since 2001 and the Court appointed me to represent indigent
Defendant SAMMIE NUNN in the present matter.

2. After the Honorable Judge Jennifer Togliatti appointed me
to represent Defendant in the present case, I reviewed the case
file provided to me by defendant’s previous counsel. Further, I
visited Defendant at the Clark County Detention Center to
discuss the case with him.

3. After becoming abreast of the case, I contacted Chief
Deputy District Attorney Megan Thomson, Esq. and asked her to
run defendant’s SCOPE and NCIC to confirm his c¢riminal record.

/17
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4, Ms. Thomson duly ran Defendant’s NCIC and SCOPE and
confirmed that in fact Defendant only had one prior felony
conviction. Therefore, Defendant was not eligible for habitual
criminal treatment under NRS 207.010.

5. A review of the Nevada Pretrial Risk Assessment that
Justice Court staff prepared regarding Defendant indicates that
defendant has eleven prior gross misdemeancrs or felonies.
However, one of the listed offenses indicates “GM”, so the form
facially appears to convey that Defendant has one gross
misdemeanor and ten felonies. A copy of the Nevada Pretrial
Risk Assessment form is attached hereto as Exhibit 2.

6. In my professional opinion, counsel typically rely on the
information set forth in the Nevada Pretrial Risk Assessment
forms in advising their clients.

7. Based upon my conversation with Defendant and review of the
case, Defendant did not freely and voluntarily enter his plea
since at the time, he was under the wrongful impression that he
was eligible for habitual criminal treatment pursuant to NRS
207.010.

/17
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8. Based on the foregoing, I believe that good cause exists
for the Court to allow Defendant to withdraw the plea that he

entered herein on August 24th, 2018.

YOUR DECLARANT STATES NOTHING FURTHER.

DATED: September 19, 2018 By:/s/ Anthony M. Goldstein

Declarant Anthony M. Goldstein
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT
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Based on the foregoing,

this matter for a jury trial.

CONCLUSION

Defendant respectfully submits that

that the Court should grant this motion to withdraw plea and set

LAW OFFICES OF ANTHONY M. GOLDSTEIN

Dated: September 18, 2018 By:/s/ Anthony M. Goldstein

Anthony M. Goldstein, Esqg.
Nevada Bar #7721

2421 Tech Center Court
Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
Phone: (702) 796-1114

Fax: (702) 796-1115
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT
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I I Electronically Filed

8/23/2018 8:26 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO!
INFM &‘_A ﬂww
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
g(}AN THOI;MSONA
ie D?uty istrict Attorney
chud ar #011002
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500
Attorney for Plaintiff

LA, 08/24/18 DISTRICT COURT
10:00 AM CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
J. WALDOQ, ESQ.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
Vs~ DEPT NO: IX

SAMMIE NUNN, #2751864

CASENO:  C-18-334308-1

Defendant. INFORMATION

STATE OF NEVADA

COUNTY OF CLARK
STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State

of Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Count:

That SAMMIE NUNN, the Defendant(s) above named, having committed the crime of
BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony - NRS 200.481 -
NOC 50223), on or about the 2nd day of June, 2018, within the County of Clark, State of
Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such cases made and provided,
and ageinst the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada, did willfully, unlawfully, and
i
"

i
i
/!

EXHIBIT “1 ” W:20152018R\ 14GRISF) 1438-INFM-ONUNN_SAMMIE)-001.D0CX
Cl.u Number; C-18-334308-1
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feloniously use force or violence upon the person of another, to wit: PRINCE ALIDU, with
use of a deadly weapon, to wit; a handgun, by striking said PRINCE ALIDU on or about the
head with said handgun.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY
btrict Attomey
Nevada Bar #1002
18F11438X/ic/L4
LVMPD EV#180602004287
(TK3)
2

W:20182018F 1436\ 8F ] 1438-INFM-(NUNN_SAMMIE)-001.DOCX
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NEVADA PRETRIAL RISK (NPR) ASSESSMENT

iy

Assessment Date: 7/12/2018 Assessor: Yvette Anderson County: Clark
Defendant’s Name: Sammie Nunn DOR: AGE: 28 Case/Booking #: 18F11438X
8/10/1989 Dept. #: 3
Address: Contact Phone #: # of Current Charges: 3
City: PENDING VERIFICATION
State: Zip:
Most Serious Charge: Battery WDW Total Bail at booking: 100,000.00
SCORING ITEMS SCORE
1. Does the Defendant Have a Pending Pretrial Case at Booking?
Yes  Ifyes, list case # and jurisdiction: see below . 2
2. Age atFirst Arrest (Include juvenile arrests) FirstArrest Date  7-29-05
20 yrs and under 2
3. Prior Misdemeanor Convictions (past 10 years)
Six or more 2
4. PriorFelony/Gross Misd, Convictions (past 1 years)
One or more 1
5. Prior Violent Crime Convictions (past 10 years)
Two or more 2
6. Prior FTAs (past 24 months)
Two or more FTA Warrants 2
7. Substance Abuse (past 10 years)
Prior multiple arrests-drug use or poss/aicohal/drunkenness 2
8. Mitigating Verlfied Stability Factors (limitof -2 pts. total deduction)
If1, 2 and 3 not applicable 0
TOTAL SCORE: 13
Risk Level: Higher Risk, 13 Points ' OVERRIDE?: []Yes & no
Override Reason(s);
[f Other, explain: .
. Final Recommended Risk Level: O wow [IMODERATE [X] HIGHER
Supervisor/Designee Signature Date: 7/12/2018
.ﬁ\;;-.d., e
X mﬂm’( ™
aayade Bisk Assesmant ool Revised 82017
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3
Doxo¢ no keloneS

Felony convictions: 11 Sammie Nunn

YEAR STATE CHARGE -

11 WA ASSAULT

11 WA ASSAULT

11 WA ASSAULT

08 WA TVWOO0C

08 WA OBST PO

08 WA INTERFERENCE W/RPT DOMESTIC VIOL (GM)

08 WA OBST PO

08 WA ASSAULT

08 WA ASSAULT

07 WA POSS DANG DRUG W/0 RX

06 WA OBST PO

Misdemeanor Convictions: 8

FTAS: 4

Detainers: NONE

Pending Cases:

IC 18F12864X JC3 IAP 7-13-18

18F09747X JC2 8-28-18 STATUS CHECK

18F11438X JC3 7-13-18 AWH

17F18625X JC3 9-18-18 STATUS CHECK PG MISD DRUGS ITS

Revised 82017
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY FACSIMILE AND EMATIL

I hereby certify that on September 19, 2018

I transmitted a true and correct copy of

MOTION TO WITHDRAW PLEA

in the above captioned matter, via facsimile and email,

to the following recipient(s):

Office of the District Attorney
pdmotions@clarkcountyda.com
{702) 455-2294

By: /s/ Anthony M. Goldstein
Anthony M. Goldstein, Esgqg.
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Electronically Filed
9/19/2018 2:45 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO!
MWEL C:!iﬁi«u‘-

Anthony M. Goldstein, Esg. (Nevada Bar #7721)
LAW OFFICES OF ANTHONY M. GOLDSTEIN

2421 Tech Center Court

Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Phone: (702) 796-1114

Fax: (702) 796-1115

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, Case #: C-~18-334308-1

Plaintiff, Dept. : IX

vs.
MOTION TO WITHDRAW PLEA

SAMMIE NUNN (#2751864),
Date of Hearing:

Defendant.

e et e Tt e Tt Tt it M St e

Time of Hearing:

MOTION TO WITHDRAW PLEA

s
/17
11/
/117
/17

1

Case Number: C-18-334308-1
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Anthony M. Goldstein, Esq., court-appointed attorney for
indigent Defendant SAMMIE NUNN, respectfully requests that the
above entitled matter be placed on calendar so that Defendant
may submit a motion to withdraw the plea of “Guilty” that

Defendant entered on August 24th, 2018.

LAW OFFICES OF ANTHONY M. GOLDSTEIN

DATED: September 19, 2018 By:/s/ Anthony M. Goldstein

Anthony M. Goldstein, Esqg.
Nevada Bar #7721

2421 Tech Center Court
Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
Phone: (702} 796-1114

Fax: {702) 796-1115
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT
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NOTICE OF MOTION TO WITHDRAW PLEA

TO THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY OF CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA:

The above entitled matter is to be placed on calendar in

Department IX of the District Court of Clark County, Nevada,

at the following date and time:

October 09, 2018 9:00 AM
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Having considered the, “Motion to Withdraw Plea” that
Anthony M. Goldstein, Esq., court-appointed counsel for indigent
Defendant SAMMIE NUNN, filed herein on September 19th, 2018, and
the, “State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw Plea”
that the State filed herein on September 29th, 2018, and after
presiding over hearings in open court on said motion on October

9th, 2018, and October 16th, 2018, and with the Court’s finding

ook 0% %ﬁiﬁ? &%

THE COURT ORDERS that defendant’s, “Motion to Withdraw

‘good cause appearing,

Plea” is granted and hereby strikes and/or vacates the, “Guilty

plea that Defendant entered via the, “Guilty Plea Agreement”
’ f it

filed herein on August 24th, 2018.;_,,__————

DATED: 0CT 19 10

Respectfully, Submitted By:

Anthony MSTGoldstein, Esqg.

Nevada State Bar #7721

LAW OFFICES OF ANTHONY M. GOLDSTEIN
2421 Tech Center Court

Suite 100

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Phone: (702) 796-1114

Fax: (702) 796-1115

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT
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Patient: ALIDU,PRINCE
Unit#:D002459320
Date: 05/27/18
Acct§#:D001 18407584

1. No mtracramal mass, hemorrhage, or evidence to indicate acute
cortical-hased infarct.
tmpressmn By: SCHRI - Richard A Schwartz M.D, -

CTs were mterpreted by the radnologlst .
Labomto:y studias revsewed and considered in the medical uecmonmaldng

~ Portions of this section were ranscribed by ACTUB-QU!NTANA,JESSt on 05/27/18 at 0729

: I.aceratlon Managemem #1
Time 0734 .
Procedure Performed by £D physician
Consent!SetuplS&e Prep Verified correct patient, Informed consent pmwded Consent from
patient, Time-out performed, Hand hygiene observed, Stand sterile technique
X Location of Wound :
teft buccal region
X Wouind Length (cm) 6
Local Anesthesia Lidocaine 1%
Wound Preparation Normal saline
X Debridement None

trrigation Capious
Foreign Body Explore/Removal Explored for forefgn body
Repair Skin 5-0 ethylon

- # Sutures - Slnn 10

Closure lz‘m o .
Suture Technigue Simple :
Post-Procedure/Complications Antibiotic oint applied, No compllcataons, Condition
improved, Tolerated procedure well, Patient stable

_Portions of this section were transcribed'by ACTUB:QUINTANA JESS! on 05/27/18 at 0729

Free Text MDM Notes P
[Free Text MDM Notes - X
60-year-old male presents after assault. Patient awake alert and no dnstress Workup
unremarkable, patient sustained facial Iaceranw on his left cheek, but ¢ otherwise no other

ﬂs haj(Wr_\n 7&11»\@ usAM@NN& ghot ﬂO{’ |

.\\ ufa ' . Page 5 of 8
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&tm&LIDU PRINCE MRN 0002459320 Encounter:D00118407584 Pageﬁ of §

T
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ALIDU,PRINGE .

SUNRISE HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL | s
Ik :

§aO0 e s 10

X wH u

" poB:  U7OTHEST

~ 8. Medicare Patient Certification and Assignment of Benef fy that any information I provide
* inapplying for payment under Title XVHI ("Medicare") or Title XIX ("Medicaid") of the Social
Sccurity Act is correct. I request payment of authorized benefits to be made on my behalf to the bospital
or hospital-based physician by the Medicare of Medicaid program. ' :

9. Private Room. 1 urdlerstand and agrec that | am (6:' Giuarahlor,is) rosponsible for any additional
charges ussociated with the request and/or use of a private room. ‘ :

10. Ovtpatient Medicare Patients.. Medicare docs not provide coverage for “self-administered drugs®
or drugs that you normally take on your own, with only & few limited exceptions. If you got
self-administered drugs that aren’t covered by Medicare Part B, we may bill you for the drug. However.
if you are enrolled in a Medicare Part D Drug Plan, these drugs may be covered in accordance with
Medicare Part D Drug Plan enro{lment materials. If you pay for these self-administered drugs, you.can
submit a claim to your Medicare Part D Drug Plan for a possible refund, I

1. Communications About My Healthcare. T authorize my healtheare information to be disclosed for
purposes of communicating results, findings, and care decisions 10 my family mémbiers and others 1
designate to be responsible for my care. I will provide those individuals with a password or other

— verification means specified by the-hospital. I agrec 1 may be contacted by the Provider or an agent of

the Provider or an independent physician's office for the purposes of scheduling necessary follow-up

visits recommended by the treating physician. ‘ o ' '

12. Consent to Telephone Calls for Financial Communications. 1 agree that, in order for you, or your

. EBO Servicers and collection agents, to service my account or to colleet any amounts 1 may owe, 1
expressly agrec and consent thal you of your EBO Servicer and collection agents may conlact me by
telephone at any telephone number I have provided or you or your EBO Scrvicer and collection agents
have obtained or, at any number forwarded or transferred from that pumber, regarding the
hospitalization, the services rendered, or my related financial obligations. Methods of contact may
include using pre-recorded/artificial voice messages and/or use of an automatic disling device, as
-applicable; . ' : o o

.13, Consent to Emall or Text Usage for Discharge Instructions and Other Healtheare Communications.

If at any time 1 provide the Providers an cmail or text address at which | may be contacted, | consent to
receiving discharge instructions and other healthcare communications at the emuil or text address T have
provided or you or your EBO Servicer have obtained or, at any text number forwarded or transferred fom
that number. These discharge instructions may include, but not be limited to: post-operative instructions,
physician follow-up instructions, dietary information, and prescription information. The other healthcare
communications may include, but are not limited to communications to family or designated
representatives regarding my (reatment or condition, or reminder messages 1o me regarding appointments
for medical care, . B ‘ ' :

» o

Patient:ALIDU, PRINCE MRN:D002459320 ) Encounter:D00118407684  Page § of 10
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Electronically Filed
4/23/2020 6:46 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO!
TRAN C:!i%iu—J‘”; ;i

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
CASE NO. C-18-336184-1

Plaintiff,

vVS.
DEPT. XVIII

SAMMIE NUNN,

Defendant . Transcript of Proceedings

e e et e e o ' e e

BEFORE THE HONORABLE MARY KAY HOLTHUS, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

SENTENCING

TUESDAY, JUNE 11, 2019

APPEARANCES:
FOR THE STATE: LAURA J. GOODMAN

Deputy District Attorney
FOR DEFENDANT: ANTEONY M. GOLDSTEIN, ESQ.

RECORDED BY: YVETTE SISON, CQURT RECORDER

Page - 1

Case Number: C-18-336184-1 / 6 4
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, JUNE 11, 2019, 9:12 A.M,

THE CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie Nunn,
C336184.,

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Judge, Anthony Goldstein for the
defendant. He’s here in custody.

THE COURT: What’d we come up with?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, we have -- your concern
which we talked about both on the record and the bench last week
was if Your Honor sees fit to grant the defendant probation,
basically follow the deal and give him probation, looking for a
residence for him to stay at. I’ve been in contact with his
mother a million times in Oakland. She made an arrangement with
One Day at a Time, it’s a local we’ll call it a halfway house.
Ashley Dickson, she’s here in court today, she provided me with
the information from this facility. 1It’s a local —- she’s
placed defendants at this facility from this courthouse, as well
as North Las Vegas, in the past. She could provide whatever
details the Court needs. It’s just basically a local residence,
sober, and designed for inmates in Mr. Nunn’‘s situation with
these types of issues. And she’s prepared to answer any
questions.

THE COURT: Can we house arrest him there?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: What's that?

THE COURT: Can we put him on house arrest there?

Page - 2
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MR. GOLDSTEIN: You can ask Ms. Dickson. I just met
Ms. Dickson this morning. We have communicated via text and
email, but this is the first time I've met her, Your Honor,
moments ago. If you have any questions, ask -- I think she’s
prepared to answer any questions you might have.

THE COURT: 1Is he able to be on house arrest at your
program?

MS. DICKSON: To be honest, we’ve never had anyone on
house arrest there. We do groups each day. So if he would
-- you want him to come to those, he can, he cannot, it’s up to
you. If he can’t leave the house and he has on a bracelet,

then, I mean, he’ll know the rules, and we’ll help him follow

them.

THE COURT: What’s the name of the program?

MS. DICKSON: One Day at a Time.

THE COURT: And how long is the program?

M3. DICKSON: We recently opened in October.

THE COURT: And so how long would he be there?

MS. DICKSON: He can be there as long as he chooses
to.

THE COURT: Well, I thought the plan was to get him to
his family.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: This is the local residence here
that’s transitioning him from in custody at the Clark County

Detention Center to moving with his mother in Oakland. There’s

Page - 3
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going to be a --

THE COURT: Pending the --

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Interstate compact.

THE COURT: -- interstate compact.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah. This is -- I don’t know how
long the interstate compact is going to take with California. It
could be a couple days or a couple weeks. We don’t know yet.
But --

THE COURT: What if they don’t take him?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It would be -- in a case like this,
Your Honor, it would be unlikely they wouldn’t take him.

THE CQURT: Okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Is it possible? Yeah. But I've never
seen a situation like that where especially California denies
interstate compact. But this provides him with sort of
transitional housing until the paperwork’s clear for him to go
with his mother in California and resume his -- I mentioned his
doctor’s name from Kaiser in Oakland last week when we were in
court.

THE COURT: So does he -- does he have doctors here,
as well?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Sammie -- he went to Stein when he was
found incompetent for this case. So the doctors here were at
Stein.

Did you go to Stein, or Lakes Crossing?

Page - 4
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THE DEFENDANT: Stein.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It was Stein. 8o he doesn’t have
doctors here, but, again, it’s doctor Stanberg [phonetic], I
think his name was or her name was, in Oakland who’s his primary
mental health care physician at Kaiser in Oakland.

THE COURT: So what other -- what do you offer at the
program, or is it just monitoring basically?

M5, DICKSON: 1It’s a transitional living home, but
also he can receive therapy services there. We do that twice a
week, and also group three times a week, and biofeedback also
twice a week. But he can come and get all of those services as
he chooses to.

THE COURT: And is somebody paying for that? How does
that get --

MS. DICKSON: His insurance pays for it.

THE COURT: It does. Okay.

And I believe we put the reasons for the negotiation
on the record last time. Did we not?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: At the bench, which was on the record.
So, yes.

THE COURT: And we still have no contact with the
victim; correct? Is that your understanding?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: No. The victim -- are you talking
about for victim speaker purposes, or for ——

MS. GOODMAN: For victim speaker, that’s correct, Your
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Honor.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I think he was -- he’s been
cooperating. He’s testified a couple of times in the case, but
I don't -—- I can’t speak to the victim whether Megan talked to
him about speaking today.

MS. GOODMAN: With regards to speaking at sentencing,
yes, we haven’t talked to him. We haven’t had any contact with
the victim for that purpose.

THE COURT: What is the restitution of this?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Medical bills for the wvictim.

THE COURT: 22,042. 1Is that right?

MS. GOODMAN: That is correct. And I should note --
and, Judge, in all candor, the Victims of Crime did agree to pay
the 5,000. There just haven’t been any payments from the victim
-— to the victim yet of that 5,000.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Nunn, you want to -~ we
haven’t done anything yet, have we?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I’m sorry?

THE COURT: We haven’t done anything, have we, because
I wasn't --

MR. GOLDSTEIN: You accepted his plea last Thursday.
And you were going to -- it was possible for you to sentence him
that same day because you had the PSI, but you wanted to address
the residency issue.

THE COURT: All right. Anything else from the State?
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MS. GOCDMAN: No, Your Honor. I’1ll submit it on the
negotiations.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Nunn, is there anything else
you want to tell me before I pronounce sentence or your attorney
speaks?

THE DEFENDANT: No.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Henor, I’m just going to ask the
Court to follow the negotiation. I know there’s some hesitancy
on behalf of the Court, but I think when Mr. Nunn is properly
medicated and getting his -- following his doctors’ advice, he
gets along in society just fine. Hopefully his paperwork with
the interstate compact will clear quickly, and he’ll be under
the watchful eye of his mother in Oakland, who I'm in very good
contact with. We’ve exchanged -- we’ve spoken several times
since this past Thursday, Your Honor. I know she’s planning on
keeping an eye on Sammie like she has in the past, and hopefully
he’ll start to conform better once his medication and his mental
health treatment gets back on track.

THE COURT: Can you all approach.

(Bench conferernce)

THE COURT: Not only I don’t [unintelligible] the
probation part, but I don’t really love the suspended sentence
part, either. 1Is there a reason that it was so low?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: No. Well, yes.

THE COURT: I mean, I’'m giving him a chance to do

170

129




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

better, but if he doesn’t do better, then maybe he can’t do
better. Do you know what I’m saying? Historically he’'s got
issues.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: We worked out the suspended sentence
in court on Thursday, you see we interlineated it to 2 to 5. I
would be ecstatic if you gave him probation. And if you want to
raise the underlying, that’s your call, but -- I mean
everything’s your call, but, you know, I wouldn’'t --

THE COURT: I get it. I'm going to raise it to 48 to
120. So -- okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thanks for the heads up.

THE COURT: Yep.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you.

(End of bench conference)

THE COURT: Anything else?

According to the laws of the State of Nevada this
Court does now sentence you to confinement in the Nevada
Department of Prisons for a maximum term of 120 months, with a
minimum parole eligibility of 48 months.

I am going to -- that’s in addition to the $25
administrative assessment, %150 DNA fee, and a DNA
administrative assessment.

I am pursuant to negotiations geoing to suspend that
sentence for a period of probation not to exceed 5 years with

the standard conditions.
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Additionally, you are to have no alcohol whatsoever,
you're also going to be subject to special conditions that you
are to remain on house -- ycu’re to be released only to the One
Day program.

Can I do that? Do they have somebody to come get him?
Or P&P for transport to. How about that? That’s what I'm going
to do.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Ms., Dickson’s not here anymore, Your
Honor, so I can’t ask her about the --

THE CQURT: All right. He’s to be released only to
P&P for transportation to the One Day at 2 Time program, where
he’s to remain on house arrest until he can be interstate
compacted to California, where his mom is.

Also, to complete a mental health evaluation or just
to stay being treated on the evaluation that he currently has.

Taking any medications that’s required.

Curfew’s probably not necessary, but I’11 give them
the power to do that if they need it.

Mr. Nunn, do you work?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. I'm an electrician.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: I kind of need to go to work.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, to the extent that it all
works, full-time employment, 16 hours of community service or

school.
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THE DEFENDANT: So the house arrest --

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I’ll answer your qguestion.

THE COURT: Anything else we can —- that I need?

MS. GOODMAN: Not from the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: No contact with the victim.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And just if I could just clarify your
sentence for the defendant’s benefit. There was an agreement
between us, the defense and the State, for an underlying
sentence of 2 to 5, with an [unintelligible] to probation. You
chose to give him probation, but she exercised her discretion to
raise the underlying sentence; instead of a 2 to 5, it's a 4 to
10.

So we agreed to it, but that’s not binding on the
Judge, and the Judge —-

THE DEFENDANT: And I have to do house arrest on top
of me doing the 4 to 107?

THE COURT: You’re not doing the 4 to 10 as long as
you get out and stay out of trouble. If you stay in your
counseling and stay on your meds and don’t hurt anybody or break
any laws, then you won’t have to do the 4 to 10. You’'re just
going to be on house arrest until we can get you to your mom
where you can get back with your doctor in California and get
the treatment.

If you get in trouble, though, you’re going to go to

prison for 10 years.
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THE DEFENDANT: But I'm not going to be able to do the
groups or anything?

THE COURT: You’re going to be at the house. I'm
ordering you to the treatment program there. Okay?

THE DEFENDANT: But the deal I signed was a 2 to 5,
and an OR upon sentencing.

THE COURT: You did.

THE DEFENDANT: Those are the reasons I took the deal.

THE COURT: Well, I understand that, but you also ——- I
didn’t make any promises. I‘m giving you probation. My
inclination was actually to put you in prison for 3 to 10 like
P&P was recommending. Okay? 5o I'm going along with the deal
to try and help you get your act together better for the long
run, but that’s the trade off. If you want to just do the 3 to
10 right now, I’'ll give it to you.

THE DEFENDANT: Can I take the deal back?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: For a second time? No, Your Honor. I
mean, I'1ll talk to him about it, but -=-

THE COURT: Okay. That’ll be the order.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you.

THE CLERK: Judge, does he [inaudible] restitution?

THE COURT: ©h, yeah. I’'m so sorry. Restitution in
the amount of $22,042 payable to -- huh?

THE CLERK: I'm sorry.

THE COURT: What do you need?
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THE CLERK: I was going to ask who it’s payable to.

THE COURT: Prince Alidu.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: His name is Prince Alidu, A-L-I-D-U.

(Court recessed at 9:24 a.m., until 9:55 a.m.)

THE CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie Nunn,
C336184.

THE COURT: Sorry to call you back here, but I have
some real concerns. Your client has not been able to control
himself in a courtroom filled with marshals and where I’ve just
given him probation. I’m wondering how I'm supposed to feel
comfortable sending him out in the community on a probation
grant.

And I'm wondering if maybe he doesn’t want that and
maybe he’d prefer just to go to prison, because that would make
me feel more comfortable at this moment.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, I understand your
concerns. I Jjust spoke with him. I mean, his -- he doesn’t
understand that probation is a privilege and he’s fortunate to
get it in this case based on Your Honor’s comments when we were
at the bench last week basically saying you’re planning to send
him to prison and probably would be doing so if it weren’t all
the efforts --

THE COURT: For the maximum period of time, by the
way.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Right. On behalf of his mom, Ashley
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Dickson, and all these other people who are out there trying to
work for him, me, but that’s my job. All these other people are
trying to work for him and a lot of people -- there was a lot of
parts in motion to get him that place to stay. And he
apparently doesn’t appreciate it, but I hope that he gets that
probation’s a privilege and he could very well be going to High
Desert instead of his mother’s house in Oakland over the next
few days.

So I spoke with him. He talked about withdrawing his
plea because you didn‘t follow the negotiation to the letter.

My opinion that’s not a valid legal basis to withdraw his plea.
If that were the case 99 --

THE COURT: 1It’s not even an opinion, it’s actually
the law, but, okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It is. And 99 percent of people
sitting in the box would want to withdraw their plea if the
judge didn’t follow exactly the negotiations. So it’s not in
any way, shape, or form a legal basis. If he wants to ask the
Court to appoint a lawyer to look in to see whether that
constitute legal grounds, you could appoint him, just like I was
appointed to withdraw his previous plea when there was the issue
with his previous lawyer, but I hope he gets -- kind of gets
with the program at this point, and realizes if he steps out of
line to his probation officer, he’s just going to prison.

There’s no other option. If he’s disrespectful to anybody in
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the system, whether it’s here or in California, he’s going to do
a 4 to 10. That’s where he’s sitting right now.

THE COURT: Do you want probation or not?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah,

THE COURT: Are you going to control yourself and be
respectful and do what you’re supposed to do?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you for coming back, Mr.
Goldstein.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Of course, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Good luck, Mr. Nunn.

THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 9:57 A.M.

ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly
transcribed the audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled

case to the best of my ability.

JILL HAWKINS, Court Recorder
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also on Facebook, all over Facebook, it's brand new --

THE COURT: Okay, well I'm not going on Facebook.

THE DEFENDANT: -- okay, it's on my phone, in my
property.

THE COURT: Is it somewhere Mr. Goldstein can access?

THE DEFENDANT: Oh he can go get my phone off my
property as soon as he wants to. lt's —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: This is the first I've heard of his phone
with exculpatory evidence —

THE DEFENDANT: -- actually -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- after however long | mentioned it so.

THE DEFENDANT: --it's not, because -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Perhaps in the letter.

THE DEFENDANT: -- it's actually — it's in the motion to

dismiss counsel. | wrote it in the motion.

THE COURT: Correct, and that's what he’s saying. It's the

first he’s heard of it.

THE DEFENDANT: He visited me when the motion was
already in, so it's not the first time he’s heard of it, and we've had
time to talk about it, but he just got up and left the visiting room.

THE COURT: I'm going to - how long do you need to take
a look at this? I'll sign an order to release the phone to you for the
purpose of viewing the phone to follow-up on th@

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Exculpatory video on his phone that

someone else took? It's that what I'm hearing?
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THE DEFENDANT: | know you want to --

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | just want to make sure | get the right
phone from the right person.

THE DEFENDANT: -- | know we're going through a issue,
but these are legal things, and we're in court.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Okay. What type of phone is it? I'll talk
to him about what type of phone it is before | send the order, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Goldstein is trying to help you, so
disrespecting isn’t working for me okay.

THE DEFENDANT: I'm just trying to get through the deal -

THE COURT: If that's how you're dealing with him.

THE DEFENDANT: -- I'm trying to get through the legal
parts ma'am.

THE COURT: Well you're not being super successful. 1
would suggest that you be respectful to the person whose trying to
help you out here. A'ﬁ A\é Q\I‘B(q “\fﬂ '\'6 M{-@j\q@@m&

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: He's going to go over to your property, get
your phone out, and take a look and see if there’s something there.
If there’'s something there, we’ll come back and talk about it. If
there’s not, we're going to go ahead and set the revocation hearing.

If you'd like to represent yourself at that point, I'll do a

Faretta Canvass and you can do that. For now though, he's going

to go ahead and take a look at that.
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THE DEFENDANT: That's awesome. Thank you. Should |
sit down now or -

THE COURT: You can sit, yes.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you.

THE COURT: Logistically, | don't - not sure how this is
going to work.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I'll visit the Defendant ASAP. I'll giv
you the order once | find out - D h& (‘(\eﬂﬂ\é i\ &

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- once | find out details about the
phone. I'll try and get the phone from property. It's different from
getting it from CCDC versus from the evidence vault. Usually it's a
little bit smoother through CCDC if | have your order so -

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It would also be quicker if the DA signs
off on the order. So I'll submit it to Ms. Thomson, it's her case.
Usually that makes things smoother, because they like to call
somebody from the DA’s Office just to verify everything -

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- so I'll do all that to find this video.

Tveedal

THE COURT: And then you'll just look at it. 4 A ﬂ& ds{'{

THE DEFENDANT: And | would also like the DA to look at
it, everybody to have it. | want the -
THE COURT: | am positive, beyond positive, if there is

exculpatory evidence on your phone —
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: -- Mr. Goldstein will go run it to Mr.
Thomson, | promise.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, Judge, thank you.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: I'll sprint.

THE COURT: Right. | know you will.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Could we do two weeks please, Your
Honor?

THE COURT: Sure.

THE COURT CLERK: August 20" at @ a.m.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You're welcome.

[Hearing concluded at 9:16 a.m.]

L )

ATTEST: 1do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio/video proceedings in the above-entitied case to the best of my ability.

%M%

tte G. Slson
rt Recorder/Transcriber
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TUESDAY, AUGUST 20, 2019 AT 9:37 A M.

THE COURT CLERK: Page 17, State of Nevada versus Sammiie Nunn, C-
336184.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Anthony Goldstein for the Defendant, Your Honor. He's
here in custody.

THE COURT: Okay. This was — we're gonna —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: You signed an order —

THE COURT: Did you get a chance to look at the phone?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | have the phone. 've reviewed the evidence that the
Defendant wanted me to. |- the individual depicted on the phone | had spoke —
personally spoken with a couple of months ago, | don’t know the exact date but |
received a call from this individual a couple of months ago telling me very — | mean,
basically the same information. There’s a couple of videos on here. But | was
aware of — this person, he’s a — there are two originally named victims, this was
Cara Kines, the other one was named Prince Alidu. This was Cara who | spoke with
a couple of months ago long before the Defendant entered his plea in this case. He
contacted my office then | mentioned that in court at a previous hearing as well. So,
| was able to watch this since the last hearing. It doesn’'t change my opinion; it
doesn’t change the state of evidence at all because again | spoke with this person
personally —

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- sometime before that. So, | -

THE DEFENDANT: It changes the evidence because — | mean, Cara Kines

[phonetics] has admitted that | didn't do the crime and that they actually chased me
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down. The evidence is on the phone and he’s not willing to bring the evidence
forward. Also, Prince Alidu had — had filed a temporary protective order on me and
Judge [indecipherable].

MR. GOLDSTEIN: We addressed this in depth previously, Your Honor.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. And he also admitted that | didn't do the crime
and his story actuaily corroborates -- but he added something about a pistol which
Cara Kines faithfully states | didn’t — [ had no physical — this evidence needs to
come to light, all these things need to come forward.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, it sounds to me like Mr. Goldstein was already
aware of it and -

THE DEFENDANT: He wasn’t aware of it.

THE COURT: - and the reality is we're at revocation, you've already pled
guilty. So, if there are other vehicles to file this you're gonna have to look at those.

THE DEFENDANT: What are the —

THE COURT: We're just here to — I'm not here to advice you, I'm just here to
set a revocation. So, we're gonna go ahead and re-set the revocation —

THE DEFENDANT: So - so, me and —

THE COURT: As a favor —

THE DEFENDANT: -- me and my attorney are having a conflict of interest in
bringing this evidence forward. If he was already aware of the evidence why didn't it
come forward --

THE COURT: He just explained that it didn’t change anything.

THE DEFENDANT: It does change —

THE COURT: He was aware of it, he spoke to those people. He spoke to —

THE DEFENDANT: He did -
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THE COURT: You -

THE DEFENDANT: — not - he did not —

THE COURT: - you can't talk —

THE DEFENDANT: -- set a meeting.

THE COURT: —over me. You can't talk —

THE DEFENDANT: He didn’t set a meeting.

THE COURT: He talked to those people, he's represented he's talked —

THE DEFENDANT: He didn't -

THE COURT: - to these people —

THE DEFENDANT: -- talk to them.

THE COURT: You took a plea so — | mean —

THE DEFENDANT: What -

THE COURT: - that's kind of where we are.

THE DEFENDANT: — what — what is the evidence that he talked to them?
Can you show me some evidence —

THE COURT: I'm not showing you —

THE DEFENDANT: -- where Anthony —

THE COURT: - anything.

THE DEFENDANT: -- Goldstein talked to — talked to ~

THE COURT: I'm not gonna -

THE DEFENDANT: -- talked to —

THE COURT: - show you anything.

THE DEFENDANT: - talked to -

THE COURT: We're gonna go ahead and re-set the revocation. We're

gonna re-set it for a revocation hearing. If you want to hire your own counsel —
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THE DEFENDANT: There’s also —

THE COURT: -- you may do that.

THE DEFENDANT: -- there’s also a new witness his name is Andolfachu
Nikonen [phonetics], he works at the Your Stop Liquor store.

THE COURT: Mr. Nunn - T

THE DEFENDANT: His number is 702 881-92 —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | haven't heard —

THE DEFENDANT: -- 93.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- this name before, Your Honor, but —

THE DEFENDANT: He hasn't talked to Andolfachu Nikonen [phonetics]

—

neither. This is — Mr. Goldstein —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | would remember —

THE DEFENDANT: - isn’t doing —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- speaking to somebody —

THE DEFENDANT: -- his job.

MR. GOLSTEIN: -- named -- whatever the name was. This is the first of even
hearing of the name -

THE DEFENDANT: His name is —

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- standing here in court today.

THE DEFENDANT: -- Andolfochu [phonetics], | have his number, he works at
Your Stop Liquor store at night. This is — this is readily accessible information for
Mr. Goldstein.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And as | told the Court, | personally went to Your Stop,
spoke with the manager. The employee —

THE DEFENDANT: [indecipherable] hasn't worked there in over a year. You
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got that from the police report.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | spoke with [indecipherable). We've gone over this, Your
Honor. | personally went there and spoke —

THE COURT: Will you guys approach?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- with the manager of the store.

THE DEFENDANT: You haven't talked to [indecipherable]. I'm giving you
evidence.

[Bench conference]

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Nunn, | am going to have counsel appointed to
you for the limited purpose to see if you have any grounds upon which you could file
a motion to withdraw your guilty plea. That's what you're telling me you want to do,
correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Goldstein, if — he'll be back on later after this is
done but for the moment you're gonna get a attorey to look into it.

THE DEFENDANT: | appreciate it.

THE COURT: Who's next? Continued for Ms. Border to be appointed.

MS. BORDER: I'm here - I'm here, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Oh. | didn't see you.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And I have the phone, Your Honor. Since m)
ul
| here now I'll just give it to her and I'l give her the rest of discW

THE COURT: We're actually at a revo stag'é;'but he had filed a motion — Mr.

Nunn had filed a motion to discharge his attorney. And so there’s all ths new

o —_
evidencg/and has been sending numerous letters and motions. One of the things

he had said was that he had a phone in property that had exculpatory video on it. |
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asked Mr. Goldstein to take a look at it, he’s done that. He’s made his record that
he didn’t see anything, but in any event | suppose you can all talk about it.

You are appointed pre-revocation hearing to look into whether he has
any legal basis upon which to withdraw his guilty plea before we proceed to
revocation.

MS. BORDER: And just for the record, | do have the phone in my
possession. Okay.

THE COURT: So, how iong do you need, Ms. Border, to —

MS. BORDER: Are we able to pass this until September 57

THE COURT: We are.

MS. BORDER: Okay. That's two weeks, a little over two weeks.

THE COURT: Sure. And that'll just be the status check. And if you find
grounds then we can set a briefing schedule if you —

MS. BORDER: Yeah. That's fine.

THE COURT: Or you file or whatever. Okay.

MS. BORDER: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Nunn, Ms. Border will be over to see you.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you.
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THE COURT CLERK: September 5™ at 9:00 a.m.

[Proceedings concluded at 9:49 a.m.]
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Thursday, September 5, 2019

[Hearing began at 9:08 a.m.]

THE COURT CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie
Nunn, C336184.

THE COURT: Ms. Border did you get a chance to look at
the phone and -

MS. BORDER: Your Honor, I've reviewed the mass
amounts of underlying discovery, spoken to Mr. Goldstein
regarding his defenses and his conversations with Mr. Nunn. | do
have the phone in possession now. | just need an additional week
to go through some things with Mr. Nunn himself. There was
another witness that I'd like to try and make contact with.

So this was a status check just to see if there was a basis
to file a motion. Are we able to -

THE COURT: Are you still not sure if there’s a basis or are
we continuing it to see if there's a basis and then going to set a
briefing schedule? If so, what are we doing?

MS. BORDER: --yes.

THE COURT: You want just a week.

MS. BORDER: | would rather do the week —

THE COURT: Right.

MS. BORDER: -- because if there’s not a basis then -

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. BORDER: Thank you.
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THE COURT CLERK: September 12t at 9 a.m.
MS. BORDER: Thank you.

[Hearing concluded at 9:09 a.m.]
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Thursday, September 12, 2019

[Hearing began at 10:46 a.m.]

THE COURT CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie
Nunn, C336184.

THE COURT: Where are we on this? Do you know? Did
she say?

MR. GILLIAM: Good Morning, Judge, Dan Gilliam, #92 67
on behalf of Ms. Border for Mr. Nunn. Judge, my understanding is,
according - from Ms. Border, a briefing schedule needs to be made.

THE COURT: Okay. You talk to Ms. Border, and she’s
going to go ahead and put together a motion for you right?

THE DEFENDANT: | haven't talked to her about it, but can
you explain to me what that means?

THE COURT: That means - remember that you wanted to
withdraw your guilty plea?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: And | appointed Ms. Border to look into - if
you have a basis -

THE DEFENDANT: Yes ma'am.

THE COURT: She must think that there’s something
worth filing at least, so she’s going to do it - prepare a motion to
withdraw guiity plea, then the State will respond, and then she’ll
reply, then we'll set it for argument.

THE DEFENDANT: Oh.
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THE COURT: Qkay?

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you.

THE COURT: Yes. She say how long she wants? I'm going
to keep the original letter in the file, left side, and then - you all
want copies?

THE MARSHAL: We need to recall page 20.

THE COURT: Wait, we need a briefing schedule. How long
does she want to file? Do you know?

MR. GILLIAM: Can we have 30 days please?

THE COURT: So, 30 days for opening.

THE COURT CLERK: That'll be October 10%.

THE COURT: State, you want two weeks to respond?

MS. WONG: Please.

THE COURT CLERK: October 24,

MR. GILLIAM: Judge, she probably will not want to reply,
but if the Court wants to give her time to do one, she can.

THE COURT: All right. We'll give her a week to reply.

THE COURT CLERK: October 31*.

THE COURT: And then the next date for hearing.

THE COURT CLERK: November 5t at 9 a.m.

THE COURT: And that will be just for the hearing and the
motion to withdraw guilty plea. If it's denied, we’ll set a sentencing
date after that so that the State can let the victims know if they want
to appear, okay; but I'm not going to plan to go forward in

sentencing unless somebody calls me ahead of time. Is that it?
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MR. GILLIAM: Judge, thank you.

[Hearing concluded at 10:49 a.m.]
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Tuesday November 5, 2019

[Hearing began at 11:15 a.m.]

THE COURT CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie
Nunn, C336184.

MS. BORDER: Good Morning present with Ms. Nunn,
who is in custody - Mr. Nunn, who is in custody.

MR. JONES: And John Jones on behalf of the State; and
Your Honor, | did reach out to your law clerk -

THE COURT: I'm sorry, what page?

MS. BORDER: It's 21, Your Honor.

MR. JONES: It's 21, Sammie Nunn.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. JONES: And Your Honor, | reached out to your law
clerk because originally, the Defense in this case was talking about
filing a motion to withdraw a guilty plea, and I think they realized
procedurally, a writ of habeas corpus was probably best avenue in
which to challenge what their challenging. So, they did file a writ.

We filed a response. Today is the status check on the
motion to withdraw guilty plea, in which the Defendant did not file;
11/26 is when the writ is scheduled.

So, | emailed just to see what was happening today, and |
didn't know if Your Honor is ready to decide the writ today, | think

we're ready to at least argue. | think we're both are just going to

Page 2 2‘ 8

158




10

"

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

submit; but if you want to pass it to 11/26, that's fine with us as
well.

THE COURT: I'm ready. Mr. Nunn, you ready to go
forward?

THE DEFENDANT: I'm ready.

THE COURT: Allright.

MS. BORDER: And yes, Your Honor, Mr. Jones was
correct in that | - upon further reflection realized that because of it
was post-sentencing that it probably was required to be called a
writ, so with that information in hand, | did file the writ.

| think that everything including the facts learned from the
investigator, the potential new witness that would come forward at
a jury trial, if granted, the relief requested, that this does rise to the
level required for the writ hearing, and we would be submitting on
the writ, asking for him to be able to withdraw the guilty plea.

MR. JONES: And Your Honor, the question is - just
briefly, manifest injustice; and according to the Defendant's
arguments, Your Honor, they're asserting a factual, excuse me, self-
defense, which is not a factual deficiency, thus we don't have a
legal insufficiency here, Judge, and you should deny the
Defendant's petition for a writ of habeas corpus.

THE COURT: | am going to deny the petition. | don't see
that the plea was not freely and voluntarily entered. This wasn't a
jury trial, this was actually a guilty plea, with a self-defense issue —

actually in a sense, I'm not even sure we get there, but in any event,
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| do not find manifest injustice, and I'm going to deny it based on
the State’'s opposition. If you guys would prepare the findings and
order, I'd appreciate it.

MS. BORDER: So, Your Honor, this was kind of an odd
juncture in that he was back on a probation revocation. Did we -

THE COURT: Okay - right, right. We need to reset the
revocation.

MS. BORDER: And does that go back to the original
attorney?

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. BORDER: Okay.

THE COURT: it should.

MS. BORDER: | don't recall who that was, if it was the
Public Defender’s Office or if it was Mr. Goldstein.

MR. JONES: It was Mr. Goldstein.

THE DEFENDANT: It was Goldstein. Because he didn't -
he didn't talk to the new witness. There was a - there’s a new
witness — | don't know -

MS. BORDER: And the new witness was the one that was
the basis for the writ that we had filed.

THE DEFENDANT: Right and the new witness submitted
an affidavit stating what's happening, and that’'s what we were
supposed to be here for today.

THE COURT: And that's - that's what | just ruled on. |

don't find that there’s sufficient information there for me to make a
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finding of manifest injustice, which is what | would have to find in
order to allow you to withdraw your plea at this point, so.

THE DEFENDANT: Did you read over the affidavit?

THE COURT: | did. | read everything. | did.

THE DEFENDANT: So -

THE COURT: So, my question is we need to set this back
for revocation, probation hearing, and | think we put Mr. Goldstein
back on it because you were just on for a limited purpose, correct?

MS. BORDER: That was my understanding, Your Honor.

THE DEFENDANT: -- so Your Honor, even though | was
being attacked, that’s not manifest injustice?

THE COURT: Even though what?

THE DEFENDANT: Even though - if | was being attacked,
and | had to defend myself, that's not manifest injustice?

THE COURT: That's — you mixed up the standards, but
I've already ruled on that, so let’s just set the revocation hearing.
Do we need to bring Mr. Goldstein back in before we set it?

MR. JONES: if you want to set it, and as long as you
notify Mr. Goldstein, if the Court will, I'll notify the officer to be
present on the date that you set.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Do | - what's the next process in this?

Do | go to a higher court or what happens after you dismiss it?
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THE COURT: Talk to Mr. Goldstein about it. Right now,
you're going to come back here on a revocation to see if we're
going to revoke your probation.

MS. BORDER: And Your Honor, for Mr. Nunn, | wil
provide him the writ, the response, and the order with the Court's
ruling, so it's crafted a little more clear when you go through it with
Mr. Goldstein.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, | still don't understand what's —
why. If somebody provoked me and chased me down and put their
hands on me -

THE COURT: You pled guilty. You pled guilty, Mr. Nunn -

THE DEFENDANT: -- but that was -

THE COURT: -- and once you plead guilty, there are
certain things the law says -

THE DEFENDANT: -- what about factual --

THE COURT: -- you have to show certain things which |
found you have not shown under the law.

THE DEFENDANT: -- | showed factual innocence.

THE COURT: Well, | disagree, but you could - you can
appeal that.

THE DEFENDANT: | showed factual innocence.

THE COURT: Like | said, | disagree, but you can appeal
that.

THE DEFENDANT: Can we argue the facts?

THE COURT: No.
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THE DEFENDANT: | mean, ain’t this what the hearing is

for?

THE COURT: We're done.

MS. BORDER: And just to be clear Mr. Nunn, the facts

that would be argued are in the writ -

THE COURT: Right.

MS. BORDER: -- that the Court has viewed, so -

THE DEFENDANT: Do you mind if | get a copy?

THE COURT: She’s going to give you a copy of
everything; that's what she just said.

MS. BORDER: Everything.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: I know all the facts. | know what you're
alleging, I'm simply saying -

THE DEFENDANT: It's not what I'm alleging. It's what the
witness is alleging.

THE COURT: I understand you have a witness, and like |
said, that doesn't make a finding of factual innocence, especially
when you got a self-defense so; and you pled guilty.

THE DEFENDANT: | pled guilty without having the
opportunity to have all the witnesses available.

THE COURT: Well, you didn't say I'm pleading guilty
because | don't have all the witnesses. You pled guilty, and so that

kicks in a certain standard.
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THE DEFENDANT: And | also pled guilty to a 2 to 5 and
you gave me a 4 to 10; and | have no criminal history. | only got
misdemeanors .

THE COURT: There must have been a reason, | don't
know what it was.

THE DEFENDANT: | don't know what the reason was.

THE COURT: Well we ~

THE DEFENDANT: it was you going off the old witness -
the witness statements, that's why this was so big because you
read the witness’ statement, and you gave me a 4 to 10, and these
are - this is what actually happened.

THE COURT: All right, well | suspect that we'll revisit that
at the time of your revocation hearing, and then I'll have more
information on that part of it. Right now, I've just got the writ in
front of me.

THE DEFENDANT: So, the reason I'm going to prison or
getting house arrest or whatever - if that - if the reason that that
happened changed, you're still just going to go like it never like -

THE COURT: | don't-

THE DEFENDANT: -- like you never heard the true story
behind what happened?

THE COURT: -~ I'm not understanding what you're saying
but -

THE DEFENDANT: Something separate happened than
what | pled guilty to.
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THE COURT: -- 1 can only change sentencing if there’s a
problem. Talk to Mr. Goldstein. If he thinks that there’s a motion to
be filed, he'll file it. Okay, revocation hearing —

THE COURT CLERK: | need to set a revocation hearing
date, so when would you like that?

MR. JONES: Court’s pleasure. At this point, | don't have
the officer here, so I'll email him. If there’s an issue, I'll bring it to
the Court’s and Mr. Goldstein’s attention.

THE COURT CLERK: November 14™, 9 a.m., for
revocation.

THE COURT: Okay. We'll be back here next Thursday.

[Hearing concluded at 11:24 a.m.]

* KKK R ¥

ATTEST: 1 do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

Kt f i

Wﬁe G. Sison
ourt Recorder/Transcriber

Page 9

225

165



Appellant did not fully understand his plea. (RAB, p. 14) (See also, O.B. 14)

This was not a new claim on appeal. This claim had been raised in the pretrial
Motion to Dismiss and to Withdraw Counsel. (See, A.A. 38-49) (See, O.B. 14) The
State wrongly presumes that the mere affirmations by a defendant during the plea
canvas, that he understood most of his rights and that he had services of counsel were
alone sufficient to establish his waiver was knowing and intelligent. Patton v.
Warden, 91 Nev. 1, 530 P.2d 107 (1975).

There exists substantial case law that the mere incantations of proper responses
to a standard plea canvas is insufficient to establish a plea is voluntary. See, for
example, Wilkins v. Bowersox, 145 F.3d 1006 (8th Cir.1998). The Court must look
to the totality of circumstances to determine if a plea was voluntary. See, Freese v.
State, 116 Nev. 1097, 13 P.3d 442 (2000), McConnell v. State, 125 Nev. 243,212
P.3d 307 (2009). Looking at the totality of circumstances, Defendant submits his plea
was not a knowing and intelligent waiver of his rights.

II. THE DISTRICT COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION WHEN IT
ACCEPTED APPELLANT’S “STIPULATION” TO REVOCATION OF HIS
PROBATION AS PART OF A PLEA NEGOTIATION.

It is respectfully submitted that Appellant was compelled to “stipulate™ to

4
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revocation as part of his plea negotiations. The Court erred because it did not consider
meaningful existing mitigation evidence that would have been grounds for not
automatically revoking his probation by stipulation.

Defendant submits, as in any plea negotiation, the Court had a duty to
scrutiqize the fairess of the terms of the neéotiation to determine if the negotiated
settlement was fair and just and then decide whether the negotiated settlement was
overreaching in any way, or violated due process, or was otherwise'unfair. It is
respectfully submitted the Court had the duty and the power to reject an unfair plea
agreement. See, Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure § 11(c)(4) allowing a court to
reject a plea agreement in certain cases. See aI.;'o, NRS 174.035, and the ABA
Standards: The Function of a Trial Judge, § 4.1, 4.2.

The Court in this case, without any scrutiny of the agreement or apparently any
awareness of possible mitigating circumstances, merely rubber-stamped the
stipulation which resulted in the Defendant’s revocation of probation. There was no
hearing in this case where the Appellant could have presented mitigating evidence.
Since revocation of probation is not supposed to be automatic, it is respectfully
submitted that the District Court abused its discretion by not requiring an adversary
hearing where the Defendant could have exercised his constitutional right to
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subpoena witnesses, Chambers v. Mississippi, 410 U.S. 284 (1973). Defendant was
denied his right to confront and cross examine witnesses against him, as guaranteed
by the Sixth Amendment.

Defendant had aliberty interest in getting a fair hearing at a revocation hearing.
Gagnon v. Scarpelli 411 U S. 7?8 (1973). The denial of his constitutional rights to
a fair due process hearing should be considered reversible error.

HI. THECUMULATIVE ERROR REQUIRES REVERSAL OF APPELLANT’S

CONVICTION, |

It is respectfully submitted Appellant demonstrated cumulative error in this
case. The State claims there were not “multiple errors” in this case which require
relief. (RAB, p. 19) Appellant however submits that the District Court abused its
discretion in two different ways and each of those abuses of discretion should be
considered separate error that should be cumulated for review.

The State cites Mulder v. State, 116 Nev. 1, 17, 992 P.2d 845, 855 (2000), for
the relevant factors to consider in evaluating any claim of cumulative error: “1)
whether the issue of guilt was clos’e; (2) the quantity and character of error; and (3)
the gravity of the crime(s) charged.” Id. 17 (RAB, p. 20)

The State argued because the Defendant pled guilty the issue of guilt wasn’t
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close. (RAB, p. 20) That argument wrongly presumes the plea is valid. The State does
admit the Defendant’s category B crimes were serious felonies. (RAB, p. 20) It is
respectfully submitted the abuses of discretion were each of great enough significance _

that the errors should be cumulated.

CONCLUSION

Appellant respectfully submits the Court should carefully consider all the prior
pleadings, including all pretrial motions, Appellant’s Opening Briefand Appellant’s
Reply Brief as well as Respondent’s Answering Brief and find that the District Court
erred when it denied Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw His Guilty Plea.

Nothing in Respondent’s Answering Brief, such as the argument this Court had
no jurisdiction, should cause this Honorable Court to do anything other than issue an
Order reversing Appellant’s conviction and remanding the case to the District Court.
for further proceedings. The Defendant should have been allowed to withdraw his
plea under the totality of circumstances. This is especially true because the State
would not have been prejudiced. Hart v. State, 116 Nev. 558 (2000).

DATED this 1st day of October, 2020.
Respectfully submitted,
/18!l Terrence M. Jackson

Terrence M. Jackson, Esquire
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Tuesday, November 26, 2019

[Hearing began at 9:05 a.m.]

THE COURT CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie Nunn,
C336184.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor, Anthony Goldstein for the
Defendant. He’s in custody, but he was a refusal today.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: My suggestion is he has a — he filed a
motion to dismiss me. He’s already been sentenced; you've already
revoked him.

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: He filed a notice of appeal on his own, |
believe last week, and he also filed on his own a motion to dismiss me
and appoint alternate appellate counsel. | think that's on in about two
weeks. Maybe we could set the hearing on that same date - this
hearing, continued to that same date or advance the other motion
forward, it's up to you. | just thought to throw them on the same date.

THE COURT: Yes, we'll put it to that date. Is that good?

THE COURT CLERK: Yes.

THE COURT: Perfect. Thank you.

THE COURT CLERK: December 17" at 9 a.m.

THE COURT: Thanks.

[Hearing concluded at 9:06 a.m.]
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ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

Xt f S,

Yydtte G. Sison
urt Recorder/Transcriber
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DISTRICT COURT
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CASE#: C-18-336184-1
DEPT. XVIH

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
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SAMMIE NUNN,
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HABEAS CORPUS/MOTION TO WITHDRAW COUNSEL AND
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Tuesday, December 17, 2019

[Hearing began at 9:27 a.m.]

THE COURT CLERK: State of Nevada versus Sammie
Nunn, C336184.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Your Honor -

MR. JONES: John Jones on behalf of the State.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- the Defendant is not here. He's in the
Nevada Department of Corrections. | think there was an order to
transport. | saw one on Odyssey, but he was supposed to be here
and that’s why we passed it to today, but for whatever reason he's
not here. He's got a pro se petition — post-conviction petition on;
also, a motion to appoint appellate counsel for the appeal that he
filed on his own.

THE COURT: When were we last here?

MR. JONES: Your Honor, we were last here on 11/26, but
Il note —

THE COURT: 1 know that he refused to be transported that
day.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: He was also found incompetent for a
while and this case has kind of a ~ | want to say tortured history, but
it'’s been around a bit. You appointed --

THE COURT: Oh, | know.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: - he's had multiple attorneys on the

case, Your Honor. He tried to withdraw his plea. You appointed
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Ms. Border for that. | came back on eventually, but that’s -- and he
filed everything, all his post-conviction matters on his own.

MR. JONES: And Your Honor, I'll note that the calendar
does say it's on for post-conviction writ of habeas corpus. But if
you recall, this was set on 11/5. Ms. Border was here. We argued
on the writ, and it was decided on that day. | show it was denied,
and we went ahead and set the revo for 11/14.

On 11/14, you modified and revoked the Defendant,
modified to a 36 to 120, and the case was closed. For some reason,
it was stili on 11/26. | don't know why; but that was the original writ
date that we moved forward to 11/5, and for some reason my
procedural history is wrong, please correct me, but | show the writ
has already been denied. In fact, that's why we went ahead and
proceeded with the revocation.

THE COURT: That - | do recall that all now, actually. |
mean | remember doing something and then proceeding and
setting the revo.

MR. JONES: In fact, it's on 11/5 that Mr. Goldstein was re-
appointed for purposes of the revo. Ms. Border withdrew because
you had decided the writ.

[Colloquy - The Court and the clerk]

THE COURT: She says it was the motion to withdraw
guilty plea that was denied.

MR. JONES: Well, it was originally supposed to be a

motion to withdraw guilty plea, but remember Ms. Border, after
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writ of habeas corpus instead. So, she never filed a motion to

withdraw - | don't believe she filed a motion to withdraw, | believe
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THE COURT: You're right, yes. You did have that the writ
was denied, correct? She shows it got continued.

MR. JONES: The writ?

THE COURT: The writ because he wasn't - are you
looking at the 11/5?

[Colloquy - The Court and the clerk)

THE COURT: Okay, it's effectively - it's really not - we
didn’t hear a motion to withdraw guilty plea.

MR. JONES: Because | don't believe a motion to
withdraw guilty plea was ever filed in this case. It was actually a
writ that was filed.

THE COURT: It was a writ to withdraw guilty plea. |
mean, | think that's what you probably heard. Do you see a motion
to withdraw guilty plea filed?

[Colloquy - The Court and the clerk]

THE COURT: Okay, we're going to just - we'll have to go
ahead and correct whatever it is we corrected. It doesn't appear
that there’s ever been a motion to withdraw a guilty plea filed. The
only thing that we have filed and the thing that was argued was the
Defendant's post-conviction petition, which was heard and denied

on the 5™. Has an order already been done as well?
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MR. JONES: | referred it to Appeals, Your Honor, for an
order to be done. | don't know if they had done it yet, but | will
make a note that they need to get the order to you ASAP.

THE COURT: Okay, that was on today, but we're just
going to correct the record. It had been previously ruled on. So,
that’s that.

With respect to the motion to withdraw counsel, | don't
see any reason we can't let you off right? Is there a reason Mr.
Jones?

MR. JONES: We're taking no position on his motion to
withdraw counsel.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Can we approach on this one?

THE COURT: VYes, pleass.

[Bench Conferencel]

THE COURT CLERK: M just says; Court ordered motion
denied based on his opposition, and the minute order that he
[unintelligible] -

THE COURT: Okay, so we're clarifying — | don't know that
matters.

MR. JONES: Because | think it was on calendar call for a
motion to withdraw, but instead - because that’s what Marisa said
she was going to file -

THE COURT: Right.

MR. JONES: - but she ended up filing a writ, and | think

that’s where the confusion is.

Page 5 ?_4 O

177




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

25

THE COURT CLERK: Yeah, | think that hearing was for a
motion -

MR. JONES: Yeah but we actually argued the writ
instead, and | think that's why.

THE COURT: Do you need anything else to fix that?

THE COURT CLERK: No, I'll just do [unintelligible} -

THE COURT: See Dara wasn't here, otherwise that
wouldn’t have happened.

THE COURT CLERK: -- [unintelligible] exactly what motion
it was - [unintelligible] --

MR. JONES: Should we pull the minutes just to see - |
mean pull the transcript just to be safe.

THE COURT: | feel - | feel confident. You feel confident?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | wasn't here for that, so [ don't really
know. It was Marisa’s thing.

THE COURT: Oh.

MR. JONES: | have - there was like 10-foot halo around
me.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Here's why the motion to dismiss is
tricky; because he - as trial counsel, | have an obligation to pursue
even pointless, meritless appeals -

THE COURT: Correct.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- the problem is he filed a federal civil
lawsuit naming me and other people as the Defendant. So he's -

which | haven't been served with and people do that sometimes.
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So, there’s a conflict — there might be a conflict. | am his trial
counsel, and you do not have a duty to appoint a separate appellate
counsel. He doesn't have the right to choose his own appellate
counsel, but at the same time there is a Federal lawsuit pending, so
it's possible that he is going to claim that | have a conflict because
he has sued me civilly.

THE COURT: Let me ask you this, if | don't grant your
motion to withdraw --

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Waell it's his - it's his motion to dismiss,
not my motion — just to -

THE COURT: -- that's what | meant, if | don't grant his
motion to -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- | could file a motion -

THE COURT: -- then what do you do?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- I could file a motion to withdraw
based on the civil lawsuit. | was hoping he would be here in court
today so | could speak with him. .

THE COURT: Want me to put - let’s just not do anything
and we’ll bring him back.

MR. JONES: Can we do it after New Year?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah.

MR. JONES: When is your appellate deadline?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | need to look that up. | was going to -

THE COURT: Are you going to go ahead and file it
anyway?
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MR. GOLDSTEIN: I'm going to have to — until I'm
withdrawn from the case; | mean | have to get permission from the
Supreme Court to withdraw from that now. So, it’s all - it gets all
crazy —

THE COURT: Have you filed it?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: -- | haven't filed anything yet.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Because I'm still looking at deadlines,
and also that he'd be here so that we can kind of work things out to
see what his plan was. | don't even know what the basis of it is.

THE COURT: Do you want to go ahead and file it? Do you
want - do want to check and see the deadlines so that we know
when we have to bring him down by. Are you just going to go
ahead and file it anyway -

MR. GOLDSTEIN: | would -

THE COURT: - and we just set it in 30, what do you want
to do?

MR. GOLDSTEIN: My suggestion would be setting it in 30
days or three weeks or whatever, some time after the New Years,
and I'll check deadlines between now and then. | can get extensions
if necessary, under these circumstances from the Supreme Court.

THE COURT: Qkay.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: It's just kind of a mess because
[unintelligible] -

THE COURT: All right. Let’s get him here.
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MR. GOLDSTEIN: Yeah that's -
THE COURT: He likes to be here.
[Bench Conference Concluded]

THE COURT: All right. We're going to continue this. We
did a - the State did an order to transport. Mr. Nunn, | think needs
to shed some light on some of this stuff. I'm not sure why he wasn't
brought, so we'll pass it 30 and ask the State to do another order
and maybe see what - if they could figure out what happened
today. | suppose he could've refused right? He did last time.

MR. JONES: Do you want to put by any means necessary,
because it sounds like we need to address this.

THE COURT: We do need to. Let's give him one more
time.

MR. JONES: Okay.

THE COURT: [don't -1 mean - we don't know that to be
true, so if you - next time if he doesn't come, and he’s refused, and
you find out that he's refused this time, then we’ll do that; 30 days.

THE COURT CLERK: January 14* at 9 a.m.

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT CLERK: And that’s the motion to withdraw
counsel?

THE COURT: That is the motion to withdraw counsel; and
actually, it's to a point — he wants to appoint appellate counsel.

[Hearing concluded at 9:36 a.m.]
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TERRENCE M. JACKSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 00854

Law Office of Terrence M. Jackson
624 South Ninth Street

Las Vegas, NV 89101

T: 702-386-0001 / F: 702-386-0085

terry.jackson.es il.com
ounsel for Sammie Nunn

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

SAMMIE NUNN, ) Case No.: C-18-336184-1
#1226304 )
Defendant / Petitioner, g Dept. No.: XVII
v. ;
STATE OF NEVADA, ) HEARING REQUESTED
)
Plaintiff/ Respondent. ;

SUPPLEMENTARY MOTION FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING FOR PRO PER
PETITION FOR SAMMIE NUNN FOR HABEAS CORPUS RELIEF

COMES NOW the Defendant/ Petitioner, SAMMIE NUNN, by and through his newly
appointed counsel, TERRENCE M. JACKSON, ESQ., and respectfully requests this Honorable

Court to allow filing of Supplemental Points and Authorities in Support of Habeas Corpus Relief
to Defendant Nunn’s Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on January 24, 2020, by
requesting an evidentiary hearing for his Writ of Habeas Corpus,

As grounds for this Motion, counsel states that he was just appointed to represent Mr.
Sammie Nunn on February 18, 2020. Counsel further states that reviewing Defendant’s Pro Per
Petition, counsel believes that it alleges sufficient material facts that an evidentiary hearing is
required because there are material facts in dispute. This Motion is further based upon the
accompanying Points and Authorities incorporated herein.

Respectfully submitted this 10th day of March, 2020.

/s/ _Terrence M. Jackson

TERRENCE M. JACKSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 00854

terry.jackson.es ail.com
Counsel for Sammie Nunn
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Case Number: C-18-336184-1
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

In Marshall v. State, 110 Nev. 1328, 885 P.2d 603 (1994), the Nevada Supreme Court
reversed Marshall's conviction because he was denied an evidentiary hearing on post-conviction.
The Court there stated:

“When a petition for post-conviction relief raises claims
supported by specific factual allegations which, if true, would entitle
the petitioner to relief, the petitioner is_entitled to an evidentiary
hearing unless those claims are repelied by the record.” Hargrove v.
State, 100 Nev. 498, 686 P.2d 222 (1984). Id. 1331

Although the Court rejected many of Marshall’s claims as meritless, it found the issue of
insufficiency of the evidence presented to the grand jury suppotting the possession of controlled
substance charge to have merit and reversed those counts stating:

“At most, the state presented evidence that appellant
frequented an apartment that was rented to his brother and that
appellant stored some of his personal belongings in the apartment,
This evidence is not sufficient to establish that appellant, rather than
one of the numerous other persons who frequented the apartment,
possessed the cocaine and the marijuana the police found. Appellate
counsel was ineffective for failing to raise this issue on appeal and
counsel’s failure prejudiced appellate. Warden v. Lyons, 100 Nev.
430, 683 P.2d 504 (1984), cert. den., 471 U.S. 1004 (1985). The
district court erred in refusing to provide appellant an e¢videntiary
hearing on this issue and in denying appellant relief.”

“Because the record on appeal establishes that appellant was
improperly convicted of the possession charges, we reverse
appellant’s judgment of conviction on these charges and we vacate
the sentenced imposed with respect to those convictions.” Id. 1333,
(Emphasis added)

It is respectfully submitted that in this case Defendant, as in Marshall, supra, has raised

factual claims which, if true, entitle him to an evidentiary hearing. Defendant also directs the Court

2-
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to Hatley v. State, 100 Nev. 214 (1984), where the Supreme Court reversed stating:

“The district court, however, refused to conduct an evidentiary hearing and summarily denied

appellant’s petition.
We conclude that it was error for the district court to deny the
petition without first holding an evidentiary hearing. It is well settled
that when “a petition for post-conviction relief contains allegations of

facts outside the record which, if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief, an evidentiary hearing thereon is required.” (Emphasis added)

Defendant in his Pro Per Petition has clearly alleged his ‘factual innocence’ and deserves a

hearing on his claims. To deny him a full hearing will lead to reversal of his conviction.

Respectfully submitted this 10th day of March, 2020.

/s/ _Terrence M. Jackson
TERRENCE M. JACKSON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No.: 00854

Law Office of Terrence M. Jackson

624 South Ninth Street
Las Vegas, NV 89101

T: 702-386-0001 / F: 702-386-0085
terry.jackson.esq@gmail.com

Counsel for Sammie Nunn
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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SAMMIE NUNN, ) Case No.: C-18-336184-1
#1226304 )
Defendant / Petitioner, ) Dept. No.: XVIII
)
v )
)
STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Plaintiff/ Respondent. )
)
NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Defendant’s Supplementary Motion for Evidentiary Hearing for

Pro per Petition for Habeas Corpus Relief in the above-entitled matter is set for hearing as follows:
Date:
Time:
Location: RIC Courtroom 3F
Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Note: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the Eighth Judicial
District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a hearing must serve this notice on
the party by traditional means.

By: /s/ Ha C_Wills
Assistant to T. M. Jackson, Esq.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic F iling and Conversion
Rules, a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on this case
in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/ fla C. Wills
Assistant to T. M. Jackson, Esq.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an assistant to Terrence M. Jackson, Esq., 1 am a person competent
to serve papers and not a party to the above-entitled action and on the 10th of March, 2020, I served
a copy of the foregoing Defendant/Petitioner, SAMMIE NUNN’S, SUPPLEMENTARY MOTION
FOR EVIDENTIARY HEARING FOR PRO PER PETITION FOR HABEAS CORPUS RELIEF

as follows:
[X] ViaElectronic Service (CM/ECF) to the Eighth Judicial District Court and by United States

first flass mail to the Nevada Attorney General and Petitioner/Appellant as follows:

STEVEN B. WOLFSON JOHN T. NIMAN

Clark County District Attorney Clark County Deputy D.A. - Criminal
steven.wolfson@clarkcountyda.com john.niman@clarkcountyda.com
SAMMIE NUNN AARON D. FORD

ID# 1226304 Nevada Attorney General

High Desert State Prison 100 North Carson Street

Post Office Box 650 Carson City, Nevada 89701

Indian Springs, NV 89070-0650

By: /s/ Hla C. Wills
Assistant to T. M. Jackson, Esq.
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ARGUMENT

L THEDISTRICT COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR WHEN
IT DENIED DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO WITHDRAW HIS GUILTY

PLEA. DENIAL OF THIS MOTION WAS MANIFESTLY UNJUST.

The District Court denied Defendant’s Mation to Withdraw Plea after argument
on November 5, 2019, issuing an Order finding that the plea was valid. (A.A. 76) He
submits the District Court Order incorrectly denied Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw
His Plea because Defendant’s plea was not a knowing, voluntary and intelligent
waiver and under the totality of circumstances the plea was manifestly unjust.
Defendant in his pleading had made a credible assertion of his factual innocence and

he was entitled to an evidentiary hearing on those claims.

A. There Was Insufficient Pretrial Investigation and Preparation Preplea and
Inadequate Attorney Client Counseling Concerning Possible Defenses.

In this case, it is respectfully submitted defense counsel was ineffective
investigating the facts and preparing preplea. Strickland requires at least minimal
investigation. Stricklandv. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984), Id. 691. Defendant also

directs the court to such cases as Bustos v, White, 521 F.3d 321 (4th Cir.2018); Premo
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v. Moore, 562 U.S. 115 (2011); Raysor v. United States, 647 F.3d 491 (2d Cir.2011);
Smith v. Mahoney, 611 F.3d 978 (9th Cir.2010); United States v. Mooney, 497 F.3d
397 (4th Cir.2007); Dando v. Yukins, 461 F.3d 791 (6th Cir.2006); United States v.
Keller, 902 F.2d 1391 (9th Cir.1990); laea'v. Sunn, 800 F.2d 861 (9th Cir. 1986); and
Fields v. Gibson, 277 F.3d 1203 (10th Cir. 2002). Each of these cases held guilty
pleas should be overturned because of counsel’s failure to prepare adequately before
the plea. Defendant submits the facts in this case are also compelling for setting aside
the Defendant’s guilty plea and the Defendant therefore urges this Honorable Court
to find that the District Court erred when it denied the Defendant’s Motion to

Withdraw his plea.

In this case Defendant Saxﬁmie Nunn also submits that he never adequately
consulted with his counsel before the plea. He never received an adequate explanation
of all the rights of a defendant. He never received informed advice on the strength of
the prosecution’s case, as well as any possible defenses the Defendant may have had.
See, Von Moitke v. Gillies, 332 U.S. 708 (1948); Libretti v. United States, 516 U.S.

29 (1995).

Because of defense counsel’s failure to adequately assist Defendant with
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necessary investigation preplea, his plea in this case must be considered to have been
both unknowing and unintelligent and therefore invalid. Defendant argued in his
Motion to Withdraw, filed immediately after his sentencing, that his attorney never
adequately counseled him about pbssible defenses. Defendant felt he had no choice
but to plead guilty. If counsel had competently investigated potential or even
adequately discussed viable defenses with Defendant, Defendant would not have felt

compelled to plead guiity.

B. Under the Totality of Ci mgms tances Defendant’s Plea of Guilty Was Involuntary,

In order to be constitutionally valid, a guilty plea must be knowingly and
voluntarily entered. Love v. State, 99 Nev. 147, 659 P.2d 876 (1983). See also, Bryant

v. State, 102 Nev. 268 (1986); Baal v. State, 106 Nev. 69, 787 P.3d 391 (1990).

Even though a plea of guilty is considered to be presumptively valid, Wynn v.
State, 96 Nev. 673, 615 P.2d 946 (1980), Defendant submits in this case that he easily
met his burden of proof and shows that the instant plea is not valid for numerous
reasons. The Defendant has had a lengthy history of mental problems. He was
committed to Rawson-Neal Psychiatric Hospital in January of 2019 and not

discharged until April of 2019. (A.A. 09-11), (A.A. 122-125) The Defendant
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unfortunately did not ever have a good relationship with his counsel. He attempted
to express his concerns to the Court many times. (A.A. 15-20), (A.A. 38-49), (A.A.
50-52), (A.A. 88-90) It is respectfully submitted that counsel’s failure to effectively
investigate and prepare with his client before the plea aggravated Defendant’s
concerns. Defendant’s waiver of his right to trial must be strictly construed because

the totality of circumstances suggest his plea was neither intelligent or voluntary.

C. Denial of the Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw Guilty Plea Was Manifestly
Unjust Because the Defendant Magde a Credible Assertion of Factual Innocence.

The assertion that Defendant has a ‘credible factual innocence’ claim combined
| with his allegations of involuntariness and lack of full understanding at his plea make
this a strong case for reversal. NRS 176.165 allows a guilty plea to be set aside to
correct a manifest injustice. A fundamental miscarriage of justice occurs when the
defendant can assert that he has been harmed in such a way that it is unfair to bind

him to his plea.

D.  Substantial Doubt as to Defendant’s Competency at Time of the Plea Is an
Important Factor Supporting Withdrawal of Defendant’s Plea of Guilty.

Defendant submits a significant factor in the totality of circumstances
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surrounding his plea of guilty was his reduced mental capacity. It is respectfully
submitted even though he was adjudged competent on April 12, 2019, (A.A. 12-13)
Defendant had just been released from Rawson-Neal Psychiatric Hospital after he had
a previous competency evaluation on January 18, 2019, where it had been determined

Defendant was not competent to stand trial under NRS 178.425. (A.A. 08)

Despite the subsequent finding of competency on April 12, 2019, Defendant
submits there were still many red flags suggesting his competency was still a serious

issue when he pled guilty a few days after being released from the mental hospital in

April 0f 2019. (A.A. 14)

Because it was such a short time interval since he had been released from a
psychiatric facility, it is respectfully submitted counsel should have been extremely
cautious about pushing a reluctant, mentally fragile, Defendant to take a deal.
Because of Defendant’s antagonistic behavior, counsel should have considered filing
another Motion for Competency and asked for another short continuance before
Defendant pled guilty. The Court should have delayed his plea sua sponte without a
motion from counsel. Mr. Nunn’s actions just before his decision to pléad could be

considered at best equivocal. His actions suggested he was in a state of borderline
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competency, if not in a highly irregular or irrational state of mind.

Again, considering the totality of the circumstances, it is apparent Defendant
Nunn entered a hasty, ill advised plea which occurred after he just got out of a mental
hospital, and while he was greatly dissatisfied with his appointed counsel. Not
surprisingly, just a few days after he entered that plea and was sentenced, he sought

to withdraw the plea. (A.A. 217-226)

In Melchor-Gloria v. State, 99 Nev.174, 660 P.2d 109 (1983), the Nevada
Supreme Court held that issue of whether a defendant was competent to enter a plea
is governed by a reasonable doubt standard. Defendant respectfully submits there was
clearly a reasonable doubt as to Defendant’s competency to plead guilty in this case

and therefore he should have been able to withdraw that plea.

IL.. THE DISTRICT COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION WHEN IT
REVOKED THE DEFENDANT’S PROBATION, WRONGLY
ACCEPTING DEFENDANT’S STIPULATION WITHOUT FULLY
CONSIDERING MITIGATING EVIDENCE AVAILABLE IN THE

RECORD.

Defendant concedes that revocation of probation must be reviewed under a
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discretionary standard. The Nevada Supreme Court noted in Lewis v. State, 90 Nev.

436, 529 P.2d 796 (1974):

“In considering the standard to be applied in
revoking probation, the law is well established that
revocation of probation is within the exercise of the trial
court’s broad discretionary power and such an action will
not be disturbed in the absence of a clear showing of abuse
of that discretion. Pickens v. State of Texas,497 F.2d 981,
982 (5th Cir. 1974); United States v. Lara, 472 F.2d 128,
129 (9th Cir.1972); 18 U.S.C.A. 3651 (the equivalent
federal statute to NRS 176.215).

Evidence beyond a reasonable doubt is not required

.

u court’s discretionary order revoking pr ion.

The evidence and facts must reasonably satisfy the judge

e conduct o robationer has not been ood as

required by the conditions of probation.” Pickens v. State
of Texas, supra; Bernal-Zazueta v. United States, 225 F.2d

64, 68 (9th Cir. 1955). Id. 438 (Emphasis added)
The Defendant, acting without adequate understanding of his rights regarding

his conviction, or his rights to challenge the revocation, chose to stipulate to the facts
of the revocation. (A.A. 227-232)The Court wrongly accepted the Stipulation of the

Defendant and revoked him. The Defendant was then sentenced to 12 to 36 months.
(A.A. 230)
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Defendant now argues that the conviction in this case, no.: C-18-336184-1,
should have been found to be invalid, because the plea was invalid. (See, Argument

1) Therefore the Defendant should not have been revoked and then incarcerated.

The Court having etred in proceeding on the revocation then erred by not
having a meaningful hearing where witnesses could present evidence. There was
abundant evidence of mitigation available to the Court and counsel. It is therefore
respectfully submitted the Court abused its discretion when it revoked the Defendant

by Stipulation. The revocation Order should therefore be reversed. (A.A. 78-79)

Ol. THE ACCUMULATION OF ERROR IN THIS CASE REQUIRES
REVERSING DEFENDANT’S CONVICTION AND SETTING ASIDE
HISUNLAWFUL CONVICTION AND REVERSING THE WRONGFUL

REVOCATION OF PROBATION.

The multiple errors in this case led to Defendant’s conviction being wrongly
sustained despite his attempt to withdraw his invalid plea. That then led to the -

wrongful revocation of probation.

The accumulation of errors in this case require reversal of the Judgment of

Conviction and his unlawful incarceration following the revocation of his probation.

-18-
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It can be argued that even considered separately, the errors which occurred were of
such a magnitude that they each require reversal. But it is clear, when viewed
cumulatively, the case for reversal is overwhelming. Daniel v. State, 119 Nev. 498,
78 P.3d 890 (2003). See also, Sipsas v. State, 102 Nev. at 123, 216 P.2d at 235
(1986), stating: “The accumulation of error is more serious than either isolated

breach, and resulted in the denial of a fair trial.”

The substantive issues in this appeal are related. The denial of the Motion to
Withdraw the Guilty Plealed to the revocation. This led to a substantial sentence. The
Defendant has suffered a serious punishment of imprisonment. Defendant was denied
a zealous, competent defense at each critical stage of the case, that is, the preplea

investigation and preparation and at the revocation hearing when his liberty was at

stake.

Prejudice may result from the cumulative impact of multiple errors. Cooper v.
Fitzharris, 586 F.2d 1325, 1333 (9th Cir. 1978) (en banc), cert. denied, 440 U.S. 970;

Harris by and through Ramseyer v. Wood, 61 F.3d 1432 (9th Cir. 1995).

It has been held that relevant factors to consider in evaluating a claim of

cumulative error are 1] whether the issue of guilt is close, [2] the quantity and
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Steven D. Grierson
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TERRENCE M. JACKSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 00854

Law Office of Terrence M. Jackson
624 South Ninth Street

Las Vegas, NV §9101

T: 702-386-0001 / F: 702-386-0085

terry.jackson.es ail.com
Counsel for Sammie Nunn
EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA, ) Case No.: C-18-336184-1
)
Plaintiff, ) Dept. No.: XVIII
)
V. ) HEARING REQUESTED
)
SAMMIE NUNN, )
#1226304, )
Defendant. )
)

DEFENSE REQUEST FOR APPOINTMENT OF INVESTIGATOR

COMES NOW the Defendant, SAMMIE NUNN, by and through counsel, TERRENCE M.
JACKSON, ESQ., and moves this Court to enter an Order appointing an investigator to assist
counsel to aid Defendant in his pre per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on January 24,
2020, set for hearing on June 16, 2020.

This Motion is further based upon the accompanying Points and Authorities incorporated
herein and such further facts as will come before the Court on a hearing of this Motion.

Respectfully submitted this 17th day of April, 2020.

/s/ _Terrence M. Jackson
TERRENCE M. JACKSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 00854
Law Office of Terrence M. Jackson
624 South Ninth Street
Las Vegas, NV 89101
T: 702.386.0001 / F: 702.386.0085
terry.jackson.esq@gmail . com
Counsel for Sammie Nunn

Case Number: C-18-336184-1 !/ 8

196




OO0 N U B W N e

MNNNNMMMM'—"—‘)—‘I—P—_MHHH
OO*JO\M#UJN'—‘O\DOG--IO\UIAL»JN'—O

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

The Defendant in his Pro Per Petition filed on January 24, 2020, alleges he is “factually
innocent” of the charge of battery with a deadly weapon. The Defendant claims that an eye witness
to the altercation, Mr. McConnell, will testify that the Defendant was acting lawfully in self-defense
during the alleged incident.

An investigator is needed to subpoena this eyewitness to testify at the evidentiary hearing set
for June 16, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. Ake v. Oklahoma, 470 U.S. 68 (1985) and Widdis v. State, 968 P.2d
1165 (1998), provides an indigent should have necessary expert services. Wherefore, Defendant
respectfully requests he be granted an investigator to interview and subpoena the witness necessary
for the evidentiary hearing on June 16, 2020.

Respectfully submitted this 17th day of April, 2020.

s/ Terrence M. Jackson
TERRENCE M. JACKSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.; 00854

Law Office of Terrence M. Jackson
624 South Ninth Street

Las Vegas, NV 89101

T: 702-386-0001 / F: 702-386-0085

terry.jackson.esq@gmail.com

Counsel for Sammie Nunn
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Electronically File
05/24/2021 3,35 P

CLERK OF THE COUR

PPOW

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
3
Sammie Nunn,
Petitioner, Case No: A-21-835110-W
Department 21
Vs,
State of Nevada, >
ORDER FOR PETITION FOR
Respondent, WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
J

Petitioner filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus {Post-Conviction Relief) on
May 24, 2021. The Court has reviewed the Petition and has determined that a response would assist the
Court in determining whether Petitioner is illegally imprisoned and restrained of his/her liberty, and good
cause appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Respondent shall, within 45 days after the date of this Order,
answer or otherwise respond to the Petition and file a return in accordance with the provisions of NRS
34.360 to 34.830, inclusive.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that this matter shall be placed on this Court’s

Calendar on the __7th day of SEPTEMBER ,20_21  at the hour of

1:30 o’clock for further proceedings.

Dated this 24th day of May, 2021

District Court Judge
EF9 B4F 155C 28C4

Tara Clark Newberry
District Court Judge

1-
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CSERYV

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Sammie Nunn, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-21-835110-W
VS, DEPT. NO. Department 21

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case.

If indicated below, a copy of the above mentioned filings were also served by mail
via United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, to the parties listed below at their last
known addresses on 5/25/2021

Sammie Nunn #1226304
SDCC
P.O. Box 208
Indian Springs, NV, 89070
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Electronically Filed
7/6/2021 6:35 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO
RSPN W ﬂm—/

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

JOHN NIMAN

Dcpu;?’ District Attorney
Nevada Bar #014408

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada §9155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

SAMMIE NUNN,
#2751864

Petitioner,

-VS- CASENO: A-21-835110-W
DEPT NO: XXI

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

STATE’S RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S PRO PER
THIRD PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

DATE OF HEARING: SEPTEMBER 7, 2021
TIME OF HEARING: 1:30 PM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through JOHN NIMAN, Deputy District Attorney, and hereby submits the
attached Points and Authorities in Response to Petitioner’s Pro Per Third Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus.

This Response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached Points and Authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

1
i
I
i

WCLARKCOUNTYDA NETYCRMCASE2\2018\269\541201826954C-RSPN-(SAMMIE NUNN)-001.DOCX

Case Number: A-21-835110-W
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On November 14, 2018, Sammie Nunn (hereinafter “Petitioner™) was charged by Wél);l
of Indictment with one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B Felony — NRS 200.481) and
one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS
200.481) for his actions on or between May 27, 2018 and June 3,2018.

On June 6, 2019, pursuant to a Guilty Plea Agreement (“GPA™), Petitioner pled guilty
to one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON. As part of the GPA, the
parties agreed that the State would not oppose probation, and would not oppose Petitioner’s
release on house arrest after the entry of Petitioner’s plea. The parties also stipulated to an
underlying sentence of two (2) to five (5) years in the Nevada Department of Corrections
(“NDOC”). GPA at 1. The Court canvassed Petitioner and accepted Petitioner’s guilty plea.

On June 11, 2019, Petitioner was adjudged guilty and was sentenced to a minimum of
forty-eight (48) to one hundred twenty (120) months in NDOC. Petitioner’s sentence was
suspended, and Petitioner was placed on probation for a term not to exceed five (5) years,
Petitioner was also placed on house arrest.

On July 10, 2019, a Violation Report was filed, indicating Petitioner had violated the -
terms of his probation by failing to abide by the curfew restrictions and by consuming
controlled substances. While the revocation proceedings were ongoing, on July 15, 2019,
Petitioner filed a Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. Petitioner’s l
Motion to Dismiss Counsel was granted, for the limited purpose of having alternate counsel to
determine whether there were grounds to withdraw Petitioner’s guilty plea. -

On October 10, 2019, Petitioner filed a Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habéas
Corpus (his “first Petition™). In his first Petition, Petitioner raised a single argument: a new
witness, E. Mekonnen, could testify to Petitioner’s actual innocence. First Petition at 5-6. Thé
State filed its Response to Petitioner’s first Petition on October 16, 2019. The Court denied

Petitioner’s first Petition on November 5, 2019,

2
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On November 14, 2019, the Court conducted a hearing regarding the revocation of
Petitioner’s probation. Following arguments by the parties, the Court found that Petitioner
violated his probation and revoked the same. The Court modified Petitioner’s sentence of
imprisonment to thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months in NDOC. The Court gave
Petitioner five hundred ten (510) days credit for time served. Petitioner’s Amended Judgment
of Conviction was filed on November 18, 2019.

On November 21, 2019, Petitioner noticed his appeal from his Amended Judgment of
Conviction. On March 5, 2021, the Nevada Court of Appeals affirmed Petitioner’s Amended
Judgment of Conviction. Remittitur issued on March 31, 2021. '

On January 24, 2020 (while his direct appeal was pending), Petitioner filed his second
Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (his “second Petition”). The State filed its
Response and Motion to Dismiss that second Petition on February 25, 2020. On March 10,
2020, Petitioner — through counsel — filed a “Supplementary Motion for Evidentiary Hearing.”
The State filed its Response to that Supplementary Motion on March 31, 2020,

On April 29, 2021, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal, referencing the Court’s denial
of Petitioner’s first Petition on November 5, 2019. The Nevada Supreme Court dismissed
Petitioner’s appeal as untimely on May 21, 2021. Remittitur issued on June 17, 2021.

On May 10, 2021, Petitioner filed another Notice of Appeal, alleging that he had
expired his sentence, and asking the Nevada Supreme Court to release him from custody, The
Nevada Supreme Court dismissed that appeal on May 26, 2021, citing a lack of any appealabié
order. Remittitur issued on June 22, 2021.

On May 24, 2021, Petitioner filed his third Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habez;ls
Corpus (his “third Petition”). The State now responds, as follows: |
"

/"
i
it
i
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

On May 27, 2018, Prince Alidu (the “Victim”) was at Your Stop Liquor, a convenience
store, when he was approached by Petitioner, who asked Victim for fifty (50) cents. Grqnd
Jury Transcript, Tuesday, November 6, 2018 (“GJT”) at 16. Victim told Petitioner he did not
have the money, after which Petitioner’s female friend angrily approached Victim. Id.
Petitioner then came back to Victim and called him names. Id. at 17. Victim asked Petitioner
to leave him alone, and Petitioner left to the nearby apartment complex. Id. A few minutes
later, however, Petitioner came back with a too! in his hand. Id. Victim described the tool as
being approximately one foot long. Id. at 17-18. Petitioner hit Victim in the face with the tool,
resulting in significant bleeding and an eventual scar. Id. _

Officer Vesperas was in the area of Your Stop Liquor on May 27, 2018, when he was
flagged down by a pedestrian. GJT at 6-7. That pedestrian directed Vesperas’s attention to
another individual down the street. Id. at 7. The individual to which Vesperas was directed had
a foot-long wrench in his hand. Id. Vesperas identified that individual as Petitioner. Id. at 8.

Petitioner told Vesperas that he had been attacked and had hit an attacker with the
wrench. GJT at 8. However, Vesperas did not notice any injuries that would require medical
attention, and Petitioner did not complain of any such injuries. Id. at 9.

Officer Hawkins also responded to the area of Your Stop Liquor on May 27, 2018. GJT
at 11. Hawkins came into contact with Victim, who was bleeding from his head. Id. at 12.
Victim identified Petitioner to Hawkins at the scene of the interaction. Id.

On June 3, 2018, Victim was again outside Your Stop Liquor when he was approached
by Petitioner. GJT at 20. At this encounter, Petitioner pulled out a handgun and again hit the
Victim over the head. Id. at 21.

i
"
"
i
/1
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ARGUMENT
L. THE INSTANT PETITION IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED
A. Petitioner’s Third Petition is Time-Barred Under NRS 34.726
Pursuant to NRS 34.726(1), “a Petition that challenges the validity of a judgment or
sentence must be filed within 1 year of the entry of the judgment of conviction...” (Emphasis
added). The Supreme Court of Nevada has held that NRS 34.726 should be construed by its
plain meaning. Pellegrini v. State, 117 Nev. 860, 873-74, 34 P.3d 519, 528 (2001). As per the

language of the statute, the one-year time bar proscribed by NRS 34.726 begins to run from
the date the judgment of conviction is filed or a remittitur from a timely direct appeal is filed.

Dickerson v. State, 114 Nev. 1084, 1087, 967 P.2d 1132, 1133-34 (1998).

The one-year time limit for preparing Petitions for post-conviction relief under NRS

34.726 is strictly applied. In Gonzales v. State, 118 Nev. 590, 596, 53 P.3d 901, 904 (2002),

the Nevada Supreme Court rejected a Habeas Petition that was filed two days late despite
evidence presented by the Defendant that he purchased postage through the prison and mailed
the Notice within the one-year time limit.

Furthermore, the Nevada Supreme Court has held that the district court has a duty to
consider whether a Defendant's post-conviction Petition claims are procedurally barred. State

v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court (Riker), 121 Nev. 225, 231, 112 P.3d 1070, 1074 (2005). The

Riker Court found that "[a]pplication of the statutory procedural default rules to post-

conviction Habeas Petitions is mandatory," noting;

Habeas Corpus Petitions that are filed many years after conviction are an
unreasonable burden on the criminal justice system. The necessity for a
workable system dictates that there must exist a time when a criminal conviction
is final.

///
i
I
"
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1d. Additionally, that Court noted that procedural bars "cannot be ignored [by the district court]
when properly raised by the State." Id. at 233, 112 P.3d at 1075. The Nevada Supreme Court
has granted no discretion to the district courts regarding whether to apply the statutory
procedural bars; the rules must be applied.

Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on June 20, 2019. While Petitioner did
challenge his Amended Judgment of Conviction via appeal, that chailenge dealt with the
propriety of Petitioner’s revocation from probation — it did not challenge the validity of
Petitioner’s conviction — therefore, the one-year time-bar began to run at the time Petitioner’s
original Judgment of Conviction was filed. As such, Petitioner had until June 20, 2020, to file
a timely post-conviction Habeas Petition. NRS 34.726. The instant Petition was not filed until
May 24, 2021, nearly a full year after Petitioner’s time had expired. Therefore, pursuant to
NRS 34.726, Petitioner’s Third Petition is untimely, and should be dismissed.

B. Petitioner’s Claims are Successive, or Constitute an Abuse of the Writ

NRS 34.810(2) explains:

A second or successive Petition must be dismissed if the Judge or Justice
determines that it fails to allege new or different grounds for relief and that the
prior determination was on the merits or, if new and different grounds are
alleged, the Judge or Justice finds that the failure of the Petitioner to assert those
grounds in a prior Petition constituted an abuse of the Writ.

(emphasis added). Second or successive Petitions are Petitions that either fail to allege new or
different grounds for relief and the grounds have already been decided on the merits or that
allege new or different grounds but a Judge or Justice finds that the Petitioner’s failure to assert
those grounds in a prior Petition would constitute an abuse of the Writ, Second or successive
Petitions will only be decided on the merits if the Petitioner can show good cause and
prejudice. NRS 34.810(3); Lozada v. State, 110 Nev. 349, 358, 871 P.2d 944, 950 (1994).

i

"
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The Nevada Supreme Court has stated: “Without such limitations on the availability of
post-conviction remedies, prisoners could Petition for relief in perpetuity and thus abuse post-
conviction remedies. In addition, meritless, successive and untimely Petitions clog the court

system and undermine the finality of convictions.” Lozada, 110 Nev. at 358, 871 P.2d at 950.

The Nevada Supreme Court recognizes that “[u]nlike initial Petitions which certainly require
a careful review of the record, successive Petitions may be dismissed based solely on the face

of the Petition.” Ford v. Warden, 111 Nev. 872, 882, 901 P.2d 123, 129 (1995). In other words,

if the claim or allegation was previously available with reasonable diligence, it is an abuse of |
the Writ to wait to assert it in a later Petition. McClesky v, Zant, 499 U.S. 467, 497-498 (1991).
Application of NRS 34.810(2) is mandatory. See Riker, 121 Nev. at 231, 112 P.3d at 1074.

As stated supra, this is Petitioner’s third post-conviction Habeas Petition. Each of
Petitioner’s first two Petitions were previously adjudicated on the merits; therefore, the instant
Petition is successive, and must be dismissed. NRS 34.810(2). Further, to the extent that
Petitioner raises new claims that were not raised in Petitioner’s earlier Petitions, Petitionexj’s
third Petition amount to an abuse of the Writ, and must likewise be dismissed. Id.

Because the instant Petition is successive and/or an abuse of the Writ, this Court need
not reach the merits of the instant Petition, and should instead summarily dismiss the samé.

C. Petitioner’s Claims are Subject to the Law of the Case Doctrine

“The law of a first appeal is law of the case on all subsequent appeals in which the facts
are substantially the same.” Hall v. State, 91 Nev. 314, 315, 535 P.2d 797, 798 (1975) (quoting
Walker v. State, 85 Nev. 337, 343, 455 P.2d 34, 38 (1969)). “The doctrine of the law of the

case cannot be avoided by a more detailed and precisely focused argument subsequently made
after reflection upon the previous proceedings.” Id. at 316, 535 P.2d at 799. Under the law of
the case doctrine, issues previously decided on direct appeal may not be reargued in a Hal;eés
Petition. Pellegrini v. State, 117 Nev. at 879, 34 P.3d at 532 (citing McNelton v. State, 115
Nev. 396, 414-15, 990 P.2d 1263, 1275 (1999)).

M
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In the instant Petition, Petitioner raises a number of claims that have previously been

rejected. First, Petitioner raises a claim under Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83, 83 S.Ct. 1194 4

(1963), alleging tl;at the State withheld the record of Victim’s civil proceeding against
Petitioner. See Third Petition at “3”-“4”.! However, this claim is substantially the same as
Petitioner’s claim raised in his second Petition. See Second Petition at 2-7 (quoting transcripts
from Victim’s civil proceeding against Petitioner, and alleging that Petitioner was unaware of
the same at the time he agreed to the GPA). Therefore, as this substantive claim has alread)'r
been rejected, it is barred by the law of the case doctrine, and should be dismissed here.

Petitioner proceeds to include various allegations of ineffective assistance of — and
irreconcilable differences with — plea counsel. Third Petition at “8.” However, these
allegations have previously been raised, and have been rejected. See. e.g., Second Petition at
11-12. As those claims were previously adjudicated, they cannot be re-raised in the instant
Petition, merely couched in a different way. Hall, 91 Nev. at 316, 535 P.2d at 799.

Petitioner also includes a claim of a “fundamental miscarriage of justice.” Third Petition
at “12.” However, that phrase is exclusive to claims of actual innocence — which Petitioner has
expressly raised, and which has been rejected, as part of Petitioner’s Second Petition. See
Second Petition at 8-10. Therefore, this claim is likewise barred by the law of the case doctrine
and res judicata.?

D. Petitioner’s Claims Fall Outside the Scope of Habeas Review

Under NRS 34.810(1),

The court shall dismiss a Petition if the court determines that:

(a) The Petitioner’s conviction was upon a plea of guilty or guilty but
mentally ill and the Petition is not based upon an allegation that the plea was
involuntarily or unknowinglf/ entered or that the plea was entered without
effective assistance of counsel. :

1‘1.1'11953 the court finds both cause for the failure to present the grounds and actual
prejudice to the Petitioner.

! The State references the pages as labeled by Petitioner, as the organization of the instant Petition renders
citation to the actual page numbers unreliable, -

? Furthermore, the State would note that, by Petitioner’s own legal standard, Petitioner’s claim falls short, as a
claim of actual innocence requires “new evidence”; however, the evidence upon which Petitioner relies is not
new. Compare Third Petition at “16” with Second Petition at 8-10.

8
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(emphasis added).

Furthermore, the Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a
guilty plea and claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be
pursued in post-conviction proceedings.... [A]ll other claims that are appropriate for a direct
appeal must be pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequenf
proceedings.” Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis
added) (disapproved of on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222

(1999)). “A court must dismiss a Habeas Petition if it presents claims that either were or could
have been presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to
present the claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the Petitioner.”
Evans v. State, 117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001), overruled on other grounds by
Lisle v. State, 131 Nev, 356, 351 P.3d 725 (2015). Additionally, substantive claims are beyond
the scope of Habeas and waived. NRS 34.724(2)(a); see also Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29
P.3d 498 at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752, 877 P.2d 1058 at 1059.

Petitioner readily acknowledges that he pled guilty. See, e.g., Third Petition at 2.
Therefore, pursuant to statute, the only claims available for post-conviction review include
allegations that the guilty plea was not knowingly and voluntarily entered into, and ineffective
assistance of plea counsel. NRS 34.810(1)(a). However, Petitioner raises a number of claims
that do not fall under these categories: first, Petitioner alleges prosecutorial misconduct
throughout the plea process. See Third Petition at “4.” He also alleges Court error and/or bias.
See id. at “7.” Petitioner includes a claim of a “fundamental miscarriage of justice.” See id. at
“12.” Petitioner also lists claims of “further misconduct by the State,” “manufacturing |
evidence,” and “three false documents.” Id. at “16.” Petitioner finally makes a claim of “new
evidence.” Id. at “18.” None of these claims deal with the validity of the guilty plea, nor do

they touch upon plea counse!l’s effectiveness.’

3 To the extent that this Court determines that any of these claims does, in fact, touch upon the permissible
allegations under NRS 34.810(1), the State would note that Petitioner’s guilty plea has already been expressly
upheld on review, See Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order, filed on November 20, 2019 (in Case
No. C-18-336184-1) at 2-4.

9

WCLARKCOUNTYDA.NET\CRMCASE2\2018\2691541201826954C-RSPN-(SAMMIE NUNN)-001.DOCX

210




O 0o 1 Y U B W N e

[ T N T L T N L o L L L o L T e S SV
00 1 O h bW N = D W e - N lm W N =

Because Petitioner’s claims fall outside the limited scope of Habeas review, the State
respectfully submits they should be dismissed.
II.  PETITIONER FAILS TO DEMONSTRATE GOOD CAUSE*

To establish good cause, a Petitioner must show that an impediment external to the
defense prevented his compliance with the applicable procedural rule. Clem v. State, 119 Nev,

615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003). An example of a qualifying impediment might be where

the factual or legal basis for the claim was not reasonably available at the time of the procedural
default. Id. The Clem Court explained that Petitioners “cannot attempt to manufacture good
cause[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Other examples of good cause include interference by
State officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or factual basis. See State v. Huebler,
128 Nev. 192, 197, 275 P.3d 91, 95 (2012). To find good cause there must be a “substantial
reason; one that affords a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71 P.3d 503,

506 (2003) (internal quotation omitted).

Petitioner does not attempt to substantively argue good cause according to the legal
standard. Instead, Petitioner merely interjects the words “good cause” when labeling his
various claims. See, e.g., Third Petition at “12.” To the extent that Petitioner seeks to rely on
his allegedly “new evidence” to establish good cause, the State would note that this evidence
has previously been referenced by Petitioner. Furthermore, Petitioner does not assert that this
evidence was not reasonably available at the time he filed any of his earlier proceedings, much
less does he specify #ow it was unavailable. See generally, Third Petition.

Because Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause, Petitioner cannot overcome the
procedural bar to the instant Petition, and the same should be dismissed. )
i
i
/4
/i

4 In order to conserve judicial resources, the State will only address whether Petitioner has shown good cause;
however, if this Court finds Petitioner has established good cause, the State respectfully requests an opportunity
to address whether Petitioner can demonstrate prejudice.

10
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III. PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if a Petition can be resolved without

expanding the record, then no Evidentiary Hearing is necessary. Marshall v. State, 110 Nev.

1328, 885 P.2d 603 (1994); Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 356, 46 P.3d 1228, 1231. A

Defendant is entitled to an Evidentiary Hearing if his Petition is supported by specific factual

allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual allegations are repelled

by the record. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at 605; see also Hargrove v. State, 100
Nev. 498, 503, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (holding that “[a] Defendant seeking post-conviction relief

is not entitled to an Evidentiary Hearing on factual allegations belied or repelled by the
record™). “A claim is ‘belied’ when it is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it
existed at the time the claim was made.” Mann at 354, 46 P.3d at 1230 (2002). It is improper
to hold an Evidentiary Hearing simply to make a complete record. See Riker, 121 Nev, at 234,
112 P.3d at 1076 (2005) (“The district court considered itself the ‘equivalent of . . . the trial
Judge’ and consequently wanted ‘to make as complete a record as possible.” This is an
incorrect basis for an Evidentiary Hearing.”).

The instant Petition is procedurally barred pursuant to NRS 34.810(2). Petitioner has
failed to demonstrate good cause to overcome the procedural bar. Because the instant Petition
is procedurally barred under various statutory rules, the State respectfully submits this Court
must dismiss the instant Petition; therefore, there is no reason to conduct an Evidentiary
Hearing.

i
7/
m
"
"
"
1"
i
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CONCLUSION
For the forgoing reasons, the State respectfully requests that Petitioner’s Pro Per Third

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus be DISMISSED as procedurally barred, and Petitioner’s
Request for Evidentiary Hearing be DENIED. |
DATED this 6% day of July, 2021.
Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/John Niman
JOHN NIMAN
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #014408

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this 6* day of July,

2021 by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

SAMMIE NUNN, BAC# 1226304

SOUTHERN DESERT CORRECTIONAL CENTER
P. 0. BOX 208

INDIAN SPRINGS, NV 89070

BY /s/E. Goddard

E. Goddard
Secretary - District Attorney’s Office

18F09747X/erg/L-4
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Electronically Filed
8/27/2021 11:20 AM
Steven D. Grierson

DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE CC
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA &;ﬁ*‘é ﬂh

wskskk
Sammie Nunn, Plaintiff(s) Case No.: A-21-835110-W
Vs.
State of Nevada, Defendant(s) Department 21

NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Plaintiff's Amended Supplementary Motion to Amended
Second Habeas Corpus Filed within One Year of JOC on January 24, 2020 in the above-
entitled matter is set for hearing as follows:

Date: September 28, 2021
Time: 1:30 PM
Location: RJC Courtroom 16C

Regional Justice Center

200 Lewis Ave.

Las Vegas, NV 83101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the
Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Michelle McCarthy
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/Michelle McCarthy
Deputy Clerk of the Court

Case Number: A-21-835110-W
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Electronically Filed
9/1/2021 9:54 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO!

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

JOHN NIMAN

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #14408

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

SAMMIE NUNN,
#2751864

Petitioner,

V- CASENO: A-21-835110-W

THE STATE OF NEVADA, DEPTNO:  XXI

Respondent.

STATE’S RESPONSE AND MOTION TO STRIKE AMENDED SUPPLEMENTARY
MOTION TO AMENDED SECOND HABEAS CORPUS FILED WITHIN ONE
YEAR OF JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION ON JANUARY 24, 2020

DATE OF HEARING: SEPTEMBER 28, 2021
TIME OF HEARING: 1:30 PM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through JOHN NIMAN, Deputy District Attorney, and hereby submits the
attached Response and Motion to Strike Defendant’s “Amended Supplementary Motion To
Amended Second Habeas Corpus Filed Within one Year of Judgment of Conviction On
January 24, 2020” (“Amended Motion™).

This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

7
I
I

Case Number: A-21-835110-W
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On November 14, 2018, Sammie Nunn (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was charged by way
of Indictment with one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B Felony — NRS 200.481) and
one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS
200.481) for his actions on or between May 27, 2018 and June 3, 2018,

On June 6, 2019, pursuant to a Guilty Plea Agreement (“GPA”), Petitioner pled guilty

- to one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON. As part of the GPA, the

parties agreed that the State would not oppose probation, and would not oppose Petitioner’s
release on house arrest after the entry of Petitioner’s plea. The parties also stipulated to an
underlying sentence of two (2) to five (5) years in the Nevada Department of Corrections
(“NDOC”). GPA at 1. The Court canvassed Petitioner and accepted Petitioner’s guilty plea.

On June 11, 2019, Petitioner was adjudged guilty and was sentenced to a minimum of
forty-eight (48) to one hundred twenty (120) months in NDOC., Petitioner’s sentence was
suspended, and Petitioner was placed on probation for a term not to exceed five (5) years.
Petitioner was also placed on house arrest.

On Julye 10, 2019, a Violation Report was filed, indicating Petitioner had violated the
terms of his probation by failing to abide by the curfew restrictions and by consuming
controlled substances. While the revocation proceedings were ongoing, on July 15, 2019,
Petitioner filed a Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. Petitioner’s
Motion to Dismiss Counsel was granted, for the limited purpose of having alternate counsel to
determine whether there were grounds to withdraw Petitioner’s guilty plea.

On October 10, 2019, Petitioner filed a Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (his “first Petition™). In his first Petition, Petitioner raised a single argument: a new
witness, E. Mekonnen, could testify to Petitioner’s actual innocence. First Petition at 5-6. The
State filed its Response to Petitioner’s first Petition on October 16, 2019. The Court denied

Petitioner’s first Petition on November 5, 2019.
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On November 14, 2019, the Court conducted a hearing regarding the revocation of
Petitioner’s i)robation. Following arguments by the parties, the Court found that Petitioner
violated his probation and revoked the same. The Court modified Petitioner’s sentence of
imprisonment to thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months in Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDOC). The Court gave Petitioner five hundred ten (510) days credit for time
served. Petitioner’s Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on November 18, 2019.

On November 21, 2019, Petitioner noticed his appeal from his Amended Judgment of
Conviction. On March 5, 2021, the Nevada Court of Appeals affirmed Petitioner’s Amended
Judgment of Conviction. Remittitur issued on March 31, 2021.

On January 24, 2020 (while his direct appeal was pending), Petitioner filed his second
Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (his “second Petition”). The State filed its
Response and Motion to Dismiss that second Petition on February 25, 2020. On March 10,
2020, Petitioner — through counsel — filed a “Supplementary Motion for Evidentiary Hearing.”
The State filed its Response to that Supplementary Motion on March 31, 2020.

On April 29, 2021, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal, referencing the Court’s denial
of Petitioner’s first Petition on November 5, 2019, The Nevada Supreme Court dismissed
Petitioner’s appeal as untimely on May 21, 2021. Remittitur issued on June 17, 2021.

On May 10, 2021, Petitioner filed another Notice of Appeal, alleging that he had
expired his sentence, and asking the Nevada Supreme Court to release him from custody. The
Nevada Supreme Court dismissed that appeal on May 26, 2021, citing a lack of any appealable
order. Remittitur issued on June 22, 2021.

On May 24, 2021, Petitioner filed his third Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (his “Third Petition”). The State responded on July 6, 2021.

On August 27", 2021, Defendant filed the instant Amended Motion. The State’s
response, and motion to strike the Amended Motion, follows.

I
/!
/
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ARGUMENT
L DEFENDANT’S AMENDED MOTION SHOULD BE STRIKEN

After a defendant files a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, if the Petition is not
summarily dismissed, the Court may order the State to respond to the Petition. NRS 34.745. If
a petitioner requests counsel, and the Court appoints counsel, counsel may file a supplement
to the Petition within 30 days. NRS 34.750(3) The State may file a response to the
supplemental Petition within 15 days. Id. A petitioner may respond if the State files a motion
to dismiss within 15 days of service of the motion to dismiss. NRS 34.750(4). No further
pleadings may be filed except as ordered by the court. NRS 34.750(5).

Petitioner filed his Petition on May 24, 2021. The State responded on July 6, 2021.
Counsel has not been appointed in this matter, and the State did not file a motion to dismiss
the action. Therefore, no further pleadings may be filed except as ordered by this Court. The
Court has not ordered, and Petitioner has neither sought nor been granted permission to file,
any responsive pleading to the State’s response to the Petition.

Even assuming the State’s invocation of the procedural bars in its Response were
construed as a motion to dismiss, the pleading was mailed to Petitioner on July 6, 2021, and
he did not respond until August 16, 2021 (at the earliest). State’s Response at 12 (Certificate
of Mailing); Amended Motion at 1 (Dated August 16, 2021 but filed August 27, 2021.)

Assuming the earlier date controls, Petitioner “responded” 41 days after the State’s Response
was mailed, well outside of the 15 days permitted by statute.
Accordingly, the Amended Motion should be stricken as it is not permitted pursuant to
statute.
I
I
/
/
/
I
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CONCLUSION

For the forgoing reasons, the State respectfully requests that Petitioner’s Amended
Motion be STRICKEN.,
DATED this [ 7 J day of September, 2021.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #1565

RY e e o
JOHN NIMAN

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #14408

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this 1st day of
September, 2021, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

SAMMIE NUNN, NDC #1226304
PIOCHE CONSERVATION CAMP (PCC)
1 HARDTIMES RD.

P.0. BOX 509

PIOCHE, NV, 89043

BY

Secretary for the District Attorney's Office

18F09747X/IN/ckb/L4
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

JOHN NIMAN

Depu:?' District Attorney
Nevada Bar #014408

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 8§9155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

SAMMIE NUNN,
#2751864

. Petitioner,
-VS_

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent,

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF

LAW AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: SEPTEMBER 7, 2021
TIME OF HEARING: 1:30 PM

THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable TARA CLARK-
NEWBERRY, District Judge, on the 7th day of September, 2021, the Petitioner not being
present, proceeding in pro per, the Respondent being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON,
Clark County District Attorney, by and through LAURA GOODMAN, Chief Deputy District
Attorney, and the Court having considered the matter, including briefs, transcripts, and

documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the following findings of fact and

conclusions of law:
1
1
1
i
n

CASE NO:
DEPT NO:

Electronically Filed
09/20/2021 2,31 PM

CLERK OF THE COURT

A-21-835110-W
XX1

\\CLARKCOUNTYDA.Nmﬂ§2§MWRMMEGWEWUQLEGSKIJP
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PROCEDURAL HISTORY
On November 14, 2018, Sammie Nunn (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was charged by way
of Indictment with one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B Felony — NRS 200.481) and
one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS
200.481) for his actions on or between May 27, 2018 and June 3, 2018.

On June 6, 2019, pursuant to a Guilty Plea Agreement (“GPA”), Petitioner pled guilty
to one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON. As part of the GPA, the
parties agreed that the State would not oppose probation and would not oppose Petitioner’s
release on house arrest after the entry of Petitioner’s plea. The parties also stipulated to an
underlying sentence of two (2) to five (5) years in the Nevada Department of Corrections
(“NDOC?”). GPA at 1. The Court canvassed Petitioner and accepted Petitioner’s guilty plea.

On June 11, 2019, Petitioner was adjudged guilty and was sentenced to a minimum of
forty-eight (48) to one hundred twenty (120) months in NDOC., Petitioner’s sentence was
suspended, and Petitioner was placed on probation for a term not to exceed five (5) years.
Petitioner was also placed on house arrest.

On July 10, 2019, a Violation Report was filed, indicating Petitioner had violated the
terms of his probation by failing to abide by the curfew restrictions and by consuming
controlled substances. While the revocation proceedings were ongoing, on July 15, 2019,
Petitioner filed a Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. Petitioner’s
Motion to Dismiss Counsel was granted, for the limited purpose of having alternate counsel to
determine whether there were grounds to withdraw Petitioner’s guilty plea.

On October 10, 2019, Petitioner filed a Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (his “first Petition™). In his first Petition, Petitioner raised a single argument: a new
witness, E. McKonnen, could testify to Petitioner’s actual innocence. First Petition at 5-6. The
State filed its Response to Petitioner’s first Petition on October 16, 2019. The Court denied
Petitioner’s first Petition on November 5, 2019.

"
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On November 14, 2019, the Court conducted a hearing regarding the revocation of
Petitioner’s probation. Following arguments by the parties, the Court found that Petitioner
violated his probation and revoked the same. The Court modified Petitioner’s sentence of
imprisonment to thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months in NDOC. The Court gave
Petitioner five hundred ten (510) days credit for time served. Petitioner’s Amended Judgment
of Conviction was filed on November 18, 2019.

On November 21, 2019, Petitioner noticed his appeal from his Amended Judgment of
Conviction. On March 5, 2021, the Nevada Court of Appeals affirmed Petitioner’s Amended
Judgment of Conviction. Remittitur issued on March 31, 2021.

On January 24, 2020 (while his direct appeal was pending), Petitioner filed his second
Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (his “second Petition™). The State filed its
Response and Motion to Dismiss that second Petition on February 25, 2020. On March 10,
2020, Petitioner — through counsel — filed a “Supplementary Motion for Evidentiary Hearing.”
The State filed its Response to that Supplementary Motion on March 31, 2020.

On April 29, 2021, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal, referencing the Court’s denial
of Petitioner’s first Petition on November 5, 2019. The Nevada Supreme Court dismissed
Petitioner’s appeal as untimely on May 21, 2021. Remittitur issued on June 17, 2021,

On May 10, 2021, Petitioner filed another Notice of Appeal, alleging that he had
expired his sentence, and asking the Nevada Supreme Court to release him from custody. The
Nevada Supreme Court dismissed that appeal on May 26, 2021, citing a lack of any appealable
order. Remittitur issued on June 22, 2021.

On May 24, 2021, Petitioner filed his third Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (his “Third Petition™). The State responded on July 6, 2021.

On August 27%, 2021, Defendant filed the instant Amended Motion. The
State’s responded, and moved to strike the Amended Motion, on September 1, 2021. On
September 7, 2021, this Court decided the Third Petition and Amended Motion as follows.

1
1
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FACTUAL FINDINGS
On May 27, 2018, Prince Alidu (the “Victim”) was at Your Stop Liquor, a convenience

store, when he was approached by Petitioner, who asked Victim for fifty (50) cents. Grand
Jury Transcript, Tuesday, November 6, 2018 (“GJT”) at 16. Victim told Petitioner he did not
have the money, after which Petitioner’s female friend angrily approached Victim. Id.
Petitioner then came back to Victim and called him names. Id. at 17. Victim asked Petitioner
to leave him alone, and Petitioner left to the nearby apartment complex. Id. A few minutes
later, however, Petitioner came back with a tool in his hand. Id. Victim described the tool as
being approximately one foot long. Id. at 17-18. Petitioner hit Victim in the face with the tool,
resulting in significant bleeding and an eventual scar. Id.

Officer Vesperas was in the area of Your Stop Liquor on May 27, 2018, when he was
flagged down by a pedestrian. GJT at 6-7. That pedestrian directed Vesperas’s attention to
another individual down the street. Id. at 7. The individual to which Vesperas was directed had
a foot-long wrench in his hand. Id. Vesperas identified that individual as Petitioner. Id. at 8.

Petitioner told Vesperas that he had been attacked and had hit an attacker with the
wrench. GJT at 8. However, Vesperas did not notice any injuries that would require medical
attention, and Petitioner did not complain of any such injuries. Id. at 9.

Officer Hawkins also responded to the area of Your Stop Liquor on May 27, 2018. GIT
at 11. Hawkins came into contact with Victim, who was bleeding from his head. Id. at 12.
Victim identified Petitioner to Hawkins at the scene of the interaction. Id.

On June 3, 2018, Victim was again outside Your Stop Liquor when he was approached
by Petitioner. GJT at 20. At this encounter, Petitioner pulled out a handgun and again hit the
Victim over the head. Id. at 21. |
"

i
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ANALYSIS

L THE THIRD PETITION IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED

Pursuant to NRS 34.726(1), “a Petition that challenges the validity of a judgment or
sentence must be filed within 1 year of the entry of the judgment of conviction...” (Emphasis
added). The Supreme Court of Nevada has held that NRS 34.726 should be construed by its
plain meaning. Pellegrini v, State, 117 Nev. 860, 873-74, 34 P.3d 519, 528 (2001). As per the
language of the statute, the one-year time bar proscribed by NRS 34.726 begins to run from
the date the judgment of conviction is filed or a remittitur from a timely direct appeal is filed.
Dickerson v. State, 114 Nev. 1084, 1087, 967 P.2d 1132, 1133-34 (1998).

The one-year time limit for preparing Petitions for post-conviction relief under NRS

34.726 is strictly applied. In Gonzales v. State, 118 Nev. 590, 596, 53 P.3d 901, 904 (2002),

the Nevada Supreme Court rejected a Habeas Petition that was filed two days late despite
evidence presented by the Defendant that he purchased postage through the prison and mailed
the Notice within the one-year time limit.

Furthermore, the Nevada Supreme Court has held that the District Court has a duty to
consider whether a Defendant's post-conviction Petition claims are procedurally barred. State
v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court (Riker), 121 Nev. 225, 231, 112 P.3d 1070, 1074 (2005). The
Riker Court found that "[a]pplication of the statutory procedural default rules to post-

conviction Habeas Petitions is mandatory," noting:

Habeas Corpus Petitions that are filed many years after conviction are an
unreasonable burden on the criminal justice system. The necessity for a
yv%rka})le system dictates that there must exist a time when a criminal conviction
is final.

Id. Additionally, that Court noted that procedural bars "cannot be ignored [by the District
Court] when properly raised by the State." Id. at 233, 112 P.3d at 1075. The Nevada Supreme
Court has granted no discretion to the District Courts regarding whether to apply the statutory

procedural bars; the rules must be applied.
i
i
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Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on June 20, 2019. While Petitioner did
challenge his Amended Judgment of Conviction via appeal, that challenge dealt with the
propriety of Petitioner’s revocation from probation — it did not challenge the validity of
Petitioner’s conviction — therefore, the one-year time-bar began to run at the time Petitioner’s
original Judgment of Conviction was filed. As such, Petitioner had until June 20, 2020, to file
a timely post-conviction Habeas Petition. NRS 34.726. The instant Petition was not filed until
May 24, 2021, nearly a full year after Petitioner’s time had expired. Therefore, pursuant to
NRS 34.726, Petitioner’s Third Petition is untimely, and should be dismissed absent a showing
of good cause and prejudice.

A. Petitioner’s Claims are Successive, or Constitute an Abuse of the Writ

NRS 34.810(2) explains:

A second or successive Petition must be dismissed if the Judge or Justice
determines that it fails to allege new or different grounds for relief and that the
prior determination was on the merits or, if new and different grounds are
alleged, the Judge or Justice finds that the failure of the Petitioner to assert those
grounds in a prior Petition constituted an abuse of the Writ.

(emphasis added). Second or successive Petitions are Petitions that either fail to allege new or
different grounds for relief and the grounds have already been decided on the merits or that
allege new or different grounds, but a Judge or Justice finds that the Petitioner’s failure to
assert those grounds in a prior Petition would constitute an abuse of the Writ. Second or
successive Petitions will only be decided on the merits if the Petitioner can show good cause
and prejudice. NRS 34.810(3); Lozada v. State, 110 Nev. 349, 358, 871 P.2d 944, 950 (1994),

The Nevada Supreme Court has stated: “Without such limitations on the availability of

post-conviction remedies, prisoners could Petition for relief in perpetuity and thus abuse post-
conviction remedies. In addition, meritless, successive and untimely Petitions clog the Court
system and undermine the finality of convictidns.” Lozada, 110 Nev. at 358, 871 P.2d at 950.
The Nevada Supreme Court recognizes that “[u]nlike initial Petitions which certainly require
a careful review of the record, successive Petitions may be dismissed based solely on the face

of the Petition.” Ford v. Warden, 111 Nev. 872, 882, 901 P.2d 123, 129 (1995). In other words,

6
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if the claim or allegation was previously available with reasonable diligence, it is an abuse of

the Writ to wait to assert it in a later Petition, McClesky v. Zant, 499 U.S. 467, 497-498 (1991).

Application of NRS 34.810(2) is mandatory. See Riker, 121 Nev. at 231, 112 P.3d at 1074.
As stated supra, this is Petitioner’s third post-conviction Habeas Petition. Each of
Petitioner’s first two Petitions were previously adjudicated on the merits; therefore, the instant
Petition is successive, and must be dismissed. NRS 34.810(2). Further, to the extent that
Petitioner raises new claims that were not raised in Petitioner’s earlier Petitions, Petitioner’s
third Petition amount to an abuse of the Writ and must likewise be dismissed. Id.
Because the instant Petition is successive and/or an abuse of the Writ, this Court need
not reach the merits of the instant Petition and summarily dismisses the same.
B. Petitioner’s Claims are Subject to the Law of the Case Doctrine
“The law of a first appeal is law of the case on all subsequent appeals in which the facts
are substantially the same.” Hall v. State, 91 Nev. 314, 315, 535 P.2d 797, 798 (1975) (quoting
“Walker v. State, 85 Nev. 337, 343, 455 P.2d 34, 38 (1969)). “The doctrine of the law of the

case cannot be avoided by a more detailed and precisely focused argument subsequently made
after reflection upon the previous proceedings.” Id. at 316, 535 P.2d at 799. Under the law of
the case doctrine, issues previously decided on direct appeal may not be reargued in a Habeas
Petition. Pellegrini v. State, 117 Nev. at 879, 34 P.3d at 532 (citing McNelton v. State, 115
Nev. 396, 414-15, 990 P.2d 1263, 1275 (1999)).

"

i

i

i

i

i

i

i
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In the instant Petition, Petitioner raises a number of claims that have previously been

rejected. First, Petitioner raises a claim under Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83, 83 8.Ct. 1194
(1963), alleging that the State withheld the record of Victim’s civil proceeding against
Petitioner. See Third Petition at “3”-“4>.! However, this claim is substantially the same as
Petitioner’s claim raised in his second Petition. See Second Petition at 2-7 (quoting transcripts
from Victim’s civil proceeding against Petitioner, and alleging that Petitioner was unaware of
the same at the time he agreed to the GPA). Therefore, as this substantive claim has already
been rejected, it is barred by the law of the case doctrine and is dismissed here,

Petitioner proceeds to include various allegations of ineffective assistance of — and
irreconcilable differences with — plea counsel. Third Petition at “8.” However, these

allegations have previously been raised, and have been rejected. See, e.g., Second Petition at

11-12. As those claims were previously adjudicated, they cannot be re-raised in the instant
Petition, merely couched in a different way. Hall, 91 Nev. at 316, 535 P.2d at 799.

Petitioner also includes a claim of a “fundamental miscarriage of justice.” Third Petition
at “12.” However, that phrase is exclusive to claims of actual innocence — which Petitioner has
expressly raised, and which has been rejected, as part of Petitioner’s Second Petition. See
Second Petition at 8-10. Therefore, this claim is likewise barred by the law of the case doctrine
and res judicata.

C.  Petitioner’s Claims Fall Outside the Scope of Habeas Review

Under NRS 34.810(1),

The Court shall dismiss a Petition if the Court determines that:
(a) The Petitioner’s conviction was upon a plea of guilty or guilty but
mentally ill and the Petition is not based upon an allegation that the plea was
involuntarily or unknowingly entered or that the plea was entered without
effective assistance of counse{

unless the Court finds both cause for the failure to present the grounds and actual
prejudice to the Petitioner.

' The Court references the pages as labeled by Petitioner, as the organization of the instant Petition renders
citation to the actual page numbers unreliable.

* Petitioner fails to demonstrate actual innocence, as a claim of actual innocence requires “new evidence”;
however, the evidence upon which Petitioner relies is not new. Compare Third Petition at “16™ with Second
Petition at 8-10.

8
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(emphasis added).

Furthermore, the Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a
guilty plea and claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be
pursued in post-conviction proceedings. ... [A]ll other claims that are appropriate for a direct
appeal must be pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent
proceedings.” Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis
added) (disapproved of on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222

(1999)). “A Court must dismiss a Habeas Petition if it presents claims that either were or could
have been presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the Court finds both cause for failing to
present the claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the Petitioner.”
Evans v. State, 117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001), overruled on other grounds by
Lisle v. State, 131 Nev. 356, 351 P.3d 725 (2015). Additionally, substantive claims are beyond
the scope of Habeas and waived. NRS 34.724(2)(a); see also Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29
P.3d 498 at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752, 877 P.2d 1058 at 1059.

Petitioner readily acknowledges that he pled guilty. See, e.g., Third Petition at 2.

Therefore, pursuant to statute, the only claims available for post-conviction review include
allegations that the guilty plea was not knowingly and voluntarily entered into, and ineffective
assistance of plea counsel. NRS 34.810(1)(a). However, Petitioner raises a number of claims
that do not fall under these categories: first, Petitioner alleges prosecutorial misconduct
throughout the plea process. See Third Petition at “4.” He also alleges Court error and/or bias.
See id. at “7.” Petitioner includes a claim of a “fundamental miscarriage of justice.” See id. at
“12.” Petitioner also lists claims of “further misconduct by the State,” “manufacturing
evidence,” and “three false documents.” Id. at “i6.” Petitioner finally makes a claim of “new
evidence.” Id. at “18.” None of these claims deal with the validity of the guilty plea, nor do
they touch upon plea counsel’s effectiveness.’

"

* Moreover, Petitioner’s guilty plea has already been expressly upheld on review. See Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Order, filed on November 20, 2019 (in Case No. C-18-336184-1) at 2-4.
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Because Petitioner’s claims fall outside the limited scope of Habeas review, they are
summarily dismissed. -
II. PETITIONER FAILS TO DEMONSTRATE GOOD CAUSE

To establish good cause to overcome the procedural bars, a Petitioner must show that
an impediment external to the defense prevented his compliance with the applicable procedural
rule. Clem v. State, 119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003). An example of a qualifying
impediment might be where the factual or legal basis for the claim was not reasonably
available at the time of the procedural default. Id. The Clem Court explained that Petitioners
“cannot attempt to manufacture good cause[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Other examples of
good cause include interference by State officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or

factual basis. See State v. Huebler, 128 Nev. 192, 197, 275 P.3d 91, 95 (2012). To find good

cause there must be a “substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State,

119 Nev. 248, 252, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (internal quotation omitted).

Petitioner does not attempt to substantively argue good cause according to the legal
standard. Instead, Petitioner merely interjects the words “good cause” when labeling his
various claims. See, e.g., Third Petition at “12.” To the extent that Petitioner seeks to rely on
his allegedly “new evidence” to establish good cause, the evidence is not new and has been
referenced in Petitioner’s previous pleadings. Furthermore, Petitioner does not assert that this
evidence was not reasonably available at the time he filed any of his earlier proceedings, much
less does he specify #ow it was unavailable. See generally, Third Petition.

Because Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause, Petitioner cannot overcome the
procedural bar to the instant Petition, and the Petition is dismissed.

It
i
i
i
"
i
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III. PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if a Petition can be resolved without

expanding the record, then no evidentiary hearing is necessary. Marshall v. State, 110 Nev.

1328, 885 P.2d 603 (1994); Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 356, 46 P.3d 1228, 1231. A

Defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing if his Petition is supported by specific factual
allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual allegations are repelled
by the record. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at 605; see also Hargrove v. State, 100
Nev. 498, 503, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (holding that “[a] Defendant seeking post-conviction relief

is not entitled to an evidentiary hearing on factual allegations belied or repelled by the record”).
“A claim is ‘belied’ when it is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at

the time the claim was made.” Mann at 354, 46 P.3d at 1230 (2002). It is improper to hold an

evidentiary hearing simply to make a complete record. See Riker, 121 Nev. at 234, 112 P.3d
at 1076 (2005) (“The District Court considered itself the ‘equivalent of . . . the trial Judge’ and
consequently wanted ‘to make as complete a record as possible.’ This is an incorrect basis for
an evidentiary hearing.”).

The instant Petition is procedurally barred for the reasons previously stated. Petitioner
has failed to demonstrate good cause to overcome the procedural bars. Because the instant
Petition is procedurally barred under various statutory rules, there is no reason to conduct an
evidentiary hearing,

IV. DEFENDANT’S AMENDED MOTION IS STRIKEN

After a Defendant files a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, if the Petition is not
summarily dismissed, the Court may order the State to respond to the Petition. NRS 34.745. If
a Petitioner requests counsel, and the Court appoints counsel, counsel may file a supplement
to the Petition within 30 days. NRS 34.750(3) The State may file a response to the
supplemental Petition within 15 days. Id. A Petitioner may respond if the State files a motion
to dismiss within 15 days of service of the motion to dismiss. NRS 34.750(4). No further
pleadings may be filed except as ordered by the Court. NRS 34.750(5).

1
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Pétitioner filed his Petition on May 24, 2021. The State responded on July 6, 2021.
Counsel has not been appointed in this matter, and the State did not file a motion to dismiss
the action. Therefore, no further pleadings may be filed except as ordered by this Court. The
Court has not ordered, and Petitioner has neither sought nor been granted permission to file,
any responsive pleading to the State’s response to the Petition.

Even assuming the State’s invocation of the procedural bars in its Response were
construed as a motion to dismiss, the pleading was mailed to Petitioner on July 6, 2021, and
he did not respond until August 16, 2021 (at the earliest). State’s Response at 12 (Certificate
of Mailing); Amended Motion at 1 (Dated August 16, 2021 but filed August 27, 2021.)

Assuming the earlier date controls, Petitioner “responded” 41 days afier the State’s Response
was mailed, well outside of the 15 days permitted by statute.
Accordingly, the Amended Motion is stricken as it is not permitted pursuant to statute.
H
I
"
I
"
"
i
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ORDER
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Third Petition for Post-Conviction
Relief shall be, and it is, hereby dismissed. FURTHER, the State’s Motion to Strike the
Amended Motion shall be, and it is, hereby granted, and the Amended Motion is STRICKEN.
DATED this _ day of September, 2021.

Dated this 20th day of September, 2021

DISTRICT JUDGE ;

STEVEN B. WOLFSON 28B 776 BD1B :;,,137
istri ara Clark Newberry
g{,’%‘:dg%l;t}#(%lis grégt Attorey District Court Judge

BY /s/John Niman
JOHN NIMAN
Depugf District Attorney
Nevada Bar #014408

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this 17* day of
September, 2021 by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

SAMMIE NUNN, BAC# 1226304
SOUTHERN DESERT CORRECTIONAL CENTER

P. 0. BOX 208
INDIAN SPRINGS, NV 89070

BY /s/E. Goddard

E. Goddard
Secretary - District Attorney’s Office

18F09747X/erg/L-4
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Sammie Nunn, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-21-835110-W
VS, DEPT. NO. Department 21

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial District
Court. The foregoing Finding of Fact and Conclusions of Law was served via the court’s
electronic eFile system to all recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as
listed below:
Service Date: 9/20/2021

Department XXI Dept21LC(@clarkcountycourts.us
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Electronically Filed
9/23/2021 1:15 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO!

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SAMMIE NUNN,
Case No: A-21-835110-W
Petitioner,
Dept No: XXI
VS.
STATE OF NEVADA,
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF FINDINGS OF FACT,
Respondent, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on September 20, 2021, the court entered a decision or order in this matter,
a true and correct copy of which is attached to this notice.

You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of this court. If you wish to appeal, you
must file a notice of appeal with the clerk of this court within thirty-three (33) days after the date this notice is mailed

to you. This notice was mailed on September 23, 2021.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CLERK OF THE COURT

/s/ Amanda Hampton
Amanda Hampton, Deputy Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF E-SERVICE / MAILING

[ hereby certify that on this 23 day of September 2021, [ served a copy of this Notice of Entry on the
following:

M By e-mail:
Clark County District Attorney’s Office
Anorney General’s Office — Appellate Division-

M The United States mail addressed as follows:
Sammie Nunn # 1226304
P.O. Box 509
Pioche, NV 89043

/s/ Amanda Hampton
Amanda Hampton, Deputy Clerk

Case Number: A-21-835110-W
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FCL

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

JOHN NIMAN

Depu:?' District Attorney
Nevada Bar #014408

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 8§9155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

SAMMIE NUNN,
#2751864

. Petitioner,
-VS_

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent,

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF

LAW AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: SEPTEMBER 7, 2021
TIME OF HEARING: 1:30 PM

THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable TARA CLARK-
NEWBERRY, District Judge, on the 7th day of September, 2021, the Petitioner not being
present, proceeding in pro per, the Respondent being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON,
Clark County District Attorney, by and through LAURA GOODMAN, Chief Deputy District
Attorney, and the Court having considered the matter, including briefs, transcripts, and

documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the following findings of fact and

conclusions of law:
1
1
1
i
n

CASE NO:
DEPT NO:

Electronically Filed
09/20/2021 2,31 PM

CLERK OF THE COURT

A-21-835110-W
XX1

\\CLARKCOUNTYDA.Nmﬂ§2§MWRMMEGWEWUQLEGSKIJP
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PROCEDURAL HISTORY
On November 14, 2018, Sammie Nunn (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was charged by way
of Indictment with one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B Felony — NRS 200.481) and
one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony — NRS
200.481) for his actions on or between May 27, 2018 and June 3, 2018.

On June 6, 2019, pursuant to a Guilty Plea Agreement (“GPA”), Petitioner pled guilty
to one count of BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON. As part of the GPA, the
parties agreed that the State would not oppose probation and would not oppose Petitioner’s
release on house arrest after the entry of Petitioner’s plea. The parties also stipulated to an
underlying sentence of two (2) to five (5) years in the Nevada Department of Corrections
(“NDOC?”). GPA at 1. The Court canvassed Petitioner and accepted Petitioner’s guilty plea.

On June 11, 2019, Petitioner was adjudged guilty and was sentenced to a minimum of
forty-eight (48) to one hundred twenty (120) months in NDOC., Petitioner’s sentence was
suspended, and Petitioner was placed on probation for a term not to exceed five (5) years.
Petitioner was also placed on house arrest.

On July 10, 2019, a Violation Report was filed, indicating Petitioner had violated the
terms of his probation by failing to abide by the curfew restrictions and by consuming
controlled substances. While the revocation proceedings were ongoing, on July 15, 2019,
Petitioner filed a Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. Petitioner’s
Motion to Dismiss Counsel was granted, for the limited purpose of having alternate counsel to
determine whether there were grounds to withdraw Petitioner’s guilty plea.

On October 10, 2019, Petitioner filed a Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (his “first Petition™). In his first Petition, Petitioner raised a single argument: a new
witness, E. McKonnen, could testify to Petitioner’s actual innocence. First Petition at 5-6. The
State filed its Response to Petitioner’s first Petition on October 16, 2019. The Court denied
Petitioner’s first Petition on November 5, 2019.

"
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On November 14, 2019, the Court conducted a hearing regarding the revocation of
Petitioner’s probation. Following arguments by the parties, the Court found that Petitioner
violated his probation and revoked the same. The Court modified Petitioner’s sentence of
imprisonment to thirty-six (36) to one hundred twenty (120) months in NDOC. The Court gave
Petitioner five hundred ten (510) days credit for time served. Petitioner’s Amended Judgment
of Conviction was filed on November 18, 2019.

On November 21, 2019, Petitioner noticed his appeal from his Amended Judgment of
Conviction. On March 5, 2021, the Nevada Court of Appeals affirmed Petitioner’s Amended
Judgment of Conviction. Remittitur issued on March 31, 2021.

On January 24, 2020 (while his direct appeal was pending), Petitioner filed his second
Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (his “second Petition™). The State filed its
Response and Motion to Dismiss that second Petition on February 25, 2020. On March 10,
2020, Petitioner — through counsel — filed a “Supplementary Motion for Evidentiary Hearing.”
The State filed its Response to that Supplementary Motion on March 31, 2020.

On April 29, 2021, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal, referencing the Court’s denial
of Petitioner’s first Petition on November 5, 2019. The Nevada Supreme Court dismissed
Petitioner’s appeal as untimely on May 21, 2021. Remittitur issued on June 17, 2021,

On May 10, 2021, Petitioner filed another Notice of Appeal, alleging that he had
expired his sentence, and asking the Nevada Supreme Court to release him from custody. The
Nevada Supreme Court dismissed that appeal on May 26, 2021, citing a lack of any appealable
order. Remittitur issued on June 22, 2021.

On May 24, 2021, Petitioner filed his third Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (his “Third Petition™). The State responded on July 6, 2021.

On August 27%, 2021, Defendant filed the instant Amended Motion. The
State’s responded, and moved to strike the Amended Motion, on September 1, 2021. On
September 7, 2021, this Court decided the Third Petition and Amended Motion as follows.

1
1
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FACTUAL FINDINGS
On May 27, 2018, Prince Alidu (the “Victim”) was at Your Stop Liquor, a convenience

store, when he was approached by Petitioner, who asked Victim for fifty (50) cents. Grand
Jury Transcript, Tuesday, November 6, 2018 (“GJT”) at 16. Victim told Petitioner he did not
have the money, after which Petitioner’s female friend angrily approached Victim. Id.
Petitioner then came back to Victim and called him names. Id. at 17. Victim asked Petitioner
to leave him alone, and Petitioner left to the nearby apartment complex. Id. A few minutes
later, however, Petitioner came back with a tool in his hand. Id. Victim described the tool as
being approximately one foot long. Id. at 17-18. Petitioner hit Victim in the face with the tool,
resulting in significant bleeding and an eventual scar. Id.

Officer Vesperas was in the area of Your Stop Liquor on May 27, 2018, when he was
flagged down by a pedestrian. GJT at 6-7. That pedestrian directed Vesperas’s attention to
another individual down the street. Id. at 7. The individual to which Vesperas was directed had
a foot-long wrench in his hand. Id. Vesperas identified that individual as Petitioner. Id. at 8.

Petitioner told Vesperas that he had been attacked and had hit an attacker with the
wrench. GJT at 8. However, Vesperas did not notice any injuries that would require medical
attention, and Petitioner did not complain of any such injuries. Id. at 9.

Officer Hawkins also responded to the area of Your Stop Liquor on May 27, 2018. GIT
at 11. Hawkins came into contact with Victim, who was bleeding from his head. Id. at 12.
Victim identified Petitioner to Hawkins at the scene of the interaction. Id.

On June 3, 2018, Victim was again outside Your Stop Liquor when he was approached
by Petitioner. GJT at 20. At this encounter, Petitioner pulled out a handgun and again hit the
Victim over the head. Id. at 21. |
"

i
n
i
i

4

WCLARKCOUNTYDANET\CRMCASEZ2\2018269\54\201826954C-FFCO-(SAMMIE NUNN)-001.DOCX

238




O o0 -1 N L B W N e

MNNNNMNMN’—"—‘HD—‘D—‘D—‘D—GHP—IH
00 N1 N R WN = OO 0N Y R W N~ O

ANALYSIS

L THE THIRD PETITION IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED

Pursuant to NRS 34.726(1), “a Petition that challenges the validity of a judgment or
sentence must be filed within 1 year of the entry of the judgment of conviction...” (Emphasis
added). The Supreme Court of Nevada has held that NRS 34.726 should be construed by its
plain meaning. Pellegrini v, State, 117 Nev. 860, 873-74, 34 P.3d 519, 528 (2001). As per the
language of the statute, the one-year time bar proscribed by NRS 34.726 begins to run from
the date the judgment of conviction is filed or a remittitur from a timely direct appeal is filed.
Dickerson v. State, 114 Nev. 1084, 1087, 967 P.2d 1132, 1133-34 (1998).

The one-year time limit for preparing Petitions for post-conviction relief under NRS

34.726 is strictly applied. In Gonzales v. State, 118 Nev. 590, 596, 53 P.3d 901, 904 (2002),

the Nevada Supreme Court rejected a Habeas Petition that was filed two days late despite
evidence presented by the Defendant that he purchased postage through the prison and mailed
the Notice within the one-year time limit.

Furthermore, the Nevada Supreme Court has held that the District Court has a duty to
consider whether a Defendant's post-conviction Petition claims are procedurally barred. State
v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court (Riker), 121 Nev. 225, 231, 112 P.3d 1070, 1074 (2005). The
Riker Court found that "[a]pplication of the statutory procedural default rules to post-

conviction Habeas Petitions is mandatory," noting:

Habeas Corpus Petitions that are filed many years after conviction are an
unreasonable burden on the criminal justice system. The necessity for a
yv%rka})le system dictates that there must exist a time when a criminal conviction
is final.

Id. Additionally, that Court noted that procedural bars "cannot be ignored [by the District
Court] when properly raised by the State." Id. at 233, 112 P.3d at 1075. The Nevada Supreme
Court has granted no discretion to the District Courts regarding whether to apply the statutory

procedural bars; the rules must be applied.
i
i
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Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on June 20, 2019. While Petitioner did
challenge his Amended Judgment of Conviction via appeal, that challenge dealt with the
propriety of Petitioner’s revocation from probation — it did not challenge the validity of
Petitioner’s conviction — therefore, the one-year time-bar began to run at the time Petitioner’s
original Judgment of Conviction was filed. As such, Petitioner had until June 20, 2020, to file
a timely post-conviction Habeas Petition. NRS 34.726. The instant Petition was not filed until
May 24, 2021, nearly a full year after Petitioner’s time had expired. Therefore, pursuant to
NRS 34.726, Petitioner’s Third Petition is untimely, and should be dismissed absent a showing
of good cause and prejudice.

A. Petitioner’s Claims are Successive, or Constitute an Abuse of the Writ

NRS 34.810(2) explains:

A second or successive Petition must be dismissed if the Judge or Justice
determines that it fails to allege new or different grounds for relief and that the
prior determination was on the merits or, if new and different grounds are
alleged, the Judge or Justice finds that the failure of the Petitioner to assert those
grounds in a prior Petition constituted an abuse of the Writ.

(emphasis added). Second or successive Petitions are Petitions that either fail to allege new or
different grounds for relief and the grounds have already been decided on the merits or that
allege new or different grounds, but a Judge or Justice finds that the Petitioner’s failure to
assert those grounds in a prior Petition would constitute an abuse of the Writ. Second or
successive Petitions will only be decided on the merits if the Petitioner can show good cause
and prejudice. NRS 34.810(3); Lozada v. State, 110 Nev. 349, 358, 871 P.2d 944, 950 (1994),

The Nevada Supreme Court has stated: “Without such limitations on the availability of

post-conviction remedies, prisoners could Petition for relief in perpetuity and thus abuse post-
conviction remedies. In addition, meritless, successive and untimely Petitions clog the Court
system and undermine the finality of convictidns.” Lozada, 110 Nev. at 358, 871 P.2d at 950.
The Nevada Supreme Court recognizes that “[u]nlike initial Petitions which certainly require
a careful review of the record, successive Petitions may be dismissed based solely on the face

of the Petition.” Ford v. Warden, 111 Nev. 872, 882, 901 P.2d 123, 129 (1995). In other words,
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